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NORTH CAROLINA

Cctober 27, 2014

The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Statesville, North Carolina

We zre pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) of the City of
Statesville for the fiscal year ended june 30, 2014, The financial statements were prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standazds by a firm of
licensed certified public accountanis. We believe the data is presented in & manner designed
to set forth fairly the financial position and results of operations for the City of Statesville for fiscal
year 2614,

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Statesville. Consequerntly, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
rehakility of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City of Statesvile has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation
of the City of Statesville's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal
conircls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Statesville's comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed {o provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that
the financial statements will be free from material misstatemeni. As management, we assert that,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in ail
material respecis.

The City of Statesville's financial statements have been audited by Potter & Company, P.A. of
Mocresville, North Carolina, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the
City of Statesville for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2014 are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit invelved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amonnts and
disclogures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an ungualified opinion that the City of Statesville's financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.
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Leftoyr of Transraitial

Management is required by GAAP to provide a narrative introduction, ovexview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
{(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Stategville's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors.

Profile of the City

The City of Stategville, North Carolina is located in the central portion of Iredell County (the
"County"} in the Midwestern part of the State approximately 48 miles north of Charlotte and
approximately 40 miles west of Winston-Balem. The City of Statesville is Iredell County's second
largest city and iz the county seat.

The City of Statesville has a unique and interesting history in its more than 200 years of existence.
Cn December 18, 1788, the North Carolina Ceneral Assembly created the Town of Statesville,
primarily because of its central location in Iredell County and in western North Carolina, The City of
Statesville was formally incorporated on January 8, 1847 as the area began to grow in number and
prosperity. The City of Statesville is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
properties located within its municipal boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend
its corporate limits by annexation, which ocours periodically when deemed appropriate by the city
council. The City of Statesville currently has a land area of 24.07 square miles and a population of
24,981.

The City of Statesville has operated under the Council/Manager form of government since 1949,
The mayor and eight council members are elected on a non-partisan basis with six council
members elected from wards and two elected at-large. All nine elected officials serve four-year
staggered terms. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the city council. Other major
duties of the city council include adopting an annual budget, establishing the annual property tax
rate, enacting local ordinances and appointing the city manager and members of various boards
and commissions. In addition, the city council has the aunthority to call for bond referenda and enter
inte coniracts.

The city manager serves af the pleasure of the city council and is responsible for daily municipal
operations, including preparation of the annunal budget and appointment of employees. The city
manager supervises and coordinates the activities of the city's departments, attends city council
meetings, and makes recommendations on appropriate maiters of business. The city manager is
responsible for implementing the policies of the city council, advises the city council on the
financial condition of the city, and represents the city in business with other pariies.

The City of Statesvilie provides a wide range of services, including police and fire protection;
construciion and maintenance of streets and sidewalks and other infrastructure; recreational
activities and cultural events; sanitation collection; :planning and community development;
operation of a general aviation airport; and general administration. In addition, the City ownsg and
operates electric, water and wastewater utilities, and a civic center. Thig report includes all of the
City's financial activities in providing these services.
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Letter of Transmittal

As ;reqmred by GA.AF the Cnys fmanczal statements present all of the fmancztai activities of the
primary government (City of Statesville) and its two component units, legally separate entities for
which the City iz financially accountable. The City Council appoints members of the Alcoholic
Beverage Control Board and the Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureau. However, the City does
not participate in the managerial conirol of operations of either organization. These organizations
are included as discretely presented component units in the financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Statesville's financial planning and
control. As required by North Carolina General Statutes, the departments of the City are regnired to
submit requests for appropriations te the city manager no later than April 30 each year. The city
manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The city
manager presents a proposed budget to the city council for review no later than June 1. The city
council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no
later than July 1. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, and department. Budgets are
legally enacted by adoption of the governing board of an annual budget ordinance or a project
ordinance. The annual budget ordinance and project ordinances may be formally amended as
required by the governing board within the guidelines of the Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act. The city manager is authorized to reallocate departmental appropriations as he deems
necessary, and he may transfer appropriations between departments of the same fund with an
official report to the governing board on such transfers. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided
in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has
been adopted. A project ordinance is used to establish a2 budget for a project that extends over
more than one fiscal year. Project length budget-to-actual comparisons for each governmental fund,
for which a project length budget has been adopted, is also included in this repoxt.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriafions at the deparimental level for all annually
budgeted funds. Encumbrances ouistanding at year-end do not constitule expenditures or
liabilities. Qutstanding encumbrances are not broken out separately on the face of the balance
sheet but are included within the calculation of “Stabilization by State Statute” reported in the fund
balance section of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (Exhibit 3) and will be carried forward
with their budget appropriations to the subsequent year.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Statesville operates.

Local Economy. Statesville’s local economy has not been insulated from the effects of the national
economic crisis in 2008 and the subsequent slow recovery, described by leading econoimists as the
worst economic crisis since the Great Depression. At June 30, 2014, the unemployment rate in
Iredell County was down to 6.1%; a 2.4 percent decrease from the prior year and lower than the
state rate of 6.8% and the same as the national rate. Statesville’s economy has had some economic
improverment in the past year with fewer cutbacks in manafacturing production, and an increase in
consumer purchases by 4.2% from the prior year. Statesville is home to a wide range of businesses
from high-tech manufacturing to distribution and service industries, and is well-positioned to
benefit from an economic recovery and return fo stable economic base.

The City's economy also benefits from its exceptional transportation access with Interstates 77 and
40 connecting within its boundaries. Statesville's close proximity to Charlotte, Winston-Salem and
Creensboro and their international airports atiracis progressive businesses to the area's many
industrial gites. Rail lines and Statesville’s own growing municipal airport provide additional
transportation options.
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Lefter of Transmitial

_EL vanet"y of mdustnai emd busmess parks and sites throughom the Cli“}" provide focus points for
@conomic develcpmem The City has an effective economic development policy for recruitment of
business and industry to Statesville and partners with the Statesville Regional Development
Corporation to assist companies investigating new operations or expansions in the area,

In 2009, the City developed 2 five o ten-year land use master plan for its downtown and the NC
Highway 115 corridor. The purpose of the master plan was to maintain and enhance the aesthetic
appeal, access and impact of the historic downtown core and facilitate the redevelopment of the NC
Highway 118 corridor. In 2010, the City began construction on the first phase of the master plan
with a $5.8 million downtown streetscape project which includes bmprovements to the roadway,
streetscape, and infrastructure designed fo enhance the economic vitality as well as the visitor
experience of downtown. Phase H of the project {33.8 million) is under construction currently to
complete the downiown renovations and fnture phases are under consideration.

Construction is currently underway of a $24 million expansion of the City's Third Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant. This expansion is necessary to accommodate potential growth in the Third Creek
basin. The City is funding the sewer plant expansion with a low interest loan from the State
Revolving Fund. The City is also constructing a $4.8 million capital improvement at its Fourth Creek
Waste Water Treatment Plant. The City will finance the project through the State at zero percent
interest.

The City continues {o develop its general aviation airport in response to increased air traffic and in
preparation to atiract larger aircraft to the airport. Construction of a major airport runway extension
project was compileted in 2006-2008, in which the runway was extended to 7,000 feet and an
instrument landing system was installed. Rehabilitation and strengthening of the runway, taxiways
and apron was also completed. City leaders believe these airport improvements will continue to
create economic develepment oppoertunities for the City and Iredell County,

Long-teym Financial Planning. The City follows the statutory provisions of the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act in developing its annual budget. The City maintains an unassigned
fund balance in the General Fund above the minimum level required by the North Carolina Local
Government Commission of eight (8) percent; historically the City's unassigned fund balance in the
General Fund iz well above the average of cities in the same population group and zbove the
statewide average for all municipalities. This level of fund balance aids in maintaining adeqguate
cash flows, generates interest income, provides for the use of a pay-as-you-go capital policy,
eliminates the need for short-term borrowing, and maintains investment grade bond ratings.

The City maintains a capital reserve fund to accumulate resources for major capital outlays. The
City’s capital improvement program (CIP) is a six-year plan for capital egquipment and
improvements. Each year, the City Council adopts a CIP to identify and prioritize the capital needs
of the City during the upcoming fiscal year, plus five (8) planning years. The City avoids borrowing
for capital outlays by maintaining a pay-as-you-go policy and multi-year planning enabiles the City
to use the pay-as-you-go approach in providing for capital outlay needs.
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Letier of Transmitial

Awards and Bcknowledgements

The Government Finance QOfficers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievemant for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Statesviile, North
Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This
was the twenty-fourth consecuiive vear that the City of Statesville has received this prestigious
award,

In order to be swarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an eagily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirernents.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our curxent
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirermnents, and we are submitting it to the GFOA 0 determine its eligibility for another
certificate,

The City of Btatesville also received GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual
budget document for fiscal year beginning July I, 2014, This was the fourteenth consecutive year
that the City of Statesville has received this prestigious award. In order to gualily for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City's budget document was judged to be proficient
in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a
comununications device.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the assistance and
dedication of the antire staff of the Finance Department. A special word of thanks goes to Gene
Triplett, Assistant Finance Director, for his work on this report. We alse appreciste the coopearation
and assistance of other City departments. We would also like to express our appreciation to the
Mayor and City Council for their continued support and leadership in conducting the financial
activities of the City in a responsible manner.

Respegctfully submitted % f/\F
Y 1l

Lisa F. Salmon
Finance Director

Largg P. Pressley
City Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and the City Council
City of Statesville
Statesville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented compenent units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Statesville, North Carchina, as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this inchudes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the City of Statesville ABC Board. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinton, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the City of
Statesville ABC Board, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 1o financial
audits contained m Governmenial Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of City of Statesville ABC Board and
Convention and Visitor’s Bureau were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opimion. Ap audit alse includes evsluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Statesville, North
Carolina, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and for the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ and the other Post employment Benefit’s and Special
Separation Allowance Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages 67-68 and 69-70,
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, 1s required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economme, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Statesville, North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, statistical section as well as
the accompanying schedule of expenditures of expenditures of federal and state awards as required by U.S. Office
and Management and budget Circular A-133, Audiis of Siaie and Local governmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above and the report
of other auditors the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory information and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2014 on our
consideration of the City of Statesviile’s inter control over financial reporting and on our tests of iis compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contract, and grant agreements and other matters,. The purpose of that
report is to deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standords in
considering the City of Statesville’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Potter o Company, PA.

October 27, 2014
Mooresville, North Carclina

-
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIES
June 30, 2014

As management of the City of Statesville, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Staiesville for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014, We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this
narrative.

Financial Bighlights

& The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Statesville exceeded itg liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal vear by $202,618,753 (nef posifion).

s The City’s total net position increased by $706,370, primarily due to increase of $1,028,615 in
governmental activities from operating transfers and capital grants in transportation and a
decrease of $322,245 business activities.

= As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Statesville’s governmental funds reported
combiried ending fund balances of $33,174,168, an increase of $74,241 in comparison with the
prior year. Approximately 61.24% of this total ammount or $20,315,639 is available for spending
at the City's discretion.

= Af the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
320,318,639 or 73.40% of total Ceneral Pund expenditures and transfers out.

e The City of Statesville’s total debt decreased by a net amount of $765,678 {3.94%) during the
current fiscal year. The decrease is the result of the City’'s debt service requirementis.

= The City of Statesville maintained its AA bond rating from Standard & Poor's Rating service, and
its Al bond rating from Moody's Investor Service.

Orverview of the Financial S{atements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Statesville's
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial
statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the City
through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition fo the basic
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s
understanding of the financial condition of the Cify of Statesvilie.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 36, 2014

Required Compenents of Annual Financial Reports

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statemnents
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

k2

Summary Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements {Exhibits | and 2) in the basic financial statements are the GCovernment-
Wide Financial Statements. They provide both short- and long-term information about the City's
financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Staternents. These statements focus
on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s government. These statements provide more detail
than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the
governmental funds statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statemenis, and 3) the proprietary fund
statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the date contained in those statements. After the noies, supplemental
information is provided {o show details about the City’'s individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANZGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND SNALYSIS
June 30, 2014

Covernment-Wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, similar in format tc the financial statements of a private-sector business.
The government-wide statements provide shert- and long-term information about the City’s financial
statits ag a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have changed.
Net position is the difference between the City’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and
total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City's
financial condition.

The governmeni-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activities; and 3) component units, The governmental activities include most of the City's
basic services such as public safety, recreation and parks, and general adminisiration, Property taxes
and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those
that the City charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer and electric services
offered by the City of Stategville. The final category iz the component units. Although legally separate
from the City, the ABC Board and the Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureau are component units of
the City. The ABC Board and the Convention and Vigitors Bureau are important to the City because the
City exercises control over both boards by appointing their members.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits | and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements (see Figure 2) provide a more detailed look af the City’s most
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities ox obhjectives. The City of Statesville, like all
other governmental entities in North Caroclina, uses fund accounting o ensure and reflect compliance
(or noncompliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's
budget ordinance. All funds of the City of Statesville can be divided inio two categories: governmenital
funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic services
are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converied
into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year end that will be available for spending in the
next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which provides a short-term spending focus. As a resuli, the governmental fund financial
statements give a detalled short-terra view that helps the reader determine if there are more or less
financial resources available to finance the City’'s programs. The relationship between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds is described in & reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The City of Stategville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City,
the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide and
how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these
current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonsirates how
well the City complied with the budget crdinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSEION AND ANALYSIE
June 30, 2014

the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the
budgetary basis of aceounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as
the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by
the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3} the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between
the final budget and the actual resources and charges. The difference between the budgetary basis of
accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported
activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - The City of Statesville has two different kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer and electric
services and for its civic center operations. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Infernal Service
Fundys are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of
the City of Stategville. The City uses internal service funds to account for two activities - employee
health insurance and property and casualty Hability insurance costs. Because the associated costs are
predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service fund has been
included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used te account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. City of Statesville has two fiduciary funds, which are agencies funds. More
information about these funds can be obtained in the notes of the financial statements.

Kotes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full endersianding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements and ars
located after Exhibit 10 in the basic financial statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report includes certain reguired supplementary information concerning the City of Statesville's
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required
supplemeniary information is located after the notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

City of Statesville’s Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental i Business-fype
Activities Activities Total
20%4 3013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and cther assets % 38,668,606 $ 3D,324885 $§ 44,463,427 § 42,435,085 $ 83,332,123 & 81,760,070
Capital assets 74,601,752 74,800,736 87,431,811 77,519,346 182033583 152020582
Tota] assets 118,470,442 113825721 131,808,238 119,954,931 248368686 033,780,652
Long-term labilities outstanding 8,072,741 8,817,821 21,138,978 11,838,638 28,211,717 20,656,560
Other habilifes 3,542,087 4,071,698 9,687,010 6,703,143 13,198,067 16,774,841
Deferved inflows of resources 269,887 378,864 66,251 87,503 338,148 438,867
Total Habilities and deferred
inflows of resources 11,884,695 13,268,883 30,862,237 18,598,685 42,746,932 31,868,268
Net position:
Net invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 88,264,801 87,394,832 67,271,908 65,470,168 138,536,707 132,864,8G1
Restricted 11,824 487 11,764,881 - - 11,824,467 11,764,581
Unrestricted 21,496,485 21,387,025 33,761,094 35,888,077 58,287,879 57,283,002
Total net position 3 101,588,753 F$ 100,557,138 § 101,033,000 F3$ 101,355,246 $ 202,618,758 $ 201,812,384

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useiul indicator of a government’s financial
condition. The assets and deferred cutflows of the City of Statesville exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows by $202,618,7583 as of June 30, 2014. The City’s net position increased by $706,370 for the fiscal
yvear ended June 30, 2014. However, the largest portion of net position (88.88%) reflects the City’s net
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt still
outstanding that was issued to acquire those items and restricted assets. The City of Statesville uses these
capital assets to provide services to cifizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City of Statesville’s net investment in capital assets is reported net of the
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources,
since the capital assets cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City of
Statesville's net position $11,824,467 or (5.84%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $85,257,879 is unrestricted.

Aspects of the City’s financial operations that influenced the total unassigned governmentsl net
position:

s Consistent collections of property 1ax revenues by mainfaining a tax collection percentage of
86.85%.

o Continued low cost of debt due to the City's high bond rating.
« Ad valorem tax revenues increased 1.52% from the prior year to §12,329,5841.
e BSales taxes increased 4.21% ($221,688) due primarily to a slight economic recovery.

o (apital grants and contributions decreased $1,378,268 due primarily lack of qualifying capital
grants.

D
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS |

June 39, 2014

Uity of Statesvilie Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Governmental Govermmental Business-type Business-type
Activities Retivities Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,160,010 $ 2,256,266 $ BT,254,65C $ 54,713,247 § B5,484 860 $% 586,868,513
Operating grants and contributions 615,180 834,006 13,400 977,497 628,880 1,811,503
Capital grants and contributions 945,690 2,108,132 - - 946,680 2,103,132
Ceneral revenues:
Property taxes 12,329,641 12,144,774 - - 12,329,641 12,144,774
Other taxes and fees 7,117,780 6,881,962 - - 7,117,780 5,881,862
Grants and contributions not
resiricted to specific programs 2,316,788 2,608,518 - - 2,316,788 2,608,518
Investment earnings, unrestricted 311,881 (149,740) 375,822 {103,514) 887,403 (853,284
Sales and services not allocated - -
functions 178,411 238,313 - 334,988 175,411 873,301
Total revenues 28,973,381 F 26,917,232 57,683,572 55,922 218 83,656,863 82,839,450
Expenses:
General government 3,433,347 3,240,212 - - 3,432,347 3,240,212
Public safety 12,410,000 12,299,585 - - 12,410,000 12,269,885
Transportation 4,246,210 3,540,251 - - 4,246,210 3,840,251
Economic development 947,827 1,332,842 - - 947,827 1,332,842
Environmental protection 1,715,648 1,846,780 - - 1,715,643 1,846,780
Cultural and recreation 3,384,183 3,481,787 - - 3,384,183 3,481,787
Inierest on long-term debt 264,534 306,561 319,448 348,978 583,882 656,539
Electric - - 48,048,792 44,304,027 48,045,792 44,304,027
Water and Sewer - - 9,267,141 9,038,851 8,267,141 8,039,651
Civic Center - - 947,498 948,560 947,498 848,560
Total expenses 26,370,714 ¥ 26,047,718 56,579,879 54,642,218 82,880,523 80,688,034
Increase (decvease) in net position
before transfers and special items {397,323 868,514 1,103,883 1,280,002 708,370 2,149,516
Transfers in (out) 1,428,838 253,654 {1,4258,938) {253,654) - -
Increase {decrease) in net pogition 1,028,618 1,123,168 (322,245) 1,026,348 708,370 2,148,516
Net position, beginning of year 100,887,138 96,433,870 101,388,246 100,328,888 201,812,384 189,762,868

Net position, end of year

$ 101,685,753 §$ 100,587,138 § 101,033,001

$ 101,355,246

$ 202,618,754

$ 201,012,384
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSES
June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities - Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1,088,615
thereby accounting for the majority of increase in the net position of the City of Statesville, Key
elements of this decrease are as follows:

= Property taxes increased $184,867 or 1.52% from the prior year.
#  Salestax increased $221,685 or 4.21%.

= Capital grants decreased by $1,375,268 from the prior year.

= Governmenial expenses increased by $322,896.

v Transfers in was a net increased by $1,172,264.

Business-Type Activities - Business-type activities decreased the City of Statesville’s net position
by $322,2458. Key elements of thig increase are as follows:

= Charges for services and othey revenues exceeded expenses by $1,108,693. Charges for
services increased 32,581,408 or 4.72%. °This ig the result of a 5.00% and a 2.00% rate
increase for Electric and Water and Sewer services respectively. Expenses increased by
3.85% or $1,837,663 primayily due to a % wholesale electric rate increase.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Statesville uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Covernmental Funds - The focus of the City of Statesville's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Statesville. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $20,315,638 while total fund balance was
$24,828,738; a decrease of $774,317 from the prior year. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity,
it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 73.40% of total General Fund expenditures and
transfers out, while total fund balance represents 88.68% of that same amount.

At June 30, 2014, the governmental funds of City of Statesville reported a combined fund balance of
$33,174,168; a .22% increase from last year,

s General Fund expenditures exceeded revenues by $1,100,303; below the $5,248,229 in fund
balance appropriated.

o Operating transfers from other funds to the General Fund exceeded operating transfers out by
$325,586 plus non-major funds of $1,089,952 net increase from transfer in of $1,425,938.

o The net change in fund balances of other governmental funds increased by $848,5858 due
primarily to the capital outlay for downtown strestscape project.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

- General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal yvear, the City revised the budgst on
several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments
made ¢ adjust the estimates that are used {0 prepare the criginal budget ordinance once exact
information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amocunts from external
sources, such as feders] and state grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to
maintain services. Significant highlights of the General Pund as presented in a modify accrual basis are:

s« Advalorem tax revenues of $12,403,840 fell below budge! estimates by $102,164 or 2.17%.

e Other taxes and licenses of $6,288,278 exceeded budget estimates by $474,871 or 3.31%
primarily due to excess in sales tax revenues and hold harmless ag retail sales exceeded
expectation. _

= Unresiricted intergovermmental revenues of $2,316,788 exceeded budget estimates by
$141,788 due primarily to higher than anticipated utility franchise taxes. and-ABC revenues:

e Investment earnings exceeded budget estimates by $150,724 due to lower than expected
market value loss 0of $121,347.

s Expenditures were $3,686,237 lower than budget appropriations due primarily to incomplete
capital equipmen! purchases or capital improvement projects at year-end as follows: 1)
$465,402 in General Government for land acquisition and other capital costs, 2) $587,543 police
and fire, 3) $910,658 in Transportation for street operations and paving, 4) $147,153 in airport
improvements, 5) Economic development $428,761, 6) $487,567 in Cultural and Recreation for
greenway design and construction and other operating expenditures. The remaining amount of
$625,047 is combination of general governmental departments.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

O program revenues B exponses

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,0060

$8,000,000

%6,000,000

34,000,600

82,000,000

-

3
»%
Cﬁ&‘
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Bctivities

Proprietary Funds - The City of Statesville’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of
the Electric Fund is $18,023,833, and those for the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year
are $15,537,067. The net position of the Electric Pund increased by $738,788 and decreased in the
Water and Sewer Fund by $871,781 mainly from increase operating expenses.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Cily of Statesville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2014, iotals $162,033,863 (net of accumulated depreciation).
These assets include buildings, utility systems infrastructure, land, reads, machinery and equipment,
park facilities, and vehicles.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

City of Statesville’s Capitfal Asseis
{net of depreciation)

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Bativiiies Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Iand $ 21,708,487 $ 20,204,852 § 3,832,166 $ 3,832,156 § 25841643 § 24,128,708

Fresco - - 338,828 335,826 335,825 335,828
Buildings and

other Improvements 42,883,189 45,281,137 2,764,132 3,080,944 45,657,251 48,352,081

Utility plant in service - - 62,814,380 64,381,530 62,814,380 64,381,530

Vehicles 3,114,528 3,025,338 2,556,627 2,088,888 5,671,188 5,081,237

Construction in progress 6,884,578 5,813,708 15,128,721 3,823,483 22,013,299 9,743,201

Total $ T4,601,752 $ 74,800,736 § 87,431,811 § 77,519,848 $ 182,033,883 § 182,080,582

The figure 4 is net of accumulated depreciation. Additional information on the City’s capital assets
can be found in the notes at Roman Numeral I DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS, Section A, Number 4 of
the Basic Financial Statements,

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities

Cprogram revenues B expenses

$50,000,000 $47.531,83T g45-545-792

$45,000,000 -

$40.,000,000 -+

$358,000,000

$30,000,000 +—

$25,000,000

$20,000,000
$15,000,000

$9,468,112 $5,586,58¢

$10,000,000
$5,000,000 oo S

084,701 $¥%i,%00

B~ :
Eleciric Water and Sewer Civic Center
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June 30, 2014

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities

$80,060,000 AR Y

$45,000,000

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$18,000,000

$10,000,000 ‘ .
$3,628,264  $5,828,097 $284,701 $225,151

$5,000,000

Electric Water Sewer Civic Center Cther Interest

Charges Charges Charges Charges Operating Income
Revenues $375,522

$-

Long-Term Debt - As of June 30, 2014, the City of Siatesville had no general obligation bonded debt
outstanding. The remainder of the City's debt represents notes payable totaling $18,916,800.

City of Statesville’s Quistanding Debt

Figure §
Governmental Business-type
Activities Bctivities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Notes pavabis 8,398,200 7,822,800 12,518,700 12,045,877 18,916,900 16,872,877
% 6.398,200 § 10,087,300 % 12,518,700 $ 14,252,736 § 18,816,800 $ 18,672,577
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION END ANALYSES
June 30, 2014

The City of Statesville’s decreased its total debt by $785,677 during the current period. This net
decrease is the result of the City’s debt service requirements.

The City of Statesville maintained its Al bond rating from Mocdy’s Investor Service and AA from
Standard and Poor's Rating Service.

North Carolina General Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government car issue to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that
government's boundaries. The legal debt margin for the City of Statesville as of june 30, 2014 is
$238,887,982. The City of Statesville’s does not have any outstanding bonded debt being supported by
property taxes.

Additicnal information regarding the City of Statesville’s long-term debt can be found in the notes
at Roman Numeral II DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS, Section B, Number 7 of the Basic Financial
Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

& Revenue estimates contained in the City of Statesville's 2014-2015 operating and capital budget
were developed on a conservative basis.

¢« The City's assessed valuation for property taxes decreased 3.5% or $104 million from the prior
vear due primarily to a decrease in business personal property values, and the removal of four
extra months of motor vehicle values with the implementation of a new collection system by the
State for motor vehicle property taxes in the prior year. This is expected to reduce ad valorem
property tax revenues by approximately $433,004. Increases in sales tax revenues and the use
of fund balance appropriated for capital purchases will oifset the shortfall in property tax
revenues.

e Retail electric rates were increased a net of 2.0% to offset an increase of the same amount in
wholesale purchased power costs effective July 1, 2014.

s  Water and sewer rates were increased by 2.0% effective July 1, 2014 to provide for operations
and capital debt service obligations in the coming years for a8 major expansion project at one of
the City's sewer planis. The City's 10 yvear financial analysis of the Water and Sewer Fund
forecasts annual rate increases of 2% or growth in revenues by the same amount and use of
fund balance will be necessary for debt service requirements.

Reguests for Information - This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances
for those with an interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report
or reqguests for additional information should be directed to the Office of Finance Director, City of
Stateaville, P.O, Box 1111, Statesville, NC 28887-1111,
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014

Exhibif I

Primary Government

Component Units

Governmental Business-Type Convention&  Alccholic
Activities Activities Total Visitors Bureau Control Board
ASSETS
Current assots:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,470,383 $ 32,810,168 $ 66,280,882 % 11B,0BO % 178,032
Tax receivables, net 178,017 - 179,017 - -
Receivables, net 424 878 1.244,792 1,168,668 - -
Internal balances 710,751 (710,781} - - -
Interesi receivable 210,482 44,163 254,658 - -
Due from other governmenis 2,411,034 2,474,033 4,885,087 - -
Bue from other component units 7,428 - 1,429 - -
Inventories 31,027 1,638,502 1,670,828 - 488,178
Prepaid items 21,342 7,238 28,581 4030 -
Net pension assset 741,006 - 741,096 - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 61,249 854,281 915,830 - -
Total current assets 38,868,696 44,463,428 83,332,124 118,480 666,210
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land and other nondepreciable assets 28,584,085 19,208,703 47,880,768 - 235,050
Depreciable assets, net 48,007,687 48,138,108 114,142,785 - 1,360,527
Total capital assets 74,801,752 87,431,811 162,033,563 - 1,588,677
Total assets 113,470,448 131,895,239 245,365,687 118,480 2,561,787
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities:
Accounts payakie and accrued liabilities 1,665,888 7,173,448 8,838,337 18,183 321,634
Acerued Interest payable 32,443 28,880 62,323 - -
Due to primary government - - - - 7,428
Due to other governments - - - - 143,429
Deposits payable 8,738 854,281 860,016 - -
Current portion of long-ferm labilities 1,837,981 1,699,401 3,437,302 327 32,082
Total current liabilities 3,542,087 9,887 011 13,198,068 18,480 504,854
Long-term labilities:
Due in more than a year 8,072,741 21,138,876 28,211 .717 167 815,310
Tota] liabilities 11,614,798 30,798,987 42,410,785 18,647 1,319,864
Deferred Inflows of Resonrces
Prepaid taxes 36,394 - 36,394 - -
Unearned revenue 233,503 686,251 289,754 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 269,807 66,251 336,148 - -
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 68,264,801 67,271,806 135,836,707 - 788,838
Restricted for:
Stabilization by state siatue 6,282,768 - 6,282,789 - -
Public safety 60,845 - 60,845 - -
Transportation 1,316,672 - 1,315,672 - -
Economic development 444,247 - 444,247 26,833 -
Debt Service §1,249 - 81,246 - -
Capital outlay 3,884,888 - 3,689,885 - N
Other functions - - - - 183,181
Unrestricted 21,496,485 33,761,088 85,287,880 - (664)
Total net position $ 101,885,753 § 101,033,001 § 202,618,754 § 98,833 ¢ 941,823
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement Page 18



CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROILINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Functions/Programs

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation

Debt service:

Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Electric
Water and sewer
Civic Center

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Units Activities:
Convention & Vigitors Bureau
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Total component units

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 3,432,347 $ 46,977 $ - $ -
12,410,000 336,183 240,208 -
4,246,210 791,434 - 346,600
947,827 45 284,743 -
1,715,643 165,632 15,088 -
3,384,183 819,738 - -
264,534 - 105,131 -
26,370,714 2,160,010 618,180 846,690
46,045,791 47,531,836 13,400 -
9,586,589 9,468,112 - -
847,498 294,701 - -
56,879,878 57,294,649 13,400 -
§ 82980592 § 59,454,658 3§ 628,580 % 944,890
$ 177,696 8 1,788 & 160,088 $ -
5,196,837 5,195,350 - -
3 6374833 3 5,187,108 % 160,088 & -

General Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Local option sales tax

Other faxes - gross vehicle and hold harmless

Occupancy Tax

State share franchise, telecommunication, video and liquor taxes
Interest earned on investments
Miscellaneous revenue

Total general revenues not including transfers
Transfers in (out)
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Exhibit 2

Net (Eﬁxpense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Units

Convention & Aleoholic
Governmental Business-Type Visitors Beverage
Activities Activities Total Burean Control Board
$ (3,385,370 % - % (3,385,370) % ~ $ -
{11,833,609) - {11,833,609) - -
{2,808,0886) - (2,508,086) - -
{683.03%) - (683,039) - -
{1,534,813) - {1,534,813) - -
(2,534,414) - (2,534,414 - -
{159,403} - (159,403) - -
(22,648,834) - (22,648,834) - -
- 1,498,445 1,489,448 - -
- (118,477) (118,471) - -
- (B52,787) {652,797} - -
- 128,171 728,171 - -
{25.648,834) 728,171 (21,920,663) - -
- - - {15,853 -
- - - - {1,487)
~ _ - {15,8563) {1,487)
12,328,641 - 12,326,641 - -
8,491,182 - 5,491,182 - -
808,126 - 808,126 - -
aig, 512
2,316,788 - 2,316,788 - -
311,881 375,522 887,403 12 124
175411 - 178,411 - 1,363
22,851,811 378,822 21,808,821 12 1,487
1,425,938 {1,425,838) - - -
23,677,449 (1,080,418} 21,808,521 12 1,487
1,028,618 (322,245 708,370 (15,841} -
100,857,138 101,385,248 201,912,384 115,674 941,923
3 101,885,783 % 101,033,001 % 202,618,784 & 99,833 $ 941,023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GCOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Fune 30, 2014

Exhibit 3

BSSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net
Bccounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other component units
Restricted cash
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Labilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes
Prepaid taxes
Pelerred sccounts receivable

Unearned privilege licenses

Total deferred inflows of rescurces

FUND BALENCES

Non Spendable
Inventory
Prepaid items

Restricted
Stabilization by state statue
Public safety
Transportation
Economic development
Debt service

Comimitted
Capital outlay

Assigned
Subseguent year's appropriations

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, deferred inflows of
revenues and fund balances

Major Non-Major
Other Total
CGovernmental  Governmental
General Funds Pands
& 23,471,391 $ 8455648 & 31,827,038
779,017 - 179,017
338,741 85,138 424 876
30,663 11,299 41,962
2,344,268 55,004 2,385,352
7,420 - 7,429
61,249 - 61,249
31,027 - 31,087
4,280 - 4,280
$ 27,089,072 ] 8,607,176 35,676,248
869,555 172,870 1,041,825
869,555 172,270 1,041,825
779,017 - 778,017
36,304 - 36,3894
324,865 86,476 411,341
233,803 - 233,503
1,373,779 86,476 1,460,258
31,027 - 31,027
4,280 - 4,280
3,414,788 2,867,981 6,282,769
- 680,645 680,645
- 1,318,872 1,318,672
- 444,247 444 247
61,245 - 61,249
- 3,659,885 3,658,885
898,745 - 998,745
20,318,839 - 20,318,838
24,825,738 3,348,430 33,174,168
$ 27,089,072 % 8,607,176

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibif 3 {cont'd}

RECGNCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ¥O

GOVERNMENTAL BEALANCE SHEET - - -
“Fune 30, 2014

Bmounis veported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit 1}

are different because:

Total fund balance continued from Exhibkit 3

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financing resources and are not

reported in the funds,
Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation
Constrution work in process

The focus of governmental funds iz on short-term financing; long-term
assets are deferred in the funds.

Accrued property taxes

Pederal tax subsidy for debt

Net pension asset

Internal service funds are used by management to chaxge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. These assets and liabilities are included
in the governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources
in fund statements.
Deferred property taxes

Other deferred revenues

Not reported in the funds.
Interest payable
Compensated absences
OPER payable
Short-term debt
Long-term debt

33,174,168
110,341,021
(42,624,747)
6,884,578 74,601,752
166,508
11,663
741,096 919,264
1,643,382
779,017
411,341 1,190,358
(32,445)
(1,845,248)
(1,249,963)
(1,942,020)
(5,173,500) (9,943,171

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1)

$ 101,885,753

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHENGES IN FUND BALANCES

- GOVEENMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit 4

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Resiricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation

Capital ouflay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal costs

Tatal expenditures
Revenues {under) expenditures

OTHER FINENCING SOURCES {(USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources and (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of yeaz

Fund balances at end of year

Major Non-Major
QOther Total
Governmenial Governmental
General Punds Funds
$ 12,403,940 $ - & 12,403,940
6,299,278 818,512 1,117,780
2,316,788 - 2,316,788
1,070,142 488 345 1,839,487
447,208 - 447,208
1,670,309 9,830 1,679,938
278,724 71,3588 347,082
124,164 14,439 138,803
24,607,683 1,383,284 25,950,837
4,443,885 - 4,443,885
11,882,543 57,368 11,839,011
2,618,783 156,858 2,775,611
541,238 406,588 847,827
1,755,305 - 1,785,305
2,872,747 - 2,972,747
- 1,013,864 1,013,864
1,824,700 - 1,284,700
268,684 - 268,684
28,707,856 1,634,878 27,342,834
{1,100,303) (251,384) (1,351,687)
2,287,953 3,180,731 5,458,684
{1,871,967) {2,060,779) {4,032,748)
325,986 1,008,952 1,425,838
(774,317 848,558 74,241
285,600,055 7,498,872 33,089,827
$ 24,828,738 $ 8,348,430 $ 33,174,168

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of this statement
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Exhibit 4 {cont'd)
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
IO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended fune 30, 20i4

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities:
Total net change in fund balances-governmental funds {continued) 74,241
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because;

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. Howevez, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful levies and
reported as depreciation expense. This ig the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciated in the current period.
Capital ouilay 3,836,558
Capital Gain (loss) {93)
Depreciation expense  (3,874,206) 62,260

‘Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financing
resources are not reported as revenues in funds.

Change in deferred revenue for taX revenues (74,298)
Change in other deferred revenues 118,675
Federal interest subsidy {1,867
Change in net pension asset {51,309) {7,799)

The issuance of long-term provides current financing resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consames the
current financing resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounis are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount

is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and

related itermns.

Principal redemption 1,224,700
Accrued interest payable 4,148 1,228,848

Some expenses reporied in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financing resources and , therefore, are note reporied as expenditures in
governmental funds,

Compensated absences (167,629}

Other postemployment benefits (228,051} {398,580)
Net income of internal service funds determined to be governmenial-type. 66,642
Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 1,028,613

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of this staterment Page 25



CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA

Exhibit §

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES .

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENTUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Transportation

Economic and physical development

Environmental protection

Cultural and recreation
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal cosis
Contingency

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINENCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer - in
Transfer - (out)
Pund balance appropriated

Total other financing sources
and {uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Variance with

Final Budget-
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 12,506,104 $ 12,506,104 % 12,403,040 $ (102,164)
5,711,000 5,824,387 6,289,278 474,881
2,178,000 2,175,000 2,316,788 141,788
884,536 963,383 1,070,142 18,759
398,600 426,025 447,208 21,183
1,470,484 1,420,014 1,670,308 250,298
128,000 125,000 275,724 180,724
20,000 10,970 124,164 53,194
23,293,724 23,840,883 24,607,583 1,066,670
3,544,859 5,436,008 4,443,888 892,123
12,062,799 12,480,086 11,882,543 597,543
2,661,158 3,876,561 2,618,753 1,087,808
870,000 970,000 841,239 428,761
1,865,239 1,828,366 1,758,305 73,061
3,325,846 3,460,314 2,872,747 487,567
1,224,700 1,224,700 1,224,700 -
468,684 268,684 268,684 -
102,874 59,374 - 59,374
28,926,056 28,404,093 25,707,856 3,696,237
{2,632,332) (5,883,210 {1,100,303) 4,762,807
2,348,008 2,586,248 2,297,983 (288,985)
- {1,971,967) (1,871,987) -
286,323 5,248,228 - (5,248,229)
2,832,332 5,863,210 325,886 (5,537,224
$ - 8 - (774,317) %  (774.,317)
25,600,088

$ 24,825,738

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLIN

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2614

Exhibit 6

Enterprise Fundsg

Major Other Total Governmental
Flectric Waterand  Civic Center Enterprige Activities-
Pund Sewer Pund Fund Punds Internal Service
ESSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalesnts $ 15,062,916 $16,700,605 §$ 1,046,559 §$ 32,810,168 § 1,543,344
Accounis receivable, net - billed 3,885,478 788,311 - 4,383,786 -
Accounts receivable, net-unbilled 2,487,626 483,380 - 2,861,006 -
Due from other governments 9B 4658 2,375,660 2,908 2,474,033 17,068
Interest receivable 20,881 21,509 1,373 44,163 2,028
Restricted cash, deposity 834,281 - - 884,281 -
Inventories 1,478,174 161,328 - 1,638,802 -
Prepaid asseis 3,580 3,649 - 7,289 -
Total current assets 23,878,407 20,544,932 1,080,840 45,174,179 1,562,438
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land and non-depreciable 18,100 1,811,212 2,638,668 4,187,981 -
Capital assets, net of depreciation 20,842,980 44,279,436 3,012,682 68,135,108 -
Construction work in progress 478,878 14,649,144 - 15,128,722 -
Total capital assets, net 21,340,668 60,439,792 5,651,381 87,431,811 -
Total assets $ 44919,075 $80,984,724 § 6,702,181 §$132,605,950 $ 1,862,438
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued labilities  § 4,372,468 $ 2,778,768 § 22,213 % 7,173,448 8§ 628,804
Interest payable - 29,880 - 25,880 -
Customer deposits 854,281 - - 884,281 -
Deferred /prepaid revenues - - 66,251 686,251 -
Current portion of compensated absences 112,266 108,180 8,787 230,233 -
Current portion of long-term debt - 1,369,168 - 1,369,168 -
Total current Habilities 5,339,015 4 288,598 97,251 9,723,262 629,804
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 82,548 195,013 14,790 282,348 -
Other postemployment benefits 133,014 233,203 27,852 354,069 -
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt - 20,261,280 - 20,261,290 -
Monofill leng-term post-closure costs - 181,268 ~ 181,268 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 215 860 20,880,774 42,6432 21,138,878 -
Total liahilities 5,684 875 28,167,770 139,863 230,862,238 628,804
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 21,340,668 40,279,887 5,651,351 67,871,808 -
Unrestricted 18,023,832 15,837,667 910,847 34,471,848 832,631
Total net position $ 39,364,800 $85818854 § 5,562,298 101,743,782 & 432,631
Adjustment to reflect the consclidation of internal service
fund activities related to enterprise funds, (710,781)
Net position of business-type activities $ 101,033,001
“The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement Fage 38



CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
. PROPRIETARY FUNDS

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit 7

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Electrical operations
Electrical power purchases
Water and sewer operations
Civic Center operations
Health expenses and insurance claims
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Uperating income (loss)

NONOPERETING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
Intexgovernmental revenues
State utility tax, net
Pole attachment rental and leases
Sale of materials

Total nonoperating revenues (expense}

Income (Joss) before transfers

TRANSFERS IN {DUT)
Transfers - in
Transfers - (out)

Total transfers

Change in net position (loss}
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Change in net assets shown above

Adjustment to reflaect the consolidation of internal service

fund activities related to enterprise funds

Enterprise Funds
Major Othex Total CGovernmental
Electric Waterand  Civic Center  Enterprise Activities-
Fund Sewer Fund Fund Funds internal Bervice
$45,893,808 § 5254361 § 204,006 $58B4424B5 $ 4,183,691
1,228,988 179,366 808 1,408,889 -
47,123,886 9,433,727 284,701 56,882,414 4,183,691
4,012,008 - - 4,012,008 -
40,827,388 - - 40,827,388 -
- 6,680,803 - 8,680,803 -
- - 754,731 754,731 -
- - - ~ 4,117,910
1,211,830 2,888,369 183,842 3,880,750 -
46,060,932 8,278,172 948,573 56,278,877 4,117,810
1,073,084 157,855 (683,872) 576,737 65,781
168,680 195,863 10,878 378,822 16,108
- (319,449) - (319,449) -
13,400 - - 13,400 -
177,808 - - 177,808 -
189,381 34,388 - 183,768 -
70,662 - - 70,862 -
588,031 (88,1013 10,879 511,709 16,108
1,662,985 68,454 (642,893) 1,088,446 81,889
- 683,206 560,866 1,244,072 -
(924,198) (1,723,481) (22,361) (2,670,010) -
(524,198) (1,040,248) 538,508 (1,425,938) -
738,787 (871,791) {104,488) (337,492) 81,889
38,828,713 56,788,745 6,666,786 103,081,244 850,742
$30,364,500 $55816,054 § 6,562,288 101,743,782 _§ 932,631
{337.492)
18,247
3 (322,248

Change in net position - business-type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stafement
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Exhibit 8

Page l of 2
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA
STATEMENT OF CASEFLOWS
- PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 36, 2614
Enterprise Funds
Major Other Total Internal
Electric Water and  Civic Center  Enterprise Service
Fund Sewer Fund Pund Funds Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 45,832,018 3 9,220,883 §$§ 284,701 $55447.612 $ 4,183,681
Cash paid for goods and services (42,392,479} (3,378,117) (338,711)  {48,108,307) {3,887,070)
Cash paid to employess for services (1,575,294) {2,891,653) (383,836) (4,880,783) -
Customer deposits received 1,883,842 - - 1,883,942 -
Customer deposils returned (1,936,896) - - (1,836,898) -
Other operating income 1,229,988 178,366 - 1,409,354 -
Non-operating income 421,281 34,385 - 458,636 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,662,830 3,163,874 {425,846) 8,400,558 186,621.
Cash flows from noncapitfal financing
activities:
Transfers from other funds - 683,206 560,866 1,244,072 -
Transfers to other funds (8924,188) (1,723,481 (22,361) {2,670,010) -
Wet cash provided (used) by noncapital financing
activities (924,198} {1,040,245) 538,508 (1,428,938} -
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acqguisition and construction of capital assets (1,686,127y  (10,107,556) - {11,783,683) -
Proceeds from capital debt - 8,586,000 - 9,598,000
Principal paid on long-term debt - (1,485,770} - (1,485,770) -
Interest paid on long-term debt - {322,303 - {322,303) -
Cther and monofili activities - 2,827 - 2,827 -
Due to other governments - {944,298) - {844, ,208)
Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (1,686,127) (3,261,100) - (4,847,227) -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments (loss) 169,683 200,297 106,878 380,838 16,063
Net increase {decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 1,221,868 {837,174) 123,887 408,231 212,684
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 14,695,328 17,637,860 923,022 33,288,218 1,330,660
Cash and cash equivalents, fune 30 $ 15,917,196  $ 18,700,895 § 1,046,580 § 33,864,450 § 1,543,344
The accampanying notes are an infegral part of this statement Page 30



Exhibit § (conf'd)

Page 2 cf 2
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTHE CAROLINE
STETEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Enterprise Funds
Major Other Total Internal
Electric Water and Civic Center Enterprise Service
Fund Sewer Fund Fund Funds Funds

Reconciliation of aperating income to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 1,073,084 § 157,858 & (8B3,872) % 576,737 § 85,181
Add non-operating income 421,251 34,385 - 455,838 -
Adjusted operating income 1,494 305 191,940 {653,872) 1,032,373 65,781

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating acitvities:
Depreciation 1,211,838 2,585,365 193,842 3,980,750 -

Changes in assets and labilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 38,020 {33,468) - 4,882 174
Decrease (increase) in inventory (7,511) 2,274 - (8,287) ~
Decrease (increase) in prepaids {480) (3,648) 65 (4,074 -
{Increase) decrease due to other governments 488,563 (168,602) 5,223 325,184 -
Increase in accounts payable

and accrued liabilities 383,048 540,868 20,413 985,228 147,718
Increase (decrease) in customer depoesits and ppd reven 47,046 - 3,187 50,243 {17,082)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation absences {28,297} 6,885 - (19,442) -
Increase in other postemployment benefits 23,409 42,287 5,286 70,982 -
Total adjustments 2,168,224 2,871,834 258,026 5,368,184 130,840

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 3,662,029 $3,i63,874 § (425,846) $6,400,6687 § 188,621

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement
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Exhibit 9
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCLIRY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDE
June 20, 2014

Pensgion Uritity
Trust Donation
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 196,885 $ 784
Donation receivable - 383
Interest receivable 2588 1
Total assets & 197,123 $ 1,178
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - 8 -
Payroll payable - ~
Total liabilities - -
NET POSITION
Reserved for employvee's retirement and utility donations $ 187,123  § 1,178

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement Page 32



Exhibit 10
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
- . FIDUCIARY FUNDS o
For the Year Ended June 306, 2014

Pension Utility
Trust Donation
Fuand Fund
Bdditions
Employer Contributions $ 148,697 $ -
Utility Donations ~ 4,202
Invesiment income 1,818 i1
Total additions 151,616 4,213
Deduciions
Employee Benefits 120,944 -
Customer Assistance - 4,224
Total Deductions 120,844 4224
Change in net position 30,672 an
Net position, beginning of year 166,451 1,189
Net position, end of year $ 187,123 $ 1,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement - Page 33
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

L. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Statesville and its discretely presented component units conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Statesville is 3 municipal corporation that is governed by an elected mayor and an eight-
member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the City and its component units, legally separate entities for which the City is
financially accountable. The discretely presented component units described below are reportad in
separate columns in the City's financial statements in order o emphasize that they are legally
separate from the City. The discretely presented component units have a June 30 year end.

Discretely presented cormnponent uniis

City of Statesville Aicoholic Beverage Contrel Board

The City of Statesville Alcoholic Beverage Control Board {the “ABC Board”) operates within the City’s
geographical boundaries, exists for the benefit of its residents, and is governed by a City-appointed
governing board. The City does not approve the Board’s budget and does not select its
management. The City does not finance any of the Board’s deficits, but is entitled to receive 40% of
net income after deductions for required law enforcement, education, and proper working capital,
plus liquor-by-the-drink net income. The Board is presented as if it were a proprietary fund.
Complete financial statements for the Board may be obtained from the entity’s administrative offices
at the City of Statesville Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, P.O. Box 802, 311 South Center Street,
Statesville, NC 28677.

Statesville Convention and Visiiors Bureaun

The Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureau (the “CVB”) was chartered as the Statesville Tourism
Development Authority by S.L. 1588-112/House Bill 1568 of the 1888 session laws of the North
Carclina General Assembly, effective August 20, 1998. During the year ended June 30, 2003, the
Board, by resolution and change of by-laws, changed the name of the organization to Statesville
Convention and Vigitors Burean. The purpose of the Bureau is to promote travel and tourism in the
City of Statesville, The Statesville City Council appoints the Bureau’s nine-member board and
designates its chair. The budget of the Bureau is approved by the board of the Bureau and the
Statesville City Council concurs with the budget. The Bureaun is presented as if it were a
governmental fund., Complete financial statements for the Burean may be obtained from the entity’s
administrative offices at the Statesville Convention and Visiiors Bureau, 118 West Broad Sireet,
Stategviile, NC 28687.

B. Basis of Preseniation

Government-wide Staternents: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information zbout the primary government and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Elminations have been
made to minimize the effect of internal activities upon revenues and expenses. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-fype activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovermmental revenues and other non-exchange
trangactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to exiernal
parties. The statement of activities presenis a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different businesstype activities of the City and for each function of the City's
governmental activities.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

'I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
B. Basis of Presentation (conf'd)

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore,
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense aliccations that have been made in
the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
confributions thai are resiricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.
The effects of interfund activity have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds,
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary
and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statemenis is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining govermomental and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The fiduciary funds are presented
separately and are exchuded from the government-wide financial statements.

The City reports the following maior governmental fund:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, state and federal grants, and various other taxes and licenses.
The primary expenditures are for public safety, sireets, sanitation, recreation and parks, and general
government,

Proprietfy funds’ operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange iransactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies resuit
from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating revenues ave ancillary activities such as
investment earnings. The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund — The Electric Fund is used to account for the City’s electric operations.

Water and Sewer Fund — The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the City’s water and
sewer gperations.

Additionally, the City reports the following non-major funds:

Nop-major Special Revenue and Capifal Project Funds — Non-major funds account for revenues,
activities and capital projects for specific purposes. The City currently maintains eleven non-major
funds. Thev are Home Program Grant Project Fund, 1887-1988 Home Consortium Fund, Home
Consortium/CDBG Fund, Drug Enforcement Fund, Occupancy Tax Fund, Domestic Violence Grant
Fund, HEconomic Development Grant Fund, Warehouse Construction Fund, Streetscape Capital
Fund, Afrport Improvement Fund, and General Equipment Capital Reserve Fund.

Non-major Enterprise Fund — The Civic Center Fund is a nonmajor enterprise fund for civic center
activities such weddings, musical events, meetings, and other gpecial events.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQGLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 36, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
R. Basis of Presentation (cont'd}

The City reports the following fund types:

Infernal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds account for operations that provide services to
other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmaents, on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The City has two Internal Service Funds: The Health Insurance Fund and the Property and Casualty
Liability Insurance Fund. The Health Insurance Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s health
insurance plan and wellness program. The Properiy and Casualty hiability Insurance Pund pays all
logses below the deductible for general coverage, autc lability, workers compensation, policy
liability, public official’s liability, municipal eguipment and boiler and machinery. Each
department or division coniributes a defined share of premiums based upon respective exposures.
Other revenue sources include collection of subrogated claims and interest earned. Insurance
premiums, claims and costs are paid from the Fund,

Fiduciary Funds -~ TFiduciary funds include Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance, the Pension Trust Fund that is administered by the City. The City administers a Utility
Donation Fund that provides financial assistance to gualified City utility customers.,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carclina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Ciiy gives (or receives) value without direcily
receiving (or giving} equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property faxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Proprietary funds distinquish operating revenues and expenses
from non-operating items. Operating revenuss and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City enterprise funds and of the City’s
internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as
operafing revenue the system development fees that are reserved in the Water and Sewer Capital
Fund for future expansion. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets, All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Stafements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting., Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund lability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the exteni they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Procesds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES T'O YHE FINEANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICENT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
C. Measurement Foous and Basis of Accounting (cont’d)

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 80 days after year-end, except
for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable ave not accrued as revenue because the amount is
not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year, At June 30, taxes
receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to
be an available resource 16 finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of September 1, 2013,
State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered
motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, the State of Noxth Carclina is
responsible for billing and colleciing the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all
municipalities and special tax districts. Properiy faxes are due when vehicles are registered. The
billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were
billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for limited regisiration plates are shown as a
receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources,

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as
revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at
year-end are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds
certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants
and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and
urrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-
rermbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.

D. Budgetary Data

The City’s budgets are adopted as required by North Carclina General Statutes. An annual budget
ordinance is adopted for the General Fund, Occupancy Fund, and Enterprise Funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project ordinances are adopted for all other Special Revenue
Funds, the Capital Projects Funds and the Enterprise Capital Projects Funds. The City’s Health
Insurance Fund and Property and Casualty Liability Insurance Fund, internal service funds, operates
under a financial plan that was adopted by the City Council at the time the City's budget ordinance
was approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the deparimental
level for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for mulii-year funds.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations. However, in the related ordinance,
the City Council authorizes the City Manager to approve transfers between departments of the same
fund with an official written notification to the City Council. Department directors may reguest
unlimited transfers of appropriations within their department with the concurrence of the City
Manager and without governing board notification. Any revisions that alier total expenditures of any
fund must be approved by the governing board. During the yvear, several amendments to the original
budgets were necessary, the eflects of which were not material. The budget ordinance must be
adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers
that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. SUMMERY OF SIGNIFICANT ECCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

D. Budgetary Data (conf'd)

As required by state law, the City maintains encumbrance accounts which are considered to be
“budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the esfimated amount of the
expenditures ultimately toc resulf if unperformed contracts in process at year end are completed.
Encumbrances outstanding at vear end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. At June 30, 2014,
the General Fund, excluding project funds, had outstanding encumbrances of $1,017,854. The
enterprise funds outstanding encumbrances of $3,126,189 and project funds had $13,507,003 in
ouistanding encumbrances. These encumbrances outstanding are not reported in the fund balance
section of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds. Encumbrances are re-appropriated in the
subsequent fiscal year since appropriations lapse at year end.

E. Essets, Liabilities, Deferred Quiflows/Inflows of Resources, and Pund Equity

1

Depesits and Investments

All deposits of the City, the ABC Board, and the CVB are made in board-designated official
depositories and are secured as required by State law G.5. §159-31. The City, the ABC Board,
and the CVB may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings and loan association
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City, the ABC Board, and the CVB
may establish time deposit accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law G.5. §188-30(c) authorizes the City, the ABC Board, and the CVB to invest in obligations
of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United
States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain
high quality issues of commercial paper and banker's acceptances and the North Carcling Capital
Management Trust (NCCMT).

The City’s, the ABC Board’s, and the CVB’s invesiments with a maturity of more than one year at
acquisition and non-money market investinents arve reported at fair value as determined by
guoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7)
money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The
NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have
a remaining maturity at the fime of purchase of one vear or less are reported at amortized cost.
Non-participating interest earning investiment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, The City has invested in securities which are callable and which
provide for periodic inferest rate increases in gpecific increments until maturity, These
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Eguivalenis :

The City pools money from several funds to facilifate disbursement and investment and fo
maximize investment Income, Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand
depaosits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The ABC Board considers all highly
Liguid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. All CVB funds are considered to be cash and cash
eguivalents.
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CITY QF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

E. Essets, Ldabilities, and FPund Equity (coni’d}

3.

Restricted assets

Restricted assets are those funds that are held as deposits for future action of a third party.
Currently the City presents as restricted assets the utility deposits of $854,28] held by the Electric
Fund. The unexpended commercial loan proceeds issued by the governmental funds are
presented as resiricted assets because their use is restricted to the purpose for which the loans
were originally issued. As of June 30, 3014 $61,248 of unexpended loan funds was reserved for
debt payments.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State Law G.8. §108-347 and G.5. §159-13(a), the City levies and creates a Hen
for ad valorem taxes on july lst, the beginning of the fiscal year. These tazes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6™ The
taxes levied are based on the assessed values as of Janunary 1, 2013,

Allowance for Doubtful Accounis

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounis are shown net of an allowance
for doubtful accounis. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that
were written off in prior vears.

Inventory and Prepaid IHems

The inventories of the City are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the average cost
method. The inventories of the City’s General Fund consist of expendable supplies that are
recorded as expenditures as used rather than when purchased. )

The mmventories of the City’s Enterprise Funds consist of material and supplies held for
subsequent use. The cost is expensed with consumed rather than when purchased.

The inventories of the ABC Board counsist of supplies held for resale. The cost of these inventories
is recorded as an expense as the inventories are consumed or sold.

Ceriain payments fo vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods, are recorded
as prepaid items in both governmeni-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the
items are used.

{Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
a certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Minimum capitalization costs aze
as foliows: buildings, improvements, substations, lines, and other plant and distribution systems,
$28,000; infrastructure, $100,000; furniture, equipment and vehicles, $5,000. Purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Ceneral infrastructure assets
acquired prior to July 1, 2003, consist of the road network and sidewalk sub-network assets that
were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent fo july 1, 1980, and are
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives
are not capitalized.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES (cont’d)
E. Essets, Liabilities, and Fund Eguity (cont’d)}
Capital Assets (cont'd)

Capital assetfs are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:
Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Buildings 40 years
Infrastructure B0 years
Vehicles 6-10 years
Substations and distribution 20-40 years
gystem
Other improverments 28 years

Property, plant, and equipment of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a
straight-line bagis as follows:

Estimated
Lsset Class Useful Lives
Land improvements i5 years
Buildings _ _ 30 years
Furniture & equipment B-7 years

The Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureaun had no capital assets at june 30, 26142014,

8. Peferred outflowsfinflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Qutflows
of Resources, represents a consurmption of net position that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. In addition to labilifies, the statement
of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net positicn that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue
until then. The City has two items that meet the criterion for this category-prepaid taxes and
prepaid privilege licenses.

8. Dong-Ternm Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governinental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund {ype statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amozrtized
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond
Issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which
they are incurred, Prepaid insurance costs are expensed over the life of the debt. In fund financial
statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as weil as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amouni of debt issued ig reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources,
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. . Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

E. Bsseis, Liabilifies, and Fund Eguity (cont'd)

10, Compensated Absences

1L,

The vacation policies cf the City, the ABC Board, and the CVE provide for the acoumulation of up
io thirty days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the
City’s government-wide and proprietary funds and the ABC Board and CVB, an expense and a
liakility for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is
earned. The City provides its employees with compensated time at 1.8 times their regular rate in
lieu of overtime pay up to 240 hours. After the 240 hours have been reached, the employees are
paid overtime at 1.5 times their regular rate. Police and Fire earned holiday pay for those hours
worked on official holidays. The City's, the ABC Board'’s, and CVB’s sick leave policies provide
for an unlimited amount of earned sick leave. Sick leave for the City vests after 20 years of
service and an expense and a liability are recorded. Sick leave does not vest for the ABC Board
or CVB. The ABC Board and CVB have no obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually
taken; thus, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

Net position/Fund Balances

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position
represent constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, granfors,
coniributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In accordance with GASB 54, the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is
composed of five classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how
fund balance can be spent. The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance -~ This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (2) not in spendable form or (b) legally or coniractually required to be maintained
intact.

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents
the year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

Prepaid ltems - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents
the prepaid itemns for the next year's expenditures.

Restricied Pund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are resiricted {o specific
purposes externally impesed by creditors or imposed by law,

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statute G.8. §188-8(a).

Restricted for public safety — fund balance that is restricted for drug seizures funds and police
grants.

Regiricted for transportation — fund balance that is restricted for Powell Bill, streeiscape and
airport grants.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINENCIAL STATEMENTE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conf'd)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (cont’d)

10, Net position/Fund Balances (cont’d}

Restricted for economic development — fund balance that is restricted for home program
(HUD) and cccupancy fax funds.

Restricted for debt service — fund balance that is restricted for unexpended loan proceeds
from the Fire Station Construction Fund to be set agside for debt payments.

Committed Fund Balance —portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposzed by majority vote by quorum of City of Statesville’s governing body (highest level of
decision-making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purpose requires majority action
by the governing body. The City Council currently has not committed any fund balance from the
General Fund,

Assigned Pund Balance — portion of fund balance that City of Statesville intends to use for specific
purposes. Subsequent vear's expenditures — portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the
next year's budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body
approves the City’'s appropriations with a budget ordinance that lapse at the end of the fiscal
year.

Unassigned fund balance — That portion of total fund balance that is available for appropriation
which is uncommitted at year end, The City does not have a policy that provides a hievarchy of
spending.

I¥. DETEIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. HAsseis

L

Deposits

All of the deposits of the City, the ABC Beard, and CVB are either insured or collateralized by
using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposiis that exceed federal
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the City's or the
ABC Board’s agenis in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool,
all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the
name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the
City, the ABC Boarxd, and CVB, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's, the ABC
Board's and CVB’s agents in their names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an
approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for
interest bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the
adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not
confirm this information with the City, the ABC Board, CVB or the escrow agent. Because of the
inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the City, the ABC Board, and CVB
under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may
increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces
strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under
the Pooling Method. The City, the ABC Board, and CVB do not have policies regarding custodial
risk for deposits.
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Ii. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont’d)
A, Asseis (cont'd)
Deposits (coni’d}

At June 30, 2014 the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $4,854,581 and a bank balances of
$5,003,627. Certificate of deposits of $4,000,000 are included in the City's carrying amount of
$4.854,582. The City maintained $3,978 in petty cash and other funds. Of the bank balance,
$780,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $4,104,852 was covered by collateral
held by the State Treasurer’s "Pooling Method”,

At June 30, 2014, the Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureau's deposits had a carrying amourt
of $18,476 and a bank balance of $20,307 all of which was covered by federal depository
insurance.

At june 30, 2014 the ABC Board's deposits had a carrying amount of $178,032 and a bank balance
of $235,172. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance.
Amounts in excess of FIDC insurance are collateralized under the Pooling Method.

2. Investmenis
As of June 30, 2014, the City’s investment balances were as follows:

Less Than More Than
Investment Tvpe Fair Value 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 Years
S Government Treaguries $ 4008230 % 3,604,820 % - & 1,000,310
US Government Agencies 27,865,810 - - 27,868,910
Commercial Paper 14,968,262 14,865,262 - -
NCCMT - Cash Portiolio 15,688,803 - - -
Totals $ 62,835,208 % 17,070,182 3 - % 28,866,220

Credit Risk. To reduce credit rigk, the investment shall be diversified by (1) limiting investments to
avoid over-concentration in securities from a specific issuer or business sector, excluding U.5.
Treasury securities, and (2) Limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks.

Interest Rate Risk. To reduce inferest credit risk, the investments shall be diversified by (1)
investing in securities in varying maturities and (2) continuously investing a portion of the portiolio
in readily available funds such as a mutual fund for local government investment certified by the
Local Government Comimission pursuant to G.8. §155-30(c)(8), currently the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City's investment policy Hmits the amount that the City may invest
in any one issuer. Pederal agencies are unlimited on fixed security with no more than 20% of
portiolic in a single agency Mozre than 41.84% of the City’s investments are in Federal Farm Credit
Bank-13.47%, Federal Home Loan Bank-12.01%, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation-4.48%,
and Federal National Mortgage Association-11.87%. Percentage for the remaining portiolio is as
follows; sweep checking accouni-.89%, North Carolina Capital Management Trust-17.51%,
certificate of deposit-12.72%, commercial paper-20.87%, and U.8. Treasuries-5.87%.
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‘II. DETEIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. HEssets (cont'd)

Depaosiis {cont’d)}

Mark to Market. During 2013-2014, the City realized a fair value Joss of $121,347 and net pension
asset loss of $51,308. This amount takes into accounti all changes in fair value (including
purchases and sales) that occurred during the year as determined at June 30, 2014, Realized
interest ag June 30, 2014 was $334,847 for all funds.

At June 30, 2014, the Statesville Convention and Visitors Bureau had $88,608 invested with the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust's Cash Portfolio, The City of Statesville ABC Board had no

investments.

3. Receivables - Allowances for Boubiful Bccounis

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet and the statement of Net Position for the ended June 30,
2014 is net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts:

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2014 were as follows;

Accounts Taxes
Receivable Receivable Total
Governmental activities:
General Fund 3 812,731 $ 1,108,518 $ 1,821,247
Airport Improvement 1,341 - 1,341
Home Program 85,138 - 85,136
Total receivables 888,208 1,108,516 2,007,724
Allowance for doubtful accounts 474,332) (329,492) (803,831)
Total governmental activities 3 424,876 $ 778,017 % 1,203,833
Business-type activities:
Electric $ 6,504,260 3% - $ 6,504,260
Water 727,022 - 727,022
Sawer 1,080,518 - 1,090,518
Total receivables 8,321,801 - 8,321,801
Allowance for doubtful accounts {977,009 - {877,008
Total business-type activities: $ 7,344,792 & - $ 7,344,792
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| EE. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)

A. Essets (cont'd)

4. Capital Asseils
Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as foliows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Brildings
Computers and radics
Infrastructure
Equipment and furniture
Cther improvements
Radios and communications
Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated:

Less accumutated depreciation for:
Buildings
Computers and radios
Infrastructure
Equipment and furniture
Other improvements
Radios and communications
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmential activity capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Functions:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Environrnental protection
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense governmental functions

$ 231,752
597,668
2,484,835
98,375

411,880

7/1/2013 Additions Retirements Transfers 06/30/14
$ 20,204,552 $ 1,204,438 & - $ 210,800 % 21,709,487
5,818,708 1,208,477 - (244 ,807) 5,884,578
26,214,260 2,413,813 - (24,107) 28,594,085
18,820,626 - - - 18,820,626
373,861 - 67,435 - 308,428
51,474,312 893,438 - - 52,367,747
369,218 - 11,081 - 388,124
4,346,268 48,204 28,545 34,1067 4,400,120
305,130 - - - 308,130
10,684,554 828,371 235,664 - 11,074,261
87,373,966 1,867,100 342,735 34,107 88,632,434
5,854, 165 518,258 - - 8,372,423
207,07C 13,432 67,435 - 243,067
22,621,814 2,464,842 - - 25,086,656
331,440 21,897 16,068 - 342,038
2,018,656 319,894 22,851 - 2,318,698
305,130 - - - 308,130
7,653,215 836,182 235,664 - 7,988,733
38,087,480 $ 3,874,208 $ 336,948 3 - 42,624,747
48,286,476 46,007,687
$ 74,500,736 $ 74,601,782
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Y. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)

A. Essets (cont’d)

4. Capiial Assets (cont'd)

Changes in Business-iype Capital Assets - A summary of changes in capital assets foliows:

Electrie Fund:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land .
Construction work in progress

Total azsets not being depreciaied

Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant in service

Eguipment
Total capital assets being depreciated:
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant in seyvice
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Total Electric Fund capital assets, net

Water and Sewey Fand:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant in service - Sewer System
Plant in service - Water System
Eguipment
Total capiial assets being depreciated:

Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Plant in seyvice - Sewer Sysiem
Plant in seyvice - Water System
Equipment

Total accumnlated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Total Water and Sewer Fund
capital assets, net

7/1/2013 Additions Retirementis Transfers 08/30/14
& 18,100 5 - % - - b 18,100
865,248 617,031 - (1,002,702 479,877
883,348 817,031 - (1,002,702} 497,877
37,133,372 981,302 378,054 1,002,702 38,741,322
3,034,902 232,004 7,018 - 2,289,880
39,187,274 1,213,308 382,070 1,002,702 41,001,212
17,868,085 1,045,773 230,844 - 18,783,014
1,216,457 165,766 7,018 - 1,375,207
19,184,842 & 1,211,839 $ 237,860 - 20,158,281
19,982,732 20,842,991
3 20,866,080 & 21,340,668
$ 1,311,212 % - % - - $ 1,511,212
2,058,248 11,690,898 - - 14,649,144
4,269,487 11,690,899 - - 18,180,386
47,799,018 143,341 375,476 - 47,666,884
46,826,808 - - - 46,826,308
3,795,857 548,088 51,722 - 4,289,190
98,521,784 688,396 427,188 - 98,782,082
28,204,801 1,196,178 212,770 - 30,188,207
20,303,883 1,145,660 - - 21,449,543
2,673,984 243,833 51,721 - 2,868,796
52,182,668 $ 2,585,369 $ 254,481 - 54,803,546
46,336,116 44,279,436
3 50,808,873 $ 60,438,782
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II. DETEIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
A, Hssets (cont’d)

4. Capital Assets (cont'd)

7/1/2013 Additions Retirements Transfers 06/30/14
Civie Center Fund:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,303,844 $ - $ - $ - $  2,302.844
Fresce 338,825 - - - 335,825
Totzal assets not being depreciated 2,635,669 - - - 2,638,658
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,641,031 - - - 4,641,031
Improvements 244,808 - - - 244,808
Fouipment 361,682 - - - 361,682
Total capital assets being depreciated: 5,247,531 - - - 5,247,631
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,859,712 154,353 - - 1,814,068
improvements 138,183 16,321 - -~ 151,804
Ecquipment 248,112 23,168 - - 268,280
Total accumulated depreciation 2,041,607 $ 183,842 $ - 3 - 2,234,849
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,206,824 3,012,682
Total Civic Center Fund capital assets, net 5,845,183 8,681,381
Business-type activities capital assets,net § 77,519,846 $ 87,431,811

Construction Cormmitmenis:

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2014. At year end, the government’s
cornitments with contractors are as follows:

Yendor Description of construction project Amount
Two Way Radio of Carolina Radio system improvements $ 144,215
Maymead. Inc. Street paving $ BOB,2I5
Siemens Industry, Inc. Electric distribution system breakers $ 118,822
IBL Communications, Inc. Fiber optic installation $ 240,368
Altec Indusiries, Inc. Electric bucket truck $ 224,728
NC Dept. of Transportation 1-40/1-77 Interchange Project $1,470,882
McGill Associates, PA Engineering services, sewer plant improvement $ 783,770
Adams-Robinson Enter., Inc. Sewer plant expansion $8,9958,087
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II. DETEIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
A, Bssets (cont’d)

4. Capifal Assets (cont'd)

Discretely Presented Component Unils

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

7/1/2013 Additions Retirements Transfers 068/30/14
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land % 238,080 3 - % - $ - $ 235,080
Total assets not beinyg depreciaied 238,080 - - - 235,080
Capiial assels being depreciated:
Paving 17,666 - - (17,666) -
Buildings 1,649,468 - - 17,666 1,667,134
Purniture and equipment 319,273 26,427 - - 348,700
Intangibles 4,082 - - - 4,082
Tetal capital assets being depreciated: 1,690,458 28,427 - - 2,019,888
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Paving 17,666 - - {17,8686) -
Buildings 367,643 43,503 - 17,666 428,812
Purniture and equipment 205,313 22,688 - - 2R7,981
Intangibles 1,788 810 - - 2,568
Total accumulated depreciation 592,378 3 66,981 b - % - $59,388
Total ABC capital assets, net § 1,633,131 3 1,885,877
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¥I. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont’d)

B. Liabilities

1. Payables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Vendors Salaries &
IBNR Benefits Total

All governmental activities $1,150,840 $514,948 $1,685,888
Business-type activities:

Electric $4,334,082 $38,418 $4,372,467

Water & sewer 2,722,079 56,889 2,778,768

Civic Center 15,063 7,150 22,213
Total business-type activities $7,071,194 $102,254 $7,173,448

2. Pension Plan Obligations

a. North Carolina Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

1)

2)

Flan Description. The City of Statesville and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide
Local Governmental Employees’ Refirement System (LGERS), a cost-gsharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.
LGERS provides retiremernt and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
The CVE does not pariicipate in LGERS. Article 3 of G. 5. Chapter 128 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carclina General
Assernbly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Siate of North Carclina. The
Btate’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, Noxth Carolina 27698- 1410, or by calling (918) 9815454,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual
covered salary, The City and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. For the City, the cuwrrent rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement is 7.07% and for law enforcement officers is 7.28%, of annual covered
payroll. The contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the
North Carclina General Assembly. The City’s coniributions to LGERS for the years ended
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $878,319, $835,567, and $863,794 respectively. The
City’'s contributions to LEG for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were
$262,600, $232,866, and $245,135 respectively. The ABC Board’s confributions to LGERS
for the years ended june 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $27,6888, $23,895, and $25,819,
respectively. The contributions made by the City and the ABC Board equaled the
reguired contributions for each year.
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II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont’d)

B, ILiabilities

Pension Plan Ohligations (cont’d)

b. Law Enforcement Cfficers’ Special Separation Allowance

i)

2)

Plan Description. The City of Statesville and the ABC Board administer a public employee
retirement system (the “Separafion Allowance™), a single-emplover defined benefit
pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City’s qualified sworn law
enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .83% of the annual equivalent
of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject {o any increases in salary or
retivement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of
G.35. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly,

All full-time law enforcement officers of the City and the ABC Board are covered by the
Separation Allowance. At December 31, 2013, the Separation Allowance’s memberghip
consisted of:

City BABC Board
Retirees recesiving benefiis 1
Active plan members i8 1
Total a5 2

A separate report was not issued for the plan. The City uses a separate accounting fund,
the Pension Trust Fund, to account for the benefits of the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting ~ Financial statements for the separation allowance are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when
due and when the City has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. The
ABC Board has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a “pay-as-you-go” basis.
Benefits are recognized when due and are payable in accordance with terms of the plan.
For the current year the ABC paid $23,775 in benefits. The ABC Board has chosen not to
have an actuariai study performed because the Hability is considered to be immaterial.

Method Used to Value Investments — The Separation Allowance’s invested funds are part of
the City’'s pooled eguity and are reported at fair value. Investments are in United States
government agency securities, commercial paper, and the North Carolina Capital
Management is reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The ABC
Board had no fund set aside to pay benefits and administrative costs. These expenditures
are paid as they come due.
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II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)

B. Liabiiities (cont’d)

2. Pension Plam Obligations {cont'd)

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance (cont’d)

%)

Contributions — The City i required by Article 12D of G.8. 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments by making contributions based on
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the City did not fund annual required
contribution. No contributions were made by the employees. The City’s obligation to
contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. Administrative costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through
imvestment earnings.

The annual required coniribution for the current year was determined as part of the
December 31, 2012 actnarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included: (a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.25% to 7.85%
per year. The inflation component was 3.00%. The assumptions did not include post-
retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the fair
value of investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a
level dollar amount on a clesed basis. The remaining amoztization periocd at December
31, 2012 was 18 years.

The ABC Board is required by Article 12D of G.8. 143 to provide these retirement benefits
and has chosen to pay benefits and administrative cosis on a "pay-as-you-go’” basis. No
contributions were made by employees. The ABC Board’s obligation to make these
payments is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset — The City's annual pension cost and net
pension asset of the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Emplover annual reqguirved contribution $138,768
Intevest on net pension asset {39,620)
Adijustment to annual required contribution 64,559
Arnual pension cost 163,707
Employer contributions made for fiscal year 112,398
Increase (decrease) in net pension assets 651,308
Net pension assets, July 1, 2013 792,405
Net pension assets, june 30, 2014 $741,096
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II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)

B. Liabilities (cont'd)

2. Pension Plan Obligations (contd)

b. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance {cont’d)

Three-Year Trend

5)

Information Percentage of Net Pension
Annual Pension APC Asset at End of
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (BPC) Contribuied Year
June 30, 2012 $144,927 98.60% $826,283
june 30, 2013 $152,220 15.77% $792,408
June 30, 2014 $163,707 68.66% §741,006

Funded Status and Funding Progress.

As of December 31 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued
lability (UAAL) was $1,088,986. The covered payroll {(annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $3,458,616, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
31.48 percent. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing
over time relative {o the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

1y

a)

Plan Description. The Ciry and the ABC Board contributes {o the Supplemental Retirement
Income Plan (Plan), a defined coniribution pension plan administered by the Department
of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides refirement benefits to law
enforcement officers employed by the City and ABC Beoard. Article 5 of G.5. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions {o the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of
North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for
the Internal Eevenue Code Section 401(k} plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement
Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That repori may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, Noxth Carclina 27689-
1410, or by calling (819) 581-5454,

Funding Policy. Axticle 12E of G. 8. Chapter 143 reguires the City to contribute each
month an amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts
contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Coniributions for the year ended fune 30, 2014, were
$407,345, which consisted of $181,044 from the City and $266,308 from the law
enforcement officers. The City provides a Section 401(k) plan for this purpose. The ARC
Board’'s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $18,188.

Page 53



CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIBL STATENMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20i4

- I1. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. Liabilities (cont’d)
2. Pension Plan Gbligations {cont'd)
d. Firefighter’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

I} Plan Descripion. The State of North Carclina contributes, on behalf of the City of
Statesville, to the Firefighter's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund}, a cost-
shaving multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation
administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits for
eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the fund.
Article 86 of G.8. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions 1o the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firefighter’s and Rescue Squad
Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the State of North Carolina, The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Fund. the Office of the State Controller, 1410
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (918) 981-5454,

2) Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund, $8
per month of which the City elects to contribute for the member. The State, a non-
employer funds the plan through appropriations. The State’s on-behalf payments are
recorded as revenues and expenditures in the City's financial statements. Coniribution
requirements of plan members and the Staie of North Carclina are established and may
be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. For the fiscal year ended june 30,
2014, the City has recognized on-behalf-of payments for pension contributions made by
the state as revenue and an expenditure of 3388 for 72 fire department employees who
perform firefighting duties for the City’s five department.

3. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
a. Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description. The City is required to perform an OPEB actuary every two years. The
information presented below is from the December 31, 2012 actuary. Under the terms of a City
resolution, the City administers a single-employer defined benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (the
HCB Plany. As of july i, 2012, a participate must be eligible and approved to receive retirement
benefits in accordance with the regulations of the North Carolina Lecal Governmental Employees’
Retirement System (WCLGERS} and have thirty (30) vears of service or attain age fifty-five (55)
with twenty (20) years of service. Participating retired employees are required to pay for
coverage based on the City's current funding rates for the group as determined by the third party
adminisirator. Health care and prescription drug coverage are available to eligible retirees
under age 658. Denial coverage is available at the retirees’ expense. The retiree may continue
dependent coverage (and pay the full cost of this coverage) if enrolled in dependent coverage at
the time of retirement. Dependeni coverage terminates upon the spouse becoming eligible for
Medicare, upon the refiree becoming eligible for Medicare, or upon the retivees’ death,
whichever comes first. Retired employee members are 13 and active employee’s membership of
the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2012, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:
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1L, DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. Liabilities (cont'd)
Gther Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (cont’a)

a. Healthcare Benefits (cont)

GCeneral Business-type Lavwr
Description Government Activities Enforcement
Terminated plan members entitled to but
not receiving benefiis 0 0 0
Active plan members 219 93 18
Total 219 93 i8

|

Funding Policy. The City does not fund the ARC. The City does not offer additional health
benefits to retirees beyond aliowing them to participaie in the City’s group health plan at
curreni rates at their cost. The current ARC rate is .50% of annual covered payroll

Summary of Significant Accounfing Policies. Postemployment expenditures for retirees are
made from the Group Health Self-insurance fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These
expenditures are paid as they come due. See note 5 for more detail on the City’'s Group
Health Plan.

Annual OPER Cost and Net OPER Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liahilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City’s
annual OPEB cost for the year and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for the
healthcare benefits:

Annual OPEB Cost and Net GPEB Obligation for Fiscal Year Ending 66/30/2014:

Employer annual required contribution 3 297,155
Valuation Discount Rate 4.00%
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation: 41,838
Amortization Factor 28.1895
Adjustment to Annual Recuired Contribution: 30,968
Annual OPER Cost: 299,028

Employer Contributions for Fiscal Year Ending 06/30/2014 -

Increase {decrease in Net OPEB Obligation: % 298,029
Net OPERB Obligation Beginning of Fiscal Year 1,345,003
Net OPER Obiligation End of Fiscal Year: $ 1,644,032
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i1. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. lLiabilities (c.:on.t’d) | o
3. Other Postemployment Benefits {OPER) (cont)
a. Healthcare Benefits {cont}

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation is as follows:

Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Ended Annual Pension APC Oligation at
Jjune 30 Costs (APC) Contributed End of Year
2011 $227,882 0.00% $ 748,083
2012 $289,318 0.00% $ 1,045,874
2013 $299,029 0.00% $ 1,345,003
2014 $289,029 0.00% $ 1,644,032

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2012, the plan was not funded and
the retirees pay the enfire health premium as recommended by the City's third party
administrator. The actuarial accrued lakility for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial
accrued lability (UAAL) was $895,690. The covered payroll {(annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $15,515,514, and the ratio of the UBAL to the covered
payroll was 5.80 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. Examples include assumptions asbout future employmeni, mortality, and
heaithcare trends. Amounis determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual reguired contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
resulis are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future,
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyvear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan asseis is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Hctuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the emplover and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical patiern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the December 31,
2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unii credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer’s cwn
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an
annual medical cost trend increase of 8.80 to 5.00 percent annually. Both rates included 2 3.00
percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
over a 8 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payrolls on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013, was 30
Vears.
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Ii. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. Liabilifies (conf'd)
3. Other Employee Benefits

Life insurance. The City has also elected o provide death benefits to employees through the
Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local Government Employee’s Retivement System (Death
Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year
term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retizrement or
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership zervice in the
System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Intmp sum death benefit paymenis to
beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months
prior to the employee's death, but the benefii may not exceed %$50,000 or be less than $25,000.
The City also provides additional term life insurance and any amounts over $80,000 term life
insurance limit is considered taxable, Bll death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit
Plan. The City and the ABC Board have no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions.
Comntributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payrolls, based upon rates established
annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and
for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan
and not by the City and the ABC Board, the City and the ABC Board does not determine the
number of eligible participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the City was exempt
from contributions to the State for death benefits. When the City's exemption is reinstated, the
ciurrent required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers represented .10% and .14% of covered payroll, respectively. The death
benefit payment will resume for fiscal year 2016, The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan
cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

4. Deferred / Unearned Revenues ~ {General Fund and Home Consertium Fund)

Deferred inflows of rescources at June 30, 2014 is comprised of the following:

Unavailable Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Taxes receivable {General Fund) $ 178,017 $ -
HAccounts Receivable 411,341 -
Prepaid taxes (General Pund) - 36,384
Prepaid privilege licenses - 233,803
Total governmenital activities $ 1,190,358 $ 265,897

5. Risk Managernent

a. (eneral Liability, Surety Bonds, Property Insurance and Auto Liability. The City is exposed to
various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases various insurance
policies, including general Hability and auio liability coverage of $4 million per occurrence,
property coverage of $105,872,2056 per occurrence (after & $10,000 deductible). The City
carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss, There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and setiled claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City’s flood insurance is $1,000,000 with a
$50,000 deductible. The Finance Director and the Tax Collector are bonded for $250,000 and
$50,000 respectively.
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© UL DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. Liabilities (coni'd)
& Risk Management (cont'd)

b. Self-funded - Group Health. The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to medical and
illness needs of employees. The City and employees participate in a cost-share plan for group
health insurance. The City established the Health Insurance Fund (Internal Service Pund) fo
account for its seli-insurance plan. The City has coniracted with the Aetna to administer the plan.
The City ig responsible for claims up to $180,000 per covered employse/dependent per policy
term. Claims greater than $180,000 per covered employee/dependent per policy term, and those
in excess of the aggregate stop loss of 125% of expected net claims, are insured by the private
insurance carrier. All employees of the City participate in the program and make payments to the
Health Insurance Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounis needed to pay claims. The
claims liability of $376,638 reported in the fund at June 30, 2014 is based on the requiremenis of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which recuires that a lability for
cleims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. The $376,638 claims liability represents total estimated
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), as provided by the plan administrator’s actuary.

June 30
2014 2013

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
at beginning of fiscal year $ 373,306 $ 350,968
Add:
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:

Provision for insured events of current yeay including IBNR 3,606,298 3,546,813
Less:

Claims and adjustment expenses attributable to insured events

current and prior years 3,602,966 3,824,476

Total Clabms Ldability $ 376,838 $ 373,306

c. Self-funded Worker’s Compensatfion. The City is self-funded for worker’'s compensation.
Through this self-funded workers compensation program, the City obtains workers’ compensation
coverage up to the statutory limits, with no deductible. The worker's compensation program is
administered by a third party administrator. The fund is zeinsured through an insurance company
for single occurrence losses of $400,000 for all City employees, The claims liability of $118,287
reported in the fund at June 30, 2014 is based on the requiremenis of Govermnental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior financial statements indicates that it is probable that 2 Hability has been incurzed
at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reazonably estimated. The
$118,287 claims liability represents total estimated claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), as
provided by the plan administrator's actuary. The reduction of IBNR from the previous fiscal vear
was the result of a settlement with one of the employees.
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- II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont’d)
B. REiabilities (coni’d)
8. Risk Management

c. Self-funded Worker’'s Compensation {cont’d}

June 30 june 3G
2014 2013
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
at beginning of fiscal year & 82,237 $ 133,880
Add:
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of current year including IBNR 479,443 122,807
Less:
Claims and adjustment expenses atiributable to insured events
current and prior years : 361,156 173,810
Total Claims Liability $ 200,524 $ 82,237

8. Claims and Judgments

At June 30, 2014, the City was a defendant to various lawsuits; however, no provision has been
made in the financial statementis for any contingent liabilities. In the opinion of the City's
management and the City attorney, the ultimate outcome of these legal maiters will not have a
material adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

7. Long-Term Obligations

The City of Statesville maintained its Al bond rating from Moody's Investor Service and AA from
Standard and Poor’s Rating Service.,

a. General Obligations Indebtedness. The City has redeemed its last general obligation bond in
fiscal year 2014.

b. Notes Payable. The City has three outstanding bank loans of which two are Recovery Zone
Economic Development bonds payable to Branch Banking & Trust Company (BB&T) and another
one payable to Bank of American. The City receives a subsidy of 45 percent of interest cost from
the Federal Government that will reduce the effective interest rate of the bond. The Federal
Covernment sequester has impacied the 45 percent subsidy by reducing their subsidy by the
requirements of the Balanced Budget and Emergency Deficit Control Act of 1885, as amended,
certain antomatic reductions tock place as of March 1, 2013, These required reductions included
a reduction to refundable credits under Internal Revenue Code section 6431 applicable to certain
gualified bonds. As a result, the City's refundable credit payment was reduced by 8.7%. The
sequestration reduction rate will be applied until the end of the Federal {iscal year (September
30, 2013) or intervening Congressional action, at which time the sequestration rate is subject to
change.
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11, DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B, Ldabilities {cont’d)
1. Long-Term Obligations {coni’d)
Notes Payable {cont’d)

¢. Loan authorized but nof finalized. The City was approved by the State of North Carclinag’s
Department of Environment and Natural Resources “State Revolving Fund” two loans in the amount
of $20,833,500 on May 28, 2014 at an interest rate of 2.00% and $4£,800,000 on August 18, 2014 with
a no interest rate to be used for sewer treatment plant expansion and improvements. Total amount
borrowed as of June 30, 2014 is $5,111,788. The maximum loan term is 20 years.

Serviced by the General Fund:

Original izsue $7,000,000, Recovery Zone Economic Development bonds
payable to Branch Barking & Trust Company (BB&T) in 10 annual installments
of $700,000 beginning in December 16, 2011 through 2020 plus interest at 3.50
percent. The City receives a subsidy of 45 percent of interest cost from the
Federal Government reducing the effective interest rate to 1.83 percent. The
note is secured by & Deed of Trust. $4,900,000

Original issue $1,947,000, Recovery Zone Economic Development bonds

payable to Bank of American in 10 annual installments of $184,700 beginning

in Mazch 8, 2011 through 2020 plus interest at 5.03 percent. The City receives

a subsidy of 45 percent of interest cost from the Federal Government reducing

the effective interest rate to 2.77 percent. The note is secured by a Deed of 1,168,200
Trust.

3.30% note payable to PNC Bank formeriy RBC Ceniura Bank in 10 annual
installments of $330,000 beginning in September 2008 through 2014, plus 330,000
applicable interest. The note is secured by a Deed of Trust.

Total general governmental notes payable 6,358,200

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund:

2.60% note payable to the state of North Carclina Drinking Water State
Revolving Loan Fund in 18 annual installments of $150,000 beginning in 2004
through 2022, plus applicable interest. 1,200,000

2.87% note payable to the state of North Carolina Drinking Water State
Revolving Loan Fund in 18 annual installments of $123,403 beginning in 2004
through 2023, plus applicable interest. 1,110,825

2.86% note payable {o the state of North Carclina Drinking Water State
Revolving Loan Fund in 20 annual installmments of $728,127 beginning in
2007 through 2028, plus applicable interest, 8,737,623

Total North Carolina Drinking Water State Revolving 11,048,148
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II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont'd)
B. Liabkilities (cont'd)
1. Long-Tenm Obligations (cont'd)

Service by Water and Sewer Fund:
No interest loan due to the State of North Caroclina Department of Transportation
for water and sewer relocation I-77/1-40 interchange. Beginning 08/30/2013 to 08/30/2017.

Total NCDOT 1,470,882

Total Cuistanding Debt $18,816,900

As of June 30, 2014 the City does not have any ouistanding general obligation bonds with the finsl
redemption occurring in fiscal year 2014. The following table summarizes the annual requirements to
amortize all long-term debt cutstanding:

Notes Payable Total Debt
Principal Interest Payment
Covernmental activities:

20158 $ 1,224,700 $ 223,800 $ 1,448,200
2018 894,700 183,717 1,078,417
2017 894,700 149,424 1,044,124
2¢18 894,700 118,130 1,009,830
2019 894,700 80,837 915,837
2020-2021 1,694,700 58,793 1,653,493
Total Governmental 6,388,200 811,401 7,209,601

Business-tvpe activities - Water and Sewer Fund:

2018 1,389,168 285,493 1,664,661

2016 1,368,188 288,883 1,637,851

2017 1,389,168 241,873 1,611,041

2018 1,369,188 215,064 1,584,232

2018 1,001,830 188,264 1,188,784
2020-2024 4,584,245 543,021 5,127,266
2028-2026 1,458,253 58,108 1,514,388

Total Business-type 12,518,700 1,810,482 14,329,192
TOTAL DEBRT $18,816,800 $23,621,8584 $21,838,794

The ABC Board’s annual report dated June 30, 2014 reported the following outstanding long-term debt:

The ABC Board has a note payabile with a bank secured by real estate. At June 30, 2014 the outstanding
bhalance was $808,256. Monthly payments of principal and interest are $5,539 per month. The note bears
interest rate of 4.125% per annum. Maturity is May 24, 2016. The maturities are as follows:

2015 $ 33,429
2016 $771,813
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II. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont’d)
B. Idabilities (cont'd)
1. Long-Term Obligations (coni’d)

The ABC Board’s accunmmulated vacation at June 30, 2014 was $43,484. The current portion of the accumulated
vacation pay is not considered material. The CVE's accumulated vacation at June 30, 2014 was $494.

City accounting policy requires that each separate operating fund, those listed below, fully fund or be
obligated for their accrued compensated absences. Upon employee's termination, the operating funds
provides for the funds to pay the compensated absences,

City's General Fund is obligated to fund the Law Enforcement Separation Allowance that has a mark to market
asset of $742,405 and currently has full funded this obligation. Since the City doeg not fund other
postemployment benefit obligations, the operating funds are allocated those costs based on the number of

employvees.

The following is & summary of changes in general long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014:

Current Long-term
Balances Balances Portion of Portion of
07/01/13 Additions Decreases 06/30/14 Balance Balance

Covernmental activilies:

Notes Payvable $ 7,822,900 % - $1,224.700 % 6,388,200 $1,224,700 § 5,173,500

Compensated absences 2,081,879 703,834 B22,848 Z2.262,565 813,281 1,646,274

OPER Obligation 1,021,818 228,051 - 1,248,967 - 1,248,967
Total governmental activities: $ 10,726,688 § 031,885 $1,747,848 $ 9,910,732 $1,837,991 $ 8,072,741
Business-type activities:
Electric Fund:

Compensated absences % 221,110 § 39,117 $ 125,415 % 184,812 § 112,268 % 82.548

OPEB Obligation 109,608 23,409 - 133,014 - 133,014
Total Electric Pund 3 330,718 % 122,826 § 125415 & 227,826 § 112,266 &% 215,360
Water and Sewer Fund

Notes payvable $12,049,677 $11,068,551 $1,485,770 $21,830,458 $1,3688,168 $20,261,280

Compensated absences 287,337 112,808 108,782 304,163 109,180 195,013

OPEB Obligation 180,818 432,287 - 233,203 - 233,203

Monofill closure 188,441 2,837 - 191,268 - 161,268
Total Water and Sewer Fund § 12,726,371 $11,224,273 $1,501,822 $22,388,122 $1,478,348 $20,880,774
Civie Center Fund

Compensated absences  § 20,381 % 10,388 % 7,188 % 23,877 B 8,787 % 14,730

OPEB Obligation 22,568 5,286 - 27,882 - 27,882
Total Civie Center Fund 3 42,947 B 15,87F % 7,188 % 81,428 % 8,787 &% 42,542
Total business-type activities $ 13,100,033 $11,362,470 & i,?Bé,lZG % 22,738,377 $1,5908,401 $21,138,876

At June 30, 2014, the City of Statesville’s legal debt margin is $23%,887,882.
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Ii. DETAIL NOTES ON ELL FUNDS (cont’'d)
C. Interfund Balances and Activity

Transfer to/from are for payment in lieu of taxes, for administrative charges, and for capital
expenditures. The interfund loans are for covering reimbursable grants to prevent cash deficits in the
grant funds.

Transfers to/frora at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

From the Electric Fund to the General Fund for payment in lieu of taxes. § 225,492
From the Water & Sewer Fund to the General Fund for payment in lieu of taxes. 488,874
From the Civie Center Fund to the General Fund for payment in lieu of taxes. 23,361
From Occupancy Tax Fund to the General Fund for Administration 18,188
From Drug Enforcement Fund to the General Fund for capital and other. 30,616
From General Capital Reserve to General Fund debt service 801,082
From General Capital Reserve to General Fund real property (Bustle) 152,822
From Ceneral Capital Reserve to General Fund street flusher 125,000
From General Capital Reserve to General Fund rear lead packer 162,251
From General Capital Reserve to General Fund computers 40,000
From General Capital Reserve to General Pund Fulton Drive sidewalks 21,400
From General Capital Reserve to General Fund Fulton Drive other capital 148,876
From the General Fund to Streetscape Fund 1,821,838
From the General Fund to Airport Improvement Fund 1,128
From the General Fund to Home Consortium/CDBG Fund 1,918
From the General Fund to Domestic Vioclence Grant Fund 29,388
From the Electric Fund to General Fund 28,687
From the Water and Sewer Fund to General Fund 28,656
From the Electric Fund to the Streetscape Project 866,048
From the Water and Sewer Fund to Streetscape Project 522,718
From Occupancy Tax Pund to the Civic Center Fund 560,868

$ 6,002,550

Transfers are used to move unresiricted revenues to finance various programs that the government
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts
provided maiching funds for various grant programs.

D. Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses
I, Omn-Behalf-of Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the City has recognized on-behalf-of payments for
pension contributions made by the state as revenue and an expendiiure of $369 for 73 fire
department employees who perform firefighting duties for the City’s fire department. The
employees elected to be members of the Firefighter’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund,
a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public retirement gystem established and adminisiered by the
state of North Carolina. The plan is funded by a $10 monthly coniribution paid by each member
{of which the City paid $5 in the most current year), investment income, and a state appropriation.
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111, JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

2. North Careclina Municipal Power Agency Number 1

The City is & member of the North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 (Agency). The
purpese of the Agency was to issue bonds and to purchase a 78% interest in the Catawhba Project
Number 2 Nuclear Station Generating Plant and a 37% interest in the Support Facilities of the Station.
The City of Statesville is contractually allocated, under power sales agreement, a 3.8638% interest in
the Agency, with the balance being shared by eighteen other municipalities. Each municipality
appoints one commissioner to the Agency’s governing board.

The Agency outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 was $1,433,080,000. The City of
Siategville, in the event of payment default by other members, would be liable for a pro rata share of
the increase, not to exceed 125% of the originally agreed-upon share. Therefore, the City’s share
would never exceed 12.3208% of the total operating expenses (including debt service) of the
Agency.

The City is billed monthly for 5.8638% of the operating expenditures (including debt service) of the
Agency, and is obligated to purchase all bulk power supply reguirements from the Agency. Al
payments fo the Agency by the City must be made from operating revenues of the Electric Pund, and
cannot, by law, be paid by other revenues earned or taxes levied by the City. The City agrees that it
will fix and collect rates at a suflicient amount to provide for the pro rata costs and other operating
expenses of its Electric Fund. Except for the power sales purchase reqguirements, no municipality has
any obligation, entitlement, or residual interest. The City’s purchase of power for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014 totaled $40,827,388.

3. Centralina Council of Governments

The City, in conjunction with eight counties and 49 other municipalities established the Centralina
Council of Governments {COG). The participating governments established the COG to coordinate
various funding received from federal and state agencies, Each participating governmeni appoints
one member to the COG’s governing board. The City paid membership fees of $5,888 to the COG
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

IV. JOINT YENTURE

The City and the members of the City's fire department each appoint two members to the five-
member local board of trustees for the Firefighter’s Relief Fund. The State Insurance Commissioner
appoints one additional member to the local board of trustees. The Fireman’s Relief Fund is funded
by a portion of the fire and lighting insurance premiums that insurers remit to the State. The State
passes these moneys to the local board of the Firefighter’s Relief Fund. The funds are used o assist
fire fighters in various ways. The City obtains an ongoing financial benefit from the Fund for the on-
behalf of payments for salaries and fringe benefits made to members of the City’s fire department by
the board of trustees. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint
venture, 50 no equity has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2014. The Firefighter's
Rehef Fund does not issue separate andited financial statements. Instead, the local board of trustees
files an annual financial report with the State Firefighter's Association. This report can be obtained
from the Association at 323 West Jones Street, Suite 401, Raleigh, North Carclina 27803,
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¥. RELATED ORGANIZATION

The five-member board of the City of Statesville Housing Authority is appointed by the Mayor of the
City of Statesville. The City is accountable for the Housing Authority because it appoints the
governing board; however, the City iz not financially accountable for the Housing Authority. The City
of Statesville is also disclosed as & related organization in the notes to the financial statements for the
City of Statesville Housing Authority.

Vi SUMDMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Vil

Federal-and State-Aggisted Programs

The City has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic andits of the grants
are required and certain cosis may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the
grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies.
Management believes that any required refunds will be imunaterial. No provision has been made in
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies,

Third Creek Wastewater Plant Monofill

The City has obtained an approved plan from the North Carolina Department of Environment and
Natural Resources, Division of Solid Waste Management, Hazardous Waste Section (NCDENR)
regarding the closing of the Third Creek/Wastewater Treatment Plant Monofill. Due to high levels of
heavy metals found in the shudge of the plant during a clean-out of the facility and the resulting sludge
being placed in the monofill, the NCDENR has required the City to complete a plan for closing and a
thirty-year monitoring plan for the monofill.

The monofill is now closed to all sludge per a request from the NCDENR and will not reopen. Since
the NCDENR has required the closing and monitoring plan, the City has calculated the cost of this
action. The costs associated with closure of the monofill had been paid. The 28-year monitoring cost
has a net present value (assuming a 6% interest rate) of $181,818, The current balance as of June 30,
2014 is $192,268 and has been accrued as a Hability in the Enterprise Funds in the accompanying
financial statements. The City’s financial liability for the monofill monitoring plan will increase each
fiscal year by the rate of inflation (Gross National Product) in accordance with current Federal
Environmental Protection Agency regulation Part 265. The amount of accretion for June 30, 2014 was
$2,827. This charge has been made in accordance with FASB Statement No. 5 due to information
existing which indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be
reasonably estimated, These amounts will be funded from the cperating budget of the Water and
Sewer Fund in the year that the related closing and monitoring costs occuz.

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITEL 355ETS

Governmental Business-Type

Capital agsets $ 74,801,782 $ 87,431,811
less: long-term debt 6,398,200 20,189,308
addr unexpended debt proceeds 61,249 -

Net investment in capilal assets $ 858,264,801 $ 67,271,808
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Fiii. FUND BALANCE

IX.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General
fund balance that is available for appropriation: '

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 24,828 738
Less:
Inventory 31,027
Prepaiditems 4,280
Stabilization by state statue 3,414,788
Subsecquent year's appropriations 598,745
Debt service 681,248
Unassigned-available for appropriation 20,315,838

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitmenis related to purchase
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. The following information is also found in
the budgetary data section of the financial notes regarding the City’s budgetary policy. At June 30,
2014, the General Fund, excluding project funds, had outstanding encumbrances of $1,017,854.
Project had $13,507,003 in outstanding encumbrances and the enterprise funds outstanding
encumbrances of $3,126,159. These encumbrances outstanding are not reported in the fund balance
section of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds or enterprise funds. Encumbrances are re-
appropriated in the subsequent fiscal year since appropriations lapse at year end.

SIGNIFICENT EFFECTS OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subseguent events through the date the financial statements were issued
and has determined that no significant events have occurred that would alter the City’s financial
position.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIEL INFORMATION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

This section containg additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles. .
¢  Schedule of Funding Progzess for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Specisal Separation Allowance.

» Schedule of Employer Contribuiions for the Law Enforcement Oificers’ Special Separation
Allowance,

s Notes to Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.
¢  Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB Obligation.
e Schedule of Employer Contributions for OPEB Obligation.

¢ Notes to Required Schedules for the OPEB Obligation.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

- June 36, 4014

_ Actuarial Covered ‘UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Payrolifor Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (BAL) Unfunded Funded YearEnding of Covered
Valuation Assets Pref. Unit Credit AAL (UAEL) Ratio on Val. Date Payroll

Date (a) {b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ({ b-a)/c)

12/31/1986 3 - 835,862 § 835,862 0.00% $1,710,B44 48.87%
12/31/1987 789,405 919,829 130,124 85.85% 1,795,639 7.25%
12/31/16488 733,368 872,213 120,015 84.08% 1,723,772 8.08%
12/31/1989 141,287 889,388 148,108 83.35% 1,951,258 7.88%
12/31/2000 653,277 1,173,821 B20¢,544  85.65% 2,168,793 24.06%
12/31/2001 626,033 1,023,804 397,771 61.18% 2,208,531 18.00%
12/31/2002 606,823 1,174,968 568,148  B51.68% 2,404,017 23.63%
12/31/2003 576,850 1,153,481 376,631 50.01% 2,426,807 23.76%
12/31/2004 834,139 1,203,741 669,802 44.37% 2,518,442 26.89%
12/31/2008 493,268 933,318 440,047 B2.85% 2,566,215 17.15%
12/31/2006 458,012 1,154,928 695,913 38.74% 2,678,402 25.98%
12/31/2007 432,358 1,173,321 740,863 36.85% 2,848,682 28.01%
12/31/2008 401,298 1,282,829 881,831 31.28% 3,100,737 28.43%
12/31/2008 333,770 1,539,843 1,205,873 21.88% 3,315,371 36.37%
12/31/2010 220,111 1,383,328 1,173,217 15.80% 3,470,854 33.80%
12/31/2011 150,901 1,381,372 1,200,471 1L17% 3,471,257 34.58%
12/31/2012 154,950 1,269,821 1,114,871 12.20% 3,382,479 33.26%
12/31/2013 181,811 1,270,807 1,088,988 14.31% 3,455,616 31.48%
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
" June 20, 2014 el

Annual Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage City
June 30 Contribution Contributed Actual
1908 $ 83,127 129.53% $ 120,627
1886 87,008 884.72% 858,258
2000 33,477 113.29% 37,926
2001 38,564 106.87% 41,136
2002 72,744 88.91% 71,881
2003 64,152 108.87% 69,842
2004 78,108 100.82% 79,818
2008 80,086 102.48% 82,080
2008 84,411 102.30% 86,352
2007 66,084 111.98% 73,874
2008 88,272 114.06% 87,283
2009 81,843 180.80% 156,348
2010 £6,766 168.11% 163,637
2011 140,943 0.06% -
2012 144,927 99.80% 144,380
2013 182,220 75.77% 115,342
2014 163,707 91.44% 145,697

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SCHEDULES

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest aciuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date December 31, 2013
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization pexiod 17 years

Asset valuation method Market Value

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return®™  5.00%
Projected salary increases* 4.5 -7.85%
*Inciudes inflation at 3.00%

Cost-of-living adjustment N/A
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIY OBLIGATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTERY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

June 30,2084

Actuarial

Covered UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Payrolifor = Percentage

Bctuarial Value of Liability (AAL) Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets Proj. Unit Credit AAL (UAAL) on Val. Date Payroll

Date {a) {b) (c) {{b-a)/c)

12/31/2008 8 - $ 2,388,643 § 2,398,643 $ 15,458,201 15.82%

12/31/2010 % - $ 2,568,534 $ 2,868,834 % 16,313,038 18.20%

12/31/2012 $ - $ 895,680 % 15,518,814 8.77%
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

: Annual ' Annual :
Year Ended Required Percentage City
june 30 Contribution Contributed Actual
2008 8 227,882 0.00% $ -
2008 8 227,882 0.00%% $ -
2011 E 288,504 0.00% $ -
2012 3 288,504 : 0.00% $ -
2013 & 297,188 0.00% $ -
2014 % 297,159 0.00% $ -

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SCHEDULES

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. The City performs an actuary for OPEB every two years and the current
vear expense the same as the first year actuary. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation
follows.

Valuation date December 31, 2012
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percentage of pay, open

Remaining amortization period 30 yeazs
Amortization factor 26.1888
Asset valuation method Market value of asseis
Actuarizl assumptions:
Investment rate of return*  4.00%
Medical cost trend rate 8.850% - 5.00%
Year of Ultimate trend rate 2018

*Inciudes inflation at 3.00%

Updated actuary required for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018,
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FUND

AJOR GOVERNMENTAL

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for
all activities of the City not included in other specified funds. The General
Tund accounis for the normal recurring activities of the City.
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Schedule 1

Page l of 8
CFEY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
GENERAL FUNE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
- CHINGESIN FUND BALANCE - RUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 38, 2014
- Variance
Final Faverable
Budget Actual (Unfaverable)
REVENUES:
Ad valorem property taxes:
Ad wvalorem taxes (city-wide)} & 11,095,551 $ 11,848,194 $ (147,387
Prior year ad valorem taxes {(city-wide) 328,000 355,680 30,880
Ad valorem taxes (special district) 100,553 102,433 1,880
Penalties and interest 88,000 97,733 12,733
Total ad valorem property tazes 12,806,104 12,408,540 {103,164
Cther taxes and licenses:
Cross receipt tax 30,000 35,382 5,382
Local sales iax 5,300,000 5,491,182 191,182
Hold harmiess 107,387 107,387 -
Privilege licenses 387,000 668,387 278,357
Total other taxes and licenses 5,824,387 §,208,278 474,861
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Payments in lieu of taxes 15,000 28,337 14,327
Utility franchise tax 1,445,000 1,508,735 154,735
State beer and wine tax 112,00 108,085 (3,81
Telecommunication tax 320,000 308,298 {14,761
Video programming {ax 143,000 145,077 2,077
ABC Liguor by the drink 88,000 93,189 8,189
ABC profit distribution 55,000 38,080 {18,950
Tax refunds - 22 22
Total unrestricted intergovernmental 2,178,000 2,316,788 141,788
Restricted intergovernmental:
Powell Bill allocation 730,000 741,701 11,701
Selid waste tax 16,600 15,088 (802)
On-behalf-of-payments - fire 25,000 25,756 756
Other state and federal grants 108,847 182,450 73,608
Federal interest subsidy for debt inferest 113,836 105,131 {8,408)
Total restricted intergovernmental 893,383 1,070,142 78,759
Permits and fees:
Recycling Reverue 15,000 19,775 4,778
Street cuf permits 100 400 300
Planning and zoning fees 15,000 15,6808 806
Court fees 15,000 8,086 (8,814
Crave fees 20,060 898,000 18,600
Parking violations 55,428 80,338 24,913
Civil citations 10,000 7,087 {2,843)
Nuisance abatements 7,800 13,184 8,684
Tipping fees 148,000 145,887 {2,143)
Fire inspection fees 80,000 61,388 {18,604)
Appearance Cormrnission - 300 50O
Total permits and fees 426,025 447,208 21,183
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Sehedule 1

Page 2 of 8
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARDLINA
GENERALFUND -
.. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND:
. CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BURGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance
Final Favorable
Budgst Actual {Unfavorable}
REVENUES (Continued):
Sales and services:
Sale of capital assets 25,000 21,274 {3,728)
Assessmeni revenues - 102,385 102,389
Internal charges 8,000 7,388 {1,815)
Statesville Housing Authority police protection 83,758 82,280 (1,466)
School System resource police officers 105,806 108,235 271y
Commerce Bivd mprovemeant - 145,589 145,888
Recreation-CGeneral 137,000 97,878 {38,428)
Recreation-Fitness/Activity Center 325,000 373,428 48,425
Recreation-Pool sales 145,000 143,684 {1,316}
Civic Center szales 15,000 15,848 848
SFPAC emplovee membership 36,583 10,867 (25,566)
Birport rent 205,000 193,780 (11,250)
Iredell County-debt sharing airport 173,188 173,180 1
Fueling flow fees 135,000 144,902 9,802
Sale of cemetery lots 55,000 76,800 21,8060
Sale of material and labor - 8,379 8,370
Total sales and services 1,420,014 1,670,300 250,295
Investinent earnings:
Earned interest 128,000 278,724 150,724
Total investment earnings 125,000 278,724 180,724
Miscellaneous:
Insurance proceeds 48,020 76,204 28,184
Donations - capital assefs - 5,400 5,400
Donations 2,950 2,850 -
Miscellaneous other 20,000 39,610 19,810
Total miscellaneous 70,97C 124,164 53,184
Total revenues 23,840,883 24,607,583 1,068,670
EXPENDITURES:
Ceneral government:
Mavyor and council:
Salaries and employee benefits 87,858
Professional services 12,868
Operating expendifures 77,888
Reimbursement from othar funds {63,009}
Total Mayor and council 133,874 113,383 20,181
City manager
Salaries and emplovee bensfits 286,561
Professional services 3,333
Operating expenditures 18,161
Capital 17,811
Reimbursement from other funds £123,802)
Total City manager 216,839 189,864 16,878

Page 76



Schedule |

Page Jof 8
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINE
GENERALFUND o
- SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGESIN FUND BELANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 7014
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
General government (continued):
City clerk:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 85,350
Operating expenditures 81,237
Reimburgement from other funds {45,586)
Total City clerk 107,803 90,801 17,202
Finance department:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,188,187
Professional services 112,008
Operating expenditures 694,454
Capital cutlay 48,638
Reimbursement from other funds (1,186,388)
Total Finance department 985,848 837,403 148,145
Buman rescirces: )
Salaries and employee henefits 433,778
Professional services 17,126
Operating expenditures 84,174
Reimbursement from other funds (189,027
Total Personnel 473,018 378,081 98,987
Legal:
Professional sexvices 2,188
Reimbursement from other funds {13,811
Total Legal 83,689 78,287 5,302
Planning and zening:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 548,760
Professional services 58,878
Operating expenditures 177,388
Capital 17,511
Total Planning and zoping 868,833 200,532 68,301
Main Street:
Operating expenditures 146,081
Total Main Street 147,088 146,081 978
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Page fof 8
CITY OF 3TATESVILLE, NORTH CEAROCLINA
GENERAL FUND
. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANB . . . . .
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Ct ot For the Yeay Ended fune 38,2014 B
. Variance
Final Faveorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES (Continued);
General govermment {continued):

Pubtic works and engineering:

Salaries and employee benefits 214,238

Professional services 28,835

Operating expenditures 80,043

Capital 31,888

Reimbursement from other funds (80,501)

Total Pablic works and engineering 350,586 264,813 88,973
Garage:

Salaries and employee benefits 465,431

Operating expenditures 83,087

Reimbursement from other funds {322,027)

Total Garage 247,356 228,801 20,885
Warehouse:

Operating expenditures 91,804

Capital 79,808

Reimbursement from other funds (155,988}

Total Warehouse 31,669 15,727 15,942
General expense:

Capiial outlay land 1,609,838 1,204,436

Miscellaneous 7,800 7,800

Total General expense 1,707,338 1,211,836 495,402
Special appropriations;

Aris council 3,325 3,328

Children's Home of Iredell County 3,780 3,780

Chamber of Commerce 10,000 10,000

Council on Aging 8,750 8,750

Iredell County Rescue Squad 8,800 6,500

Lifespan Vocational Workshop 25,000 25,000

Elderly Nutrition Program 3,731 3.731

Garfield Senior Citizens 1,000 1,000

Golden Age Senior Citizens 1,000 1,000

Happy Hour Senior Citizens 1,000 1,000

Counseling Center 9,560 9,560

Irediel! Senior Center 4 600 4,600

Fifth Street Ministry 4,000 4,000

Iredell County Children's Museum 3,570 3,570

Tetal Special appropriation 82,786 82,788 -

Total general government ' 8,438,008 4,443,888 982,123
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Page 5 of 8
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCOIINA
GCENERALFUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, BND -
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
" Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
EXPENDITURES (Continuned):
Pubiic safety:
Police:
Salaries and employee benefits 5,922,893
Professional services 8,542
Cperating expenditures 927,888
Capital cutlay 222,764
Total Police 1,375,166 7,082,154 282,872
Fire service:
Salaries and employee benefits 4,059,776
Professional sexvices 12,988
Operating expenditures 579,021
Capital cutlay 148,887
Total Fire service 5,104,820 4,800,348 304,571
Total public safety 12,480,086 11,882,843 597,543
Transportation:
Btreet department;
Salaries and employee benefits 806,391
Operating expenditures §20,437
Capital outlay 128,817
Reimbursement from other funds (101,714)
Total Street department 1,887,147 1,754,731 232,416
Street construction:
Operating expenditures 62,545
Capital cutlay 822,222
Total Street construction 1,363,108 684,867 878,838
Airport:
Salaries and employee benefits 54,632
Professional services 24,435
Operating expendituzres 100,088
Total Alrport 326,308 178,158 147,183
Total transportation 3,676,561 2,618,783 1,087,808
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Page 60f &
CETY OF STATESVILEE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHHNGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET MD_&CT’U&I@
“For the Year Ended June 30, 2614
o Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Economic and physical development:
Operating expendiiures 841,239
Total economic and physical development 970,000 541,238 428,761
Environmental protection:
Sanitation:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 1,241,305
Operating expenditures 351,749
Capital outlay 162,281
Total environmental protection 1,828,368 1,768,305 73,061
Cultural and recreation:
Recreation ~ administration:
Balaries and employee benefits 186,467
Operating expendifures 194,870
Total administration 488,780 381,137 104,643
Recreation - athletics:
Salaries and employee benefits 101,270
Operating expenditures 73,503
Total athleticy 207,828 174,773 33,086
Recreation - programs:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 188,298
Operating expenditures 73,271
Total programs 285,589 261,566 24,023
Recreation - fitness center:
Salaries and employee benefits 288,318
Operating expenditures 144,581
Total fitness center 482,871 463,856 88,678
Recreation - leisure pool:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 284,830
Operating expendifures 80,026
Total isisure poot 185,606 174,856 14,839
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Page T of 8
CIIY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA
GENERAL FUND
. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTULL
o Por the Year Ended June 38,201¢°
o Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Recreation - parks
Salaries and employee benefits 711,794
Operating sxpendifures 338,835
Capital cutlay 81,144
Reimbursement from other funds {24,868)
Total park maintenance 1,179,402 1,077,508 101,487
Recreation - public grounds and cemetery:
Salaries and employes benefits 287,204
Operating expenditures 256,868
Reimbursement from other funds {15,657)
Total public grounds and cemetery 619,449 498,815 120,834
Total recreation and culture 3,460,314 2,872,747 487,867
Debt service:
Principal payment 1,824,700
Interest payment 268,684
Total debt sexvice 1,483,384 1,483,384 -
Contingency:
Coentingency 59,374 - 59,374
Total expenditures 20,404,083 28,707,858 3,696,237
Revenunes over {under} expenditures (8,863,210 {1,100,303) 4,762,907
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Internal PILOT - Electric 229,480 229,492 iz
Internal PILOT - Water and Sewer 488,874 488,874 -
Internal PILOT - Civic Center 22,361 22,361 -
Reimbursement - occupancy tax 18,250 18,186 {64)
From Drug Endforcement Fund 30,818 30,518 -
From Electric 28,657 28,687 -
From Water and Sewer 28,656 28,686 -
From General Capital Reserve 1,740,084 1,451,111 {288,843)
Total transfers in 2,888,848 2,297,883 {288,988)
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Schedule §

Page 8 of §
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUNB
USCHEDULE OF BEVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND RALANCE - BUDGTT AND ACTUEL -
For the Year Ended June 36, 2014
Variar{ce
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Transfers (out):
To Streetscape Pund {1,821,538) (1,821,838 -
To Airport Improvement Fund (1,128) (1,126) -
To Home Consortinm Fund (16,918 (18,818) -
T'oc Domestic Violence Grant Fund (25,388) (29,388) -
Total transfers out {1,971,9687 (1,971,981 -
Fund balance appropriated 8,248,229 - (B,248,229)
Totial other financing sources (uses) 5,863,210 325,588 (8,537,224)
Revenues and other financing sources {under)
expenditures and other uses % - (774317 & (774,317)
Fund balances at beginning of year 28,600,055
Fund balances at end of year $ 24,825,738
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Home Pregram Grant Project Fund - accounts for the Home Program grant that is restricted te home
rehabilitation and down payment assistance.
1997-31998 Home Consortium Fund - accounts for participation in the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan Home
Consortium and related grant activity. The funds are restricted to be used for the rehabilitation of private
dwellings and administrative costs associated with the grant,
Home Consortium/CDEBG Fund - accounts for participation in the Cabarrus/lredell/Rowan Home
Consortiur and related grant activity. The funds are restricted to be used for the construction or
rehabilitation of private dwellings and administrative costs associated with the grant.

Drug Enforcerment Fund - accounts for monies reserved for drug enforcement expenditures.

Oocupancy Tax Pund - accounts for receipts from a local hotel/motel occupancy tax that are restricted tc the
operation of a civic center and the promotion of travel and tourism.

Domestic Viclence Grant Pund - accounts for presentation and support for victims of domestic viclence.

Economic Development - accounts for economic granis from state and federal governmenis.
Warehouse Construction Fund - accounts for capifal construction for new warehouse facility.

Streetscape Fund - accounts for the downtown infrastructure renewsal

Birpert Improvement {formerly Bouth Parallel Fund) - accounts for capital improvements to airport
facilities.

General Equipment Capitel Reserve Fund - accounts for monies restricted to the purchase of general fixed
assets.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BAIANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 38, 2014

Home 18671988
Program Home Home Prug Domestic
Project Consortium Consortiumy Enforcement Occupancy Violence
Fund Fund CDBG Fund Fund Tax Fund Grant
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $245,182 § 84,221 & 18,723 § 60,645 § 179,886 § 3,843
Accounts recetvable, net - 85,138 - - - -
Interest receivable 322 110 28 80 236 10
Due from other governmenis - - - - - 15,819
Total assets $245514 % 169,466 3 18,780 § 60,725 $ 180,002 3 19,372
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - B - & - 8 - 8 - § 2,186
Deferred revenues - 85,135 - - - -
Total liabilities - 85,138 - - - 2,156
Fund Equity:
Stabilization by state statute 322 85,248 25 80 236 15,828
Restricted 245,192 {914) 18,728 60,645 179,856 1,388
Committed - - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balances 245 814 84,331 18,780 80,728 180,092 17,218
Tetal labilities and
fund balances $248814 § 169,466 § 18,750 § 60,728 $ 180,082 § 19,372
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Schedule 2

Total General Total Total
Economic Nonmajor  Warehouse Airport Equipment Nonmajor Nonmajor
Development Special Construction  Streeiscape Improvement Capital Capital Covernmental
Fund Revenue Funds Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Projeci Punds Funds
$ - § 562,182 $104,336 $2,012,923 $ 1,190,688 & 3,685,849 § 7,863,466 § 8,455,648
- 85,135 - - - - - 85,138
- 183 137 3,821 1,862 4,998 10,518 11,299
- 15,819 - 18,048 23,228 - 38,275 55,094
3 - § 693818 $104473 32,932,793 § 1,218,446 $ 3,660,845 § 7,8183287 § §&,807,176
3 - % 2,186 & - % 182314 3 7,800 & - § 170,114 & 172,270
- 88,135 - - 1,341 - 1,341 86,476
- 87,291 - 162,314 9,141 - 171,458 288,746
- 101,736 100,137 2,636,328 24,787 4,698 2,766,245 2,867,881
- 504,882 - 134,154 1,181,518 - 1,315,672 1,820,864
- - 4,336 - - 3,685,548 3,650,888 3,689,885
- 506,628 104,473 2,770,479 1,206,305 3,660,545 7,741,802 8,348,430
§ - § 693919 $104473 $2932,793 §$ 1,215446 § 3,660,845 § 7,833,357 % 8,607,176
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

COMRBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

. Forthe Year Ended June 36, 2014 .

Home

1807-1888

Program Home Home Drug Domestic
Praject Congortiumm  Consortium  Enfercement Qccupancy Viclence
Fund Fund CDBG Fund Fund Tax Fund Grant
REVENUES:
Other taxes and licenses % - 3 - 8 - 5 -~ % 818512 & -
Restricted intergovernmental - - 168,108 12,541 - 458,210
Repayment of loans - 8,630 - - - -
Investment earnings 2,810 866 483 863 1,037 (14)
Miscellaneous - - - - 106 -
Total revenues 2,510 10,496 165,598 13,404 819,649 45,196
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety
Operating expenditures - ~ - - - 57,268
Transportation
Capital outlay - - - - - _
Economic and physical development:
Operating expenditures - - 209,003 - 160,085 -
Capital cutlay - - - - - -
Total expenditures - - 208,003 - 160,085 B7,368
Revenue over {under} expenditures 2,510 10,498 (35,405) 13,404 659,564 {12,172)
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Ceneral Fund - - 18,918 - - 25,388
Electric Fund - - - - - -
Water and Sewer Fund - - - - - -
Transfers cul:
General Fund - (30,616) {18,186) -
Civic Center - - - - (560,866) -
Total other financing scurces (uses) - - 19,918 (30,618} {576.082) 28,388
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other (uses) 2,510 10,458 (18,487 {17,212) 80,512 17,2186
Fund balances at beginning of year 243,004 73,835 38,237 17,837 88,880 -
Fund balances at end of yeax $2455814 § 84331 3 18750 % 60,728 § 180,092 § 17,218
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Schedule 3

Total

Total

Ceneral Total
Econormic Nonmajor Warehouse Birport Equipment Nonmajor Nonmajor
Development Special Construction  Streetscape Improvement Capital Capital Covernmental
Fund Revenue Punds Fund Fanad Fand Reserve Fund Project Funds Funds
$ - % 818,812 § - 8 - - 8 - % - & 8i8,5lz
31,800 264,358 - - 204,989 - 204,089 469,345
- 9,630 - - - - - 8,680
- 3,788 1,173 o882 6,806 53,542 65,603 71,368
- 100 - 7,642 - 6,697 14,339 14,439
37,800 1,088,383 1,178 8,824 211,885 63,238 284,831 1,383,284
- 87,368 - - - - - 57,368
- - - - 186,858 - 154,888 156,858
37,800 406,588 - - - - - 406,588
- ~ - 1,013,884 - - 1,013,864 1,013,864
37,800 463,958 - 1,013,864 156,858 - 1,170,722 1,634,678
- 534,397 1,173 (1,008,240) 88,037 63,239 {885,791 {251,354)
- 49,306 - 1,821,635 1,128 - 1,822,661 1,971,967
~ - 866,049 - - 666,049 666,049
- - 822,718 - - 822,715 522,715
- {48,8082) - - - (1,483,111 (1,481,111 (1,486,913}
- (860,866 - - - - - (560,866)
- (860,362} - 3,110,288 1,126 (1,481,111 1,660,314 1,098,852
- 74,038 1,173 2,108,089 56,183 (1,387,872 174,523 848,588
- 832,883 103,300 668,420 1,180,142 5,048,417 6,967,278 7,499,872
3 - 3 606,628 & 104,473 $2,770,47% & 1,306,305 § 3,660,545 § 7,741,802 § 8,348,430
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Schedule 4
CITY OF STATESVIELE, NORTH CAROLINA
HOME PROGRAM GRANT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN
. ...CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL. ..

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 38, 2814

Actual
Project Prioxr Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
Home program grant ¢ 755810 & 785131 % - 8 755,131
Repayment of loans 117,833 274,725 - 274,728
Investment earnings - 80,601 2,810 83,111
Total revenues 873,743 1,110,461 2,810 1,112,971
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development
Home program grant activity 873,743 867,457 - 887,457
Total expenditures 873,743 867,457 - 867,457
Revenues and other financial sources
over expenditures % - % 243,004 2,510 §& 245,514
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year 243,004
Fund balances at end of yeax $ 245,514
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Schedule §
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
18397-1598 HOME CONSORTIUM FUND
T SCEEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGEYIN
- CHANGES IN FUND BALENCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Cuarrent Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 102,978 $ 102,877 & - $ 102,877
Repayment of loans - 63,850 8,830 73,580
Investment earnings - 9,224 866 10,080
Total revenues 102,878 176,151 16,498 186,847
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development
Home program grant activity 127,978 127,316 - 137,316
Total expendifures 127,878 127,316 - 127,318
Revenues over (under) expenditures 28,0003 48,835 10,486 58,331
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer in - General Fund 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 8 - § 73,835 10,456 § 84,331
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year 73,838
Pund balances at end of year % 84,331
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Schedule &
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
HOME CONSORTIUNMI/CDEBG FUND
- SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN
CHANGES IN FUND BALENCES - BUDGET AND ACTUEL
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 38, 2014

Aciual
Project Prior Current Total
Euthorization Years Year to Date
REVENULS:
Restricted intergovernmental-Home Program $ 1,877,710 $1,408,584 $160,108 § 1,577,689
Restricted intergovernmental - other 750,000 750,000 - 750,000
Restricted intergovernmental - CDBG 280,000 249,079 - 249,079
Investment earnings - 17,272 493 17,768
Total revenues 2,877,710 2,424,945 169,888 2,594,543
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development
Homte program grant activity 1,842,872 1,732,973 208,003 1,541,876
Restricted intergovermmental - other 780,000 180,000 - 750,000
Restricted intergovexrnmential - CDBG 250,000 249 079 - 248,078
Total expendifures 2,942,972 2,732,082 208,003 2,941,088
Revenues (under) expenditures {365,262) {307,107} (38,408) (346,812)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer in - General Fund 365,262 345,344 18,818 365,262
Revenues and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources $ - § 38,237 (19,487 § 18,780
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year 38,837
Fund balances at end of year $ 18,750
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
. DRUG ENFORCEMENY FUND
. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Scheduls ¥

REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental;
Adoptive forfeitures
DARE revenues
Controlled substance tax
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public safety:
Drug enforcement
DARE expenditures

Total expenditures
Revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Trangfer out:
General Fund
SIGI Grant

Total transfers {ont)

Actual

Project Prior Current Total

Authorization Years Year to Date
$ 808,464 $ 613,878 B - % 813,978
2,000 928 - 926
270,668 300,592 12,842 313,154
63,458 66,188 883 67,081
945,587 981,681 13,4058 995,086
103,692 97,125 - 97,125
2,000 8926 - 926
105,692 98,081 - 898,051
839,885 883,630 13,405 897,035

(822,019)  (787,818)
(17,876)  (17,876)

(30,618)  (818,434)
- (17,876)

(839,895)  (808,694)

(30,616) (836,310

Revenues and other financing sources over (under)

expenditures and cther financing (uses)

PUND BALANCES:

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

$ - § 77835

(17,211} § 60,725

17,8636

$ 60,725
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
............. O - QCCUPANCY TAXFUND

SCEEDULE QOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 349, 2614

Bchedule 8

Variance
Favorable
Budget HActual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Cther taxes and licenses:
8% hotel/motel occupancy tax % 825,600 % 818,512 {6,488)
Investment earnings - 1,087 1,037
Miscellaneous income - 100 100
Total revenies 825,000 819,649 {5,351)
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development 161,350 180,085 {1,265)
Total expenditures 161,380 180,085 (1,268)
Revenues over {under) expenditures 863,650 559,864 {4,086)
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers cut:
General Fund 18,250 18,186 (64)
Civic Center Fund 560,866 550,868 -
Future capital and debt service 84,534 - (84,534)
Total other financing sources (uses) £63.680 579,052 {84,588)
Revenues and other financing sources over (undezr} expenditures
and other financing sources {uses) $ - 80,512 (88,684)
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances af beginning of year 89,580
Fund balances at end of year $ 180,092
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Schedule &
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE GRANT FUND o
' SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
Federal grant 3 83,719 % - $ 45210 % 45,210
Investment earnings - - {14) {i4)
Total revenues 93,718 - 48,196 45,196
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety:
First year grant 63,945 - 57,368 57,368
Second year grant 58,162 ~ - -
Total expenditures 123,107 - 87,368 57,368
Revenues (under) expendituzres (29,388) - {12,172} (12,172)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer in:
General Fund _ 28,388 - 28,388 29,388
Total transfers 29,388 - 28,388 28,388
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures ] - & - i7.2le & 11,218
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year -
Fund balances at end of year $ 17,218
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMERT FUND
o SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN -
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inceplion and for the Year Ended June 36, 2614

Schedule 18

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Aunthorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
One NG Fund phase I - Providencia $ 56,000 & 56,000 3 - 8§ 586,000
One NC Fund - Pate-Dawson Company 180,000 75,000 31,500 112,560
CDBG -Pate-Dawson Bldg Reuse 466,000 466,000 - 466,000
Rural Center - Abundant Mfg (administration) 13,000 10,000 - 10,000
Total revenues 682,000 807,000 37,800 644,500
EXPENDITURES:
Economic development:
One NC Fund phase I - Providencia 56,000 56,000 - 56,000
One NC Fund - Pate-Dawson Company 150,000 75,000 37,800 114,500
CDBG -Pate-Dawson Bldg Reuse ' 466,000 486,000 - 466,000
Rural Center - Abundant Mig (administration) 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Total expenditures 682,000 607,000 37,800 544,500
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - % - - % -
FUND BALANCES:
Fand balances at beginning of vear -
Fund balances at end of year § -

Page 94



Schedule 11

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA.
WAREHOQUSE CONSTRUCTION FUND
U USCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - RUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES:
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Capital Cutlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transiers in:
General Fund
Electric Fund

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expendiires

FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Ectual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Yeay to Date
$ - § 33 8% 1,173 8§ 4,473
- 3,300 1,173 4,473
380,006 - - -
380,000 - - -
{350,000) 3,300 1,173 4,473
160,000 100,000 - 106,000
250,000 - - -
350,000 100,000 - 100,000
3 - § 103,300 LIT3  § 104,473
103,300
$ 104,473
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Schedule 12
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STREETSCAPE CAPITEL PROJECT
' 'SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Incepiion and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Unrestricted intergovernmental $ 188,727 & 185,727 & -~ % 198,727
Investment earnings 7,000 1,034 981 2,015
Total revenues 202,727 196,761 981 187,742
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development:
Debt issuance costs 26,133 25,133 - 26,133
Capital cutlay professional services 450,357 422,498 1,887 424,386
Capital outlay construction 7,818,977 4,700,921 830,504 5,531,825
Capifal outlay - miscellanecus 74,404 28,226 26,057 55,283
Capital cutlay - other improvement 160,943 10,942 810 11,882
Professional services 264,750 54,362 184,108 208,467
Contingency 136,846 - - -
Total expenditures 8,033,410 5,244,083 1,013,863 6,287,046
Revenues (under) expenditures (8,830,683 (8,047,322) {(1,012,882) (6,060,204)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in:
General Fund 2,348,808 427,970 1,821,835 2,348,505
Eleciric Fund 846,812 180,463 666,048 846,812
Water and Sewer Fund 610,024 87,308 522,715 810,024
City Hall Renovation Fund 111,000 111,000 - 111,000
Miscellaneous Revenue 7,642 - 7,642 7.642
Proceeds from debt 4,908,000 4,806,000 - 4,208,000
Total other financing sources 8,830,683 B, 712,742 3,117,841 8,830,683
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ 685420 2,105,088 $2,770,479
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year 865,420
Fund balances at end of year § 2,770,479
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCOLINA

_ . AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT FUND e
SCHED ULE oF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND C‘HKN GES IN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Schedule 13

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES:
Investment earnings
NCDOT land
Iredell County land
DOT Grants
Iredell County

Total yrevenues

EXPENDITURES:
Transportation:
Capital Cutlay- land
Alrport improvements
Capital Outlay - grant land

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in:
General Fund

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
8,333 % 42658 % 6,807 & 48,5858
1,480,000 1,368,561 - 1,368,561
80,588 32,087 43,965 76,032
803,008 268,088 140,459 438,524
50,187 2,467 20,588 23,022
2,482,063 1,743,808 211,806 1,985,704
1,144,444 7,220 - 7,220
1,003,343 331,175 156,858 488,033
1,611,111 1,520,981 - 1,620,981
3,758,898 1,889,378 156,858 2,016,234
{1,266,835) {115,568} 55,038 (80,530)
1,266,838 1,268,708 1,128 1,266,835
1,268,835 1,288,708 1,128 1,266,838
- $1,i80,141 86,164 ¢ 1,206,308
1,180,141
$ 1,206,308
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Schedule 14
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL EQUIPNMIENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Incepfion and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Buthorization Years Year {o Date
REVENUES:
Investment earnings $ 380,000 ¢ 1,022,708 3% 86,842 § 1,079,281
Sidewalk and ¢curbs _ - 82,025 6,687 88,722
Total revenues 354,000 1,104,734 53,239 1,167,873
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers in;
General Fund 3,883,217 3,249,482 - 3,240,482
General Fund - debt service Fire Station#4 2,243,251 2,243,251 - 2,243,251
General Fund - debt service Stresiscape 2,625,350 2,625,350 - 2,625,350
Electric 848,180 848,180 - 248,190
Water and Sewer 565,460 565,460 - 565,460
Fire Equipment Reserve Fund - 153,778 - 153,778
Business Park Capital Project Fund - 28,488 - 28,489
Total transfers in 10,235,468 8,714,000 - 9,714,000
Transfers out:
General Fund - Fire Station #4 (1,848,557) {726,832) - (729,832)
General Fund - Streetscape (4,038,000) (1,708,928} {B01,083) (2,810,989}
General Fund - Police (45,086) (49,0886) - (49,056}
General Fund - Fire (704,000) (875,000} - {(875,000)
Statesvilie Park Fund (712,096) (615,487) - {615,467)
General Fund - undesignated (2,758,719) {1,880,836) (487,226) (2,378,062}
General Pund - Fire station land acquisition (375,000) (210,500) (152,822) {363,322)
Total transfers ouf (10,585,468) (8,710,311 (1,451,111) (1,221,428)
Total other financing sources (uses) {350,600) 3,543,683 (1,451,111 2,482,372
Revenues and other financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other fnancing (uses) $ - % 5,048,417 (1,387,872 % 3,660,548
FUND BALANCES:
Fund balances at beginning of year 5048417
Fund balances at end of year _$ 3,860,548
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Electric Fund — accounts for the activities of the Eleciric Utilities Department.

Water and Sewer Fund - accounts for the activities of the Water and Sewer Departments.

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Civic Center Fund — accounts for the activities of the Civie Center.

ENTERPRISE PROJECT FUNDS

Utility Capital Reserve Pund - accounts for eleciric capital future needs.
Electric Rate Stabilization Fund — accounts for funds to s{abilize electric rates.
Water and Sewer Capiial Reserve Fund — accounts future capital needs.

Third Creck WWTP Expansion Construction — accounts for a major expansion of one of
the City's waste waler treatment plants.

Fourth Creek WWTPF Improvement Project ~ accounts for a major improvement of one
of the City's waste water treatment plants.
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Schedule 158

Page @ of 2
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
_ - MAFOR ENTERPRISEFUND
| CITYOF STATESVILLE ELECTRIC FUND- SCHEDULEOF
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 36, 2014
Variance
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
CPERATING REVENUES:
Electric sales $ 45,880,000 $ 45,919,158 $ (60,842)
Other operating revenues 1,085,700 1,080,808 24,608
Total operating revenues 47,003,700 46,969,468 (36,234)
Non-operating revenues:
State utility tax 1,134,000 861,070 (172,930
NCMPA] revenues 200,000 40,180 (1589,810)
Investment earnings 120,000 165,480 453,480
Pole attachment fees - 146,000 159,381 13,381
Miscellaneous Revenues 151,865 223,854 71,588
Total non-operating revenues 1,781,965 1,846,675 (%02,290)
Total revenues 48,757,665 48,519,141 (238,824)
EXPENDITURES:
Balaries and employee benefils 2,087,180 2,061,239 45,041
Electrical power purchases 40,807,418 40,827,387 80,031
Professional services 102,339 67,648 34,681
State utility tax 1,228,880 783,282 446,618
Reimbursemenis 301,197 891,167 -
Operating expenditures 1,738,832 1,291,088 448,744
Capital ouflay 3,065,636 1,328,012 1,740,624
Total expenditures 50,133,482 47,336,833 2,798,649
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,378,817) 1,182,308 2,658,128
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfer {out} General Fund - PILOT (229,492) (229,482 -
Transfer {out} General Fund - other (28,857} (28,687) -
Transfer (out} Sireetscape (666,048) (666,049) -
Appropriated fund balance 2,300,015 - (2,300,018)
Total other financing sources {uses) 1,378,817 {924,198} {2,300,015)
Tetal revenues and other financing sources over
other financing uses and expenditures $ - 268,110 3 268,110
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Schedule 18 (cont'd)
PageZofil
CITY OF 3TATESVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

... MAjOR ENTERPRISE FUND _
CITY O‘F STATESVILLE ELECTRIC FUND- SCHEDULE OF‘
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (v ON-GMP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation from budgetary basis {modified acernal) to full accrual:

From modified acerual revenues over expenditures 258,110
Capital outlay 1,325,011
Capitalization labor, equipment, and overhead 805,327
Loss on disposition of capital assets (144,210}
Change in accrued compensated absences 26,297
Change in other postemployment benefits {23,409)
Depreciation (1,211,538)
Interest earnings from Project Funds 3,201

Total reconciling items 480,878
Change in net position $ 138,788
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTE CAROLINA
ELECTRIC UTILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN

' CMGESINWNDBMCES BUDGETAND&CTUAL(NON—GW) R

" From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Schedule 16

Actual

Project Prior Cugrent Total
Aunthorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Investment earnings & 100,000 & 195,758 % 2310 % 188,068
Total revenues 100,000 185,758 2,310 188,085
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Electric Pund 800,000 281,884 - 281,884
Transfers out:
Electric Fund (1,000,600) {274,300) - {274,300)
Total other financing sources (uses) {106,000y 7.584 - 7,584
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other financing (uses) 3 - % 20333 % 2,310 & 205,648
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
ELECTRIC RATE STABIIIZATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
CHANGES N FUND BALENCES - BUDGETAND BECTUAL (NON-(GAEP)

Schedule 17

From Inception and for the Year Ended fune 38, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES:
Investment earnings % 120000 $ 784,040 & 891 % 754,831
Total revenues 120,000 754,040 851 754,931
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Electric Fund 4,060,000 2,474,335 - 2,474,335
Trangfers cut:
Electric Fund {4,120,600)  (8,180,0386) - (3,180,036}
Total other financing sources {(uses) {120,000) {675,701) - {875.701)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other financing 3 - $ 78338 % 881 % 79,230
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Schedule I8

Pagelof2
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND
CITY OF STATESVILLE WATER AND SEWER FUND- SCHEDULE OF
- REVENTES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTYUAL (NON-GALP} -
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Water gales $ 3,740,700 $ 8,628,264 {114,436}
Sewer charges 5,775,000 5,628,087 (146,503
Water and Sewer System Development Fees 310,000 145,714 {164,286)
Total operating revenues 8,825,700 $,400,075 {425,625)
Non-operating revenue:
Reimbursement 14,807 14,807 -
Interest on investments 100,000 151,083 51,003
Miscellaneous 126,740 168,632 42,892
Total non-operating revenues 240,547 334,832 93,588
Total revenues 10,066,247 8,734,607 {331,641
EXPENDITURES:
Sewer collection line maintenance:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 332,584 327,163 8,431
Professional services 3,300 3,110 190
Operating expenditures 199,668 180,203 40,463
Capital outlay 1,084,766 533,361 531,405
Total 1,600,326 1,013,837 586,488
Water distribution line maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 793,228 788,973 1,288
Operating expenditures 117,288 88,294 28,984
Water mainienance 146,800 74,066 38,734
Capital outlay 2,553,673 359,122 2,184,880
Total 3,570,988 1,307,456 2,263,533
Water purification;
Salaries and employes benefiis 108,771 681,878 27,483
Professional services 19,367 19,348 18
Reimbursemenis 1,189,387 1,188,357 -
Operating expenditures 635,628 573,347 82,281
Operating chemicals and supplies 116,353 111,436 4919
Capital outlay 221,841 153,169 68,672
Total 2,881,319 2,727,838 163,383
Waste water treatment - Third Creek:
Salaries and employee benefits 374,533 311,372 3,161
Professional services 36,600 28,257 8,343
Operating expendifures 415,659 335,281 80,378
Cperating chemicals and supplies 111,778 108,104 5,674
Capital outlay 226,168 135,200 80,968
Total 1,164,738 976,214 188,824
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Schedule 18 (cont'd)

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND

- CITY OF STATESVILLE WATER AND SEWER FUND- SCHEDULE OF -

REVENUES AND FEXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAASR
For the Year Ended June 38, 2014

Page 2of 2

Waste water treatment - Fourth Creek:
Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services
Operating expenditures
Operating chemicals and supplies
Capital outlay

Total

Principal and interest
Total

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in (out):
Water and Sewer Capital Reserve
General Fund - PILOT
Water and Sewer Capiial Reserve
General Fund - other
Streetscape Fund

Fund balance appropriated

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other sources over expendituras
and other sources

Reconciliation {from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Depreciation

Capital outlay

Capital loss

Monofill accration

Change in accrued compensated absences
Change in other postemployment benefits
Long-term debt principal retirement
Accrued interest pavable

Principal loan received not income - County
Intrafund transfers not income, net

Favorable

Interest earnings from Water and Sewer Capital Funds

Due to state for I-77/140 utility relocation
Total reconciling items

Change in net position

Emended
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
826,523 734,724 91,798
82,427 60,828 21,601
719,667 684,148 95,821
173,860 158,780 14,170
70,580 8,082 82,488
1,833,147 1,647,568 288,870
1,323,833 1,323,833 -
1,323,833 1,323,833 -
12,484 352 8,098,844 3,487,508
(2,418,108) 737,763 3,155,868
12,492 12,492 -
(488.,874) (488,874) -
(835,000} (670,714) 164,286
(28,656) {28,656) -
(522,715) (522,718) -
4,280,858 - {4,280,858)
2,418,108 {1,688,487) (4,116,572}
$ - (860,704y $ (960.704)
(2,588,369)
688,396
(162,708)
{2.827)
(6,858}
(42,287)
1,061,530
2,854
(91,157)
858,222
44,871
484,241
(11,087)
$ (971,79L
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| CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

Schedule 18

U SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CRANGESIN

- CHANCESINFUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAPR}
From Inception and for the Year Ended fune 30, 2014

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year io Date
REVENUES:
Investment earnings $ 2,512,688 § 2,487,688 § 37,718 8 2,808,374
Potal revenues 2,512,685 2,467,658 37,719 2,508,374
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Water and Sewer Fund - water SDF 200,000 544,251 23,038 587,288
Water and Sewer Fund - sewer SDF 800,000 2,327,214 122,676 2,449,880
General Fund 800,000 500,000 150,000 850,000
Eleciric Fund 3,200,060 3,200,000 150,000 3,380,000
Water and Sewer Fund 4,743,254 4 743,254 100,006 4,843,254
Annexation Pund 187,870 167,870 125,000 292,870
Statesville Business Park Fund 1,231,808 1,231,808 - 1,231,209
Water Interconnect Capital Project Fund 238,032 238,832 - 238,832
Lookout Shoals Capital Project Fund - 123,869 - 123,869
Total transfers in 11,082,064 13,077,388 870,714 13,748,113
Transfers out;
Reserved for Water & Sewer Capital (10,427,248) (5,078,921 {12,482} (9,082,413)
Statesville Businegs Park Fund {118,576) {60,223) - (60,223)
Water Interconnect Capital Project Fund (2,238,200 (2,238,200} - {2,238,200)
Water Plant Improvements Fund {579,888} (575,988 - (B78,088)
Raw Water Capital Project Fund {227,480% {43.424) - (43,424)
Pourth Creek Wastewater Fund (3,267 (3,287 - {3,267y
Totzal transfers out (13,884,738 (12,008,023} {12,482) (12,017,815
Total other financing sources and other (uses) (2,512,685) 1,072,376 658,222 1,730,588
Revenues and othey sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing (uses) 3 - % 3,840,031 $ 665,841 $ 4,238,972
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
THIRD CREEK WWTP EXPANSION CONSTRUCTION

- SCHEDULE - OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GHAR)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Bchedule 20

REVENUES:
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development:
Debt issuance costs
Capital Outlay - professional SBervices
Capital Outlay - construction
Capital Outlay - miscellanecus
Contingency

Total éxpenditures
Revenues (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Proceeds revolving loan
Transfers in:
Water and Sewer Operating Fund

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Buthorization Years Year to Date

115200 $ 118,411 § 7,181 $ 122,562
115,200 115,411 7,181 122,562
418,878 418,678 - 418,678
2,948,000 2,015,204 402,586 2,417,800
19,812,278 - 9,848,842 9,548,542
18,700 - - .
981,924 - - -
24,181,878 2,433,882 9,851,138 12,385,020
{£4,066,378) (2,318,471) (8,943,887) {12,262,458)
20,933,800 - 9,111,758 8,111,788
3,132,478 3,132,478 - 3,132,478
24,086,378 3,132,478 9,111,758, 12,244,236
- % 814007 § (832,229 § {18,222)

Page 107



Schedule 21

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTE CAROCLINA
 POURTH CREER WWTP CAPITAL FUND
“SCHEDULE OF REVEN UES, EXPENEITURES{AND CHANGESIN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
-From Inception and for the Year Ended June 38, 2014

REVENUES:
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Economic and physical development:
Capital Outlay - Professional Services
Total expenditures
Revenues (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in:
Water and Sewer Operating Fund

Total other financing sources

Actual
Project Prior Current Total

Authorization Years Year o Date
3 - % - 3 - 3 -
588,200 28,200 268,210 287,410
588,200 28,200 268,210 297,410

(B58,200) {28,200) (268,210) (297,410)

28,200 28,200 - 28,200
28,200 28,200 - 28,200

wvenues and other sources over expendifures § (830,000) $

$ (269,210) §  (269,210)
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Schedule 22
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTE CARGLINA

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND
CITY OF STATESVILLE CIVIC CENTER FUND- SCHEDULE OF
' REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
o " Forthe Year Ended Jans 30, 2014~~~ .

o . : Variance
Emended Favorable
Budget Hctual {Unfavorable)
CPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Fees % 234,000 % 294,701 $ 60,701
Total operating revenues 234,000 284,701 80,701
Hon-operating revenues:
Interest on investments 4,400 10,878 8,478
Total non-operating revenues 4,400 10,878 6,478
Total revenues 238,400 308,879 67,179
EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and employee benefits 387,014 385,103 1,811
Operating expenditures 389,881 361,146 28,748
Totzl expenditures 776,808 746,248 30,686
Total revenues over (under) expenditures (538,505} (440,670} 97,838
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Fund balance appropriated - - -
Transfers in:
Occupancey Tax Fund 860,866 560,866 -
Transfers out:
General Fund - PILOT {24,361 (22,361} -
Total other financing sources 838,508 538,503 -
Total revenues and other financing sources
other financing uses and expenditures $ - 87,835 $ 87,838

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified acerual) to full acerual:

Change in accrued compensated absences (3,195)
Change in other pest employee benefits (58.286)
Depreciation {193,842y
Total reconciling items {202,323)
Change in net position $ (104,488
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governments,
on a cost reimbursement basis. The City has the following Internal Service Funds:

Health Insurance Fund — accounts for the operations of the City’s health insurance plan and
wellness program.

Property and Casualty Liability Insurance Fund - accounts for the City's premiums and
retained loss portion of its property and casualty Hability, municipal equipment, workex's
compensation, and boiler and machinery.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINE
INTERNAL SERVICEFUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014

Schedule 23

Property and
Casualty
Health Liability
Insurance Insurance
Fund Fund Totals
KSBETS
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 928,078 % §15,268 & 1,643,344
Bceounts receivables, net 17,066 - 17,068
Interest receivable 1,218 807 2,028
Total assets $ 946,389 $ 618,078 $ 1,562,438
LIABILITIES
Accounfs payable and accrued liabilities $ 38,120 $ 14,822 $ 52,642
Accrued IBNR 376,638 200,524 577,162
Total liabilities 414,758 215,048 629,804
NET POSITION $ 531,601 $ 401,030 $ 932,631
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Schedule 24

CITY GF STATESVILLE, NORTE CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
- COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
. AND CHANGESIN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Operating revenues:
Employer's Contributions
Employee's Contributions
Insurance premiums charged to departments
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Claims - health, dental and worker's compensation
Administration and professional sexvices
Stop loss insurance and insurance premiums
Wellness and other claim expenses
Total operating expenses

Total operating inceme (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income

Total nonoperating income
Income (loss) before transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Property and
Casualty
Health Liability
Insurance Insurance
Fund Fund Totals

$ 2,699082 % - $ 2,895,052
787,718 - T8I, 715
- 696,524 596,924
3,486,767 696,924 4,183,691
2,784,128 327,881 3,112,116
205,412 15,250 220,662
232,221 480,743 712,864
14,567 57,601 72,168
3,238,325 881,888 4,117,910
250,442 (184,6681) 68,781
7,776 8,332 16,108
1,776 8,332 16,108
258,218 (176,328) 81,889
258,218 (176,328 81,888
273,383 877,359 850,742
3 831,601 § 401,030 3B 832,631
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
e HEALTHINSURANCEFUND ... ... ... .
 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE financing PLEN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)}
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Schedule 25

Variance
Financing Favorable
Plan Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Operating revenues:

Contributions from employer $ 2.8260268 $ 2,699,082 & (127,214

Contributions from employees 736,352 699,180 {37,172)

Contributions from retired employees and COBRA 112,000 88,535 {23,4658)

Wellness revenue 1,800 - {1,500y
Total operating revenues 3,676,118 3,486,767 (189,351)

Non operating revenues:

Investmnent earnings 3,000 7,778 4776
Total nonoperating revenues 3,000 7,776 4,778
Total revenues 3,679,118 3,454,543 {184,575}

EXPENDITURES:
Operating expenditures:

Wellness and other expenses 20,000 14,567 5,433

Third party administration 210,000 205,412 4,588

Stop loss insurance 260,000 232,821 27,779

Health claims 3,064,118 2,671,692 392,426

Dental claims 125,000 109,101 15,889
Total expenditures 3,678,118 3,232,893 446 128
Revenues and over expendifures % - 261,850 & 261,580

Reconciliation from financing plan {(modified accrual)

to full accrual:

Increase in incurred claims but not reported (IBNR) 3,332
Change in net position 3 288,218
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CIrY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

PROPERTY AND CASUALTY LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND
 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE-financing PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Schedule 28

REVENUES:
Operating revenues:
Insurance premiums charged to departments

Total operating revenues

Non operating revenues:
Investment earnings

Total nonoperating revenues
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Ovperating expenditfures:
Insurance premiums
Property loss claims
Worker's compensation claims
Worker's compensation Administration
Worker's compensation stop loss insurance
Total expendifures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Fund balance appropriated

Total other sources

Revenues and other sources (under) expenditures

Reconciliation from financing plan (modified accrual)
to full accrual:
Increase in incurred claims but not reported (IBNR)

Change in net position

Variance
Financing Favorable
Plan Actual (Cnfavorable)
$ 696,024 696,824 & -
696,924 696,024 -
5,000 8,332 3,332
5,000 8,332 3,332
101,924 705,286 3,332
428,500 426,523 1,877
62,800 87,601 4,898
218,424 209,704 5,720
16,000 15,280 730
54,500 84,220 280
776,824 763,288 13,628
{75,000) {58,042} 16,858
78,000 - (75,000)
75,000 - (75,000}
$ - (68,042 § {68,042)
(118,287)
{178,329)
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Ec

hedule 27

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from employer and employees
Cash paid for claims and insurance

Net cash (used) by operating activities

Cash fiows from investing activities operating activities:
Interest on investments and miscellaneous

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year, july 1

End of year, June 3¢

Reconciliation of operating loss {o net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by ocperating activities:
Changes in assets and liahilities:
Increase in prepaid items
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in accounts payable and acorued liabilities

Net cash {used) by operating activities

Property and
Casualty
Health Liability
Insurance Insurance
Fund FPund Totals
$ 3,486,767 & 696,924  § 4,183,681
(3,234,413) (152,657) (3,987,070)
252,384 {58,733) 196,621
1,582 8,511 16,063
259,806 (47,222) 212,684
668,169 862,451 1,330,860
$ 928,078 § 615,269 & 1,643,344
$ 250,442 § (184,6681) % 65781
{17,082) - {17,082)
174 - 174
18,790 128,828 147,718
$ 282,354 (65,783 § 196,621

Page 118



 DATA

ADDITIONAL FINZ

This section centaing additional information on property taxes.
» Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable — General Fund — City-Wide

» Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable ~ General Fund — Downtown Statesville Special
Tax District

» Analysis of Current Tax Levy - General Fund — City-Wide

« Analysis of Current Tax Levy ~ CGeneral Fund — Downtown Statesville Special Tax District
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Schedule 28
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
o GENERAL FUND - CITY-WIDE
For the Year Ended June 30, 204

Uncollected BTN SR ~Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year june 30, 2013 Additions and Credits Jone 30, 2014
“Paxand Tag $ - 3 469,707 % 489,707 $ -
2014 - 11,774,787 11,401,182 373,608
2013 453,891 - 278,788 174,823
2012 166,208 - 38,778 127,425
2011 118,488 - 19,154 99,301
2010 891,220 - 10,446 80,774
2009 70,481 - 7,086 63,385
2008 54,328 - 1,888 52,440
2007 47,128 - 1,183 45,9458
20086 48,738 - 1,169 47,589
2005 33,405 - 825 32,780
2004 50,695 - 50,685 -
$ 1,134,381 $ 12,244 484 $ 12,280,683 1,098,152
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts - city-wide 339,470
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net $ 758,682
RECONCILIATION WITH REVENUES:
$ 12,301,507
Reconciling ltems:
Penalties and Interest 97,733
Releases and adjustmenis {118,547)
Total collections and credits % 12,280,883

 Tax and Tag see financial note page 38 regarding motor vehicles levy committed to Department
of Motor Vehicles for collection.
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Schedule 2%

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREN TAXES RECEIVABLE.
GENEREL FUND - DOWNTOWN STATESVILLE SPECIAL THAX DIS TRE cr
S “For the Year Ended fune 30, 2014

Uncollected : : : 1Incollected
Balance Coliections Balance
Fiscal Year City-wide Additions and Credits Registered
" Tax and Tag $ - $ 4,008 $ 4,008 $ -
2014 - 9,417 95,838 3,479
2013 3,394 {8) 1,588 1,788
2012 2,911 - 823 1,888
2011 804 - 1086 788
2010 467 - - 467
20098 400 - - 400
2008 438 - - 438
2007 318 - - 318
2008 332 - - 332
2008 358 - - 358
2004 388 - 388 -
$ 9,900 $ 103,418 3 102,352 10,366
Less allowance for uncolleciible accounts - Downtown 3,204
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net $ 7,162
RECONCILIATION WITH REVENUES:
Reconciling items: 8 102,433
Discoveries and adjusiments 518
Total collections and credits 3 102,852

' Tax and Tag see financial note page 38 regarding motor vehicles levy committed to Department
of Motor Vehicles for collection.,
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY

GENERAL FUND - CITY. ELEVY

" For the Year Ended june 30, 2014

Sechedule 3¢

ORIGINAL LEVY:
Property taxed at current
vear's rate

" Tax and Tag
Penalties

TOTAL OCRIGINAL LEVY
DISCOVERIES:
Current year rate and taxes

Penalties

TOTAL DISCOVERIES

RELEASES/TAY AND TAG UNCOLLECTED:

Current yvear rate
Penaltieg

TOTAL RELEASES

Net assessed valuation

Net Levy

Uncollected taxes , june 30

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage rate

" Tax and Tag see financial note page 38 regarding moter vehicles levy committed to Department

of Motor Vehicles for collection.

Total Levy
Property
excluding
City-wide Registered Registered
Property Rate Amount Moetor Motor
Valuation per $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicies

$ 2,848,088,537 04100 $ 11,677,081 $ 11,300,334 $§ 378,747
114,562,665 468,707 - 469,707

- 8,665 8,665 -
2,962,631,232 12,155,453 11,308,889 846,454
25,780,244  0.4100 106,699 100,448 5,251

- 13,147 13,147 -

25,780,244 118,846 113,585 5,251
(7,188,283) 0.4100 {29,472) {17,887 (11,888)

- (333) {333) -
(7,188,283) {29,805) {17,920) (11,885)
$ 2,881,223,183

12,244,494 11,404,674 836,820
{373,605) (330,845) {42,660)

§ 11,870,886 $ 11,073,728 § 787,160
96,95% 97.10% 04.82%
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Sechedule 31
CIVY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCGLINA
ANBLYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
GENERAL FUND -BOWN TOWN STATESVILLE SPECML TAX DIS TRI cr
- - FPor-the Year Ended j'une &0, 2014

" Tax and Tag see financial note page 38 regarding motor vehicles levy committed to Department

of Motor Vehicles for collection.

Total Levy
Property
excluding
City-wide Registered Registered
Property Rate Amount Motor Motor
Yaluation per $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
CRIGINAL LEVY:
Property taxed at current
year's rate $ 99,198,240 D.1000 § 99,188 $ 87,287 $ 1,831
' Tax and Tag 4,008,000 4,009 - 4,009
Penalties - 144 144 -
TOTAL ORIGINAL LEVY 103,207,240 103,381 97,411 5,040
DISCOVERIES:
Current year rate and taxes 305,000 0.1060 308 282 23
Penalties - 25 25 -
TOTAL DISCOVERIES 308,000 330 307 23
RELEASES/TAX AND TAG UNCOLLECTED:
Current year rate {2B5,319)  0.1000 {(288) (223) {32y
Penalties - - - -
TOTAL RELEASES {2B8,31%) {255) (223) {38)
Net aszessed valuation $ 103,856,621
WHet Levy 103,428 97,495 5,831
Uncollected taxes , June 30 (3,47%) {3,406} (13)
Current year's taxes collected $ 99,847 § 84,089 5,858
Current levy collection percentage rate 86.64% 98.51% 88.77%
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. STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Statesville's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclogures, and requived supplementary information says about the governments overall
financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 124
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Rewvenue Capacity 134
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most
significant local revenue source, the property tax. The Cily's other major local revenue
sources are its utility revenues of which the Electric Utilities revenues are the largest (see
Table 22).

Debt Capacity 45
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 148

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators tc help the reader
understand the environment within which the government's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 152
These schedules contain sexvice and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government
provides and the activities it performs.
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Table !
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
 NET ASSETS BY CATEGORY (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{accrual bagis of accounting)

2004-2005 2008-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008

Governmental activities
invested in capital asset, net of related debt $§ 30,608,013 $§ 36,088,271 § 44,940,061 $ 48,001,180
Restricted for:
Stabilization by state statue - - - -
Public safety 2,486,305 1,181,168 1,883,567 2,135,787

Transportation 158,156 181,186 874,768 216,563
Economic development 534,596 618,080 734,392 402,664
Debt service - - - -
Capital ouilay - - 7,487,250 4,005,388
Unrestricted 28,513,882 28,538,264 27,088,084 31,399,891
Total governmental activities net assets 62,300,952 87,573,896 83,024,122 86,161,471

Bausiness-type activities

Invested in capital asset, net of related debt 60,404,087 60,861,048 64,508,624 83,614,851
Unrestricted 32,438 B3B8 33,438,828 34,850,320 18,104,041
Total business-type aciivities net assets 92,842,675 93,809,870 99,356,944 101,718,802
Primary government
invested in capital asset, net of related debt 81,012,100 56,619,316 109,455,688 131,616,031
Restricted for:
Stabilization by state statue - - - -
Transportation 2,488,305 1,181,168 1,883,887 2,138,787
Public Safety 158,156 181,156 874,788 216,563
Economic development 834,596 615,080 134,392 402,664
Debt service - - - -
Capital projecis 7,487,250 4,005,386
Unyestricted 60,852,470 62,977,079 61,945,404 48,503,932
Total primary government net assefs $ 1585,143.627 % 181,573,766 § 182,381,086 § 187,880,383
Notes:

) Accounting standards require that net assets be reported in three components in the financing statements:

invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Net assets are considered restricted
when 1) externally imposed by creditors {such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation
of other governments or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.
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Table I

2008-2009 2008-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$ 53,828,159 $ 650,880,385 $ 59,908,456 § 66,160,070 $ 67,394,632 $ 68,264,801
- - - 8,568,574 5,124,143 8,282,769
3,360,812 2,610,583 8,276,002 387,206 77,821 60,645
78,736 1,696,694 383,871 1,332,646 771,303 1,318,672
331,342 319,743 888,021 324,831 353,599 444,247

. - - - 203,653 61,249
1,142,748 1,133,887 8,524,131 6,470,058 5,144,063 3,659,885
29,392,370 30,087,302 24,885,268 19,242,685 21,397,924 21,496,485
88,133,867 56,727,608 100,862,839 99,433,970 100,557,138 101,585,753
66,082,354 65,435,328 65,578,645 65,215,357 65,470,169 87,271,306
34,085,881 38,717,074 34,648,769 35,113,541 35,885,077 33,761,098
101,067,985 101,152,402 100,227,414 100,328,898 101,355,246 101,033,001
120,810,513 126,318,727 125,487,101 131,375,427 132,864,801 135,536,707
- - - 5,368,574 5,124,143 6,282,769
3,360,812 2,610,583 6,278,002 337,206 77,821 60,845
78,736 1,695,694 383,871 1,332,646 771,303 1,315,672
331,342 319,743 885,021 324,831 353,599 444,247

- - - . 293,653 61,249
1,142,748 1,183,887 8,524,131 6,470,958 5,144,063 3,659,885
35,717,074 65,804,376 59,584,037 54,356,226 57,283,001 55,257,580
$ 161,440,925 $ 197,880,010 § 201,090,283 $ 199,762,868 § 201,912,384 $ 202,618,784
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

| CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{acciual basis of accounting)

Takle 2

2004-2008 2005-2008 2008-2007 2007-2008
Expenses by Functions/Programs
Covernmental Bcotivities:
General government $ 3618839 § 3,668,728 § 5028849 § 4,870,260
Public safety 8,433,186 8,854,958 9,507,613 8,812,303
Transportation 1,591,127 1,784,873 3,428,782 2,552,708
Economic and physical development 284,644 422,002 1,087,871 687,843
Environmental protection 1,826,871 1,837,472 1,857,790 2,043,848
Ciultural and recreation 1,884,978 2,034,064 2,357,781 2,860,402
Interest on long-term debt 97,328 108,644 97,303 85,272
Subtotal governmenryal aciivities 17,847,053 18,808,742 23,403,889 22,712,734
Business-Type Activities:
Electric 33,213,561 34,325,012 34,781,756 36,808,447
Water and sewer 7,873,812 8,758,206 8,659,878 8,838,867
Civic Center 797,484 795,543 789,198 743,028
Subtotal business-type activities 41,984 857 48,878,761 44 270,832 46,091,443
Total primary goverrnment expenses $ 59831810 § 62787503 § 67,674,421 § 68,804,177
Program Revenues by Punctions
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General government $ 540,882 & 240,128 % 240,128 % 211,811
Public safety 328,221 381,208 323,180 238,714
Transportaticn 50,907 390,138 477,950 470,080
Economic and physical development - - - -
Environmenial protection 488,502 308,051 477,523 311,823
Cultural and recreation 183,034 175,806 236,072 342,981
Operating grants and contributions 1,427,048 1,396,861 683,582 281,178
Capital grants and contributions 4,072,478 1,838,558 4,513,373 1,493,838
Total governmental activities program actt 7,102,073 4,831,448 6,821,819 3,360,223
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Electric 33,587,354 34,434,668 385,881,680 37,804,704
Water and sewer 8,426,738 9,416,658 3,896,756 8,882,330
Civic Center 218,748 225,488 276,847 284,148
Operating grants and contributions 247,713 - - -
Capital grants and contributions - - 700,000 -
Total business-type activities 42,490,551 44,076,813 46,485,023 47,971,181
Total primary government programrev_§ 49,582,624 § 48,508,261 § 53,376,842 § 51,331,414
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Yakble 2 {cont'd)

Page ] of 2

2008-2009 2008-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$ 3,380,680 % 3,285,0i1¢ 8 3,346,041 & 3274004 § 3,240,212 0§ 5,433,347
10,439,606 11,206,823 11,408,145 11,884,709 12,208,588 12,410,600
3,370,012 3,400,844 3,412,045 3,468,402 3,540,251 4,246,210
900,468 798,808 806,305 965,655 1,332,842 947,827
2,159,733 2,077,498 2,085,048 2,130,548 1,846,780 1,715,843
2,996,656 3,145,451 3,367,653 3,417,748 3,481,787 3,354,183
12,823 81,868 215,735 352,889 306,561 264,834
23,330,279 23,889,400 24,700,813 25,603,923 26,047,718 26,370,714
37,157,603 38,513,061 40,889,432 41,832,781 44,304,027 46,048,791
9,857,806 §,440,5586 8,286,106 8,502,048 9,389,620 3,586,589
825,678 817,270 861,817 848,125 948,860 047,488
47,841,177 48,770,687 B0,737,485 51,882,054 54,642,216 56,579,878
$ 71,171,486 $ 73,760,287 $ 75,438,428 § 77488877 $ 80,680,934 § 82,950,532
$ 128,836 3 69,423 3 86,614 § 379,338 & - 8 46,877
365,811 287,186 337,832 188,223 308,753 338,183
469,067 506,981 473,426 322,757 618,518 791,434
- 70,645 4,511 - 802,685 45
309,681 328,217 293,688 288,080 448,087 165,632
511,747 751,558 816,694 831,655 820,940 819,738
330,808 817,021 865,836 501,583 834,006 815,180
1,224,679 8,508,280 3,118,406 1,493,184 2,103,132 846,680
3,241,386 11,438,682 6,005,007 4,014,847 5,986,058 3,721,880
36,661,251 38,102,380 41,873,877 41,334,087 44,989,787 47,531,836
8,508,110 9,348,940 8,146,998 8,973,284 9,464,072 0,468,113
360,010 283,018 277,414 254,004 288,388 294,701
- - - 560,834 877,497 13,400
46,469,371 48,144,349 51,398,288 51,121,919 85,690,744 57,308,049
$ 49,710,767 § 60,183,031 $ 57,403,203 § bB5,136,766 $ 61,686,803 § 61,029,929
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Fable 2
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINE
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (UNAUDITED) -CONTINUED
. FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
faccrual basis of accounting)

2004-2008 2005-20086 2006-2007 2007-2008
Ceneral Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assefs
Governmental Bctivities:
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes $ 9,450,204 $ 9,297,047 $ 0,493,508 §% 10,872,577
Local sales iax option 5,790,147 5,848,223 6,310,408 6,416,272
Other taxes 1,304,528 1,319,265 1,218,733 1,128,731
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,564,550 1,544,840 1,830,374 2,086,856
Interest earned on invesiments 686,748 898,648 1,779,224 1,882,528
Miscellaneocus 1,348 273,825 224,245 83,313
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - (53,847) 24,823 -
Transfers in {(out) 36,728 122,336 185,084 288 483
Total governmental activities 18,834,283 19,350,238 21,184,383 22,489,860
Business-Type Activitfies:
Interest earned on investments 707,955 1,081,478 1,776,861 1,461,287
Miscellaneous 50,514 - 868,462 (679,614)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - - {199,208) -
Transfer in {out) {36,728} {123,336) {185,084) {289,483)
Total business-type activities 721,741 989,143 2,261,031 482,200
Total primary government 19,855,684 20,308,381 23,425,424 22,872,080
Changes in Net Assels
Governmental activities 8,088,273 2,868,168 1,811,882 2,400,977
Business-type activities 1,227,438 3,143,634 4,140,779 (888,6086)
Total prirmary government $ 9,318,708 & 6,011,802 $ 5,982,681 $ 1,511,371
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Fable 2 (vcont'd}
Page 2 of 2

2008-2008 2008-2010 2010-2011 2011-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014

& 11,574,508 ¢ 11,602,821 % 11,760,600 ¢ 11,316,717 % 12,144,774 § 12,328,641

5,628,740 5,113,327 8,452,410 8,105,479 5,268,457 5,491,152
1,057,366 1,208,288 1,273,835 1,321,032 808,880 1,626,638
2,147,614 2,023,140 2,138,048 2,118,304 2,808,518 2,316,788
1,217,313 554,801 108,840 263,126 {149,740) 311,881
101,868 175,648 268,874 195,157 238,313 175,411
409,889 470,151 1,830,890 (157,608) 253,654 1,425,938
22,137,408 21,148,277 22,831,197 20,160,207 21,174,827 23,877,449
1,130,748 583,808 244,771 256,414 (103,514) 375,822

- - - 448,497 334,888 -

(408,888) (470,181 (1,830,590) 157,608 {253,654) {1,425,938)
720,848 123,454 (1,585,818) 862,818 {32,180) {1,080,416)
22,888,258 21,271,731 21,245,378 21,022,728 21,182,647 22,627,033
0,586,691 2,482,311 1,242,121 108,848 1,123,158 1,028,618
694,311 184,285 (3,346,854) 1,611,047 1,626,348 {322,248)

$ 10,281,002 § 3,236,896 $  (1,104,733) 8§ 2,019,888 § 2,149816 § 706,370
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_ CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA
 FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (UNAUDITED;)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{meodified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 3

General Fand
Non Spendable
Reserved for inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute
Debt service
" Reserved for encumbrances
Committed
Assigned
Subsequent year's appropriation
Unassigned

Subtotal governmental activities

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved for:
! Reserved for encumbrances
Restricted, reportied in:
Stabilization by state statute
Special revenue funds
Committed
Capital project funds {(deficit)
Unassigned {deficit)

Subtotal other governinental activities

Total governmental fund balance

General Fund unassigned fund balance as a
percent of expenditures {including transfer out)

Notes:

2004-2008 2008-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008
$ 26,282 § 27,224 § 26,732 § 27,406
2,212 2,019 827 15,096
3,348,484 2,343,075 2,392,401 2,554,149
2,714,631 1,547,264 2,944,350 5,108,820
- . 2,890,000 2,100,000
19,118,873 22,102,320 15,142,878 15,205,365
28,207,182 26,111,902 23,397,197 25,011,836
2,235,425 1,079,484 7,688,381 5,700
2,604,028 1,256,886 212,246 511,713
3,106,554 2,383,200 2,122,202 2,010,816
(3,426,211)  (1,027,252) 1,470,188 5,645,881
4,519,796 3,692,318 11,493,017 8,174,110

$ 29,726,948  § 20,804,220 § 34,890,214 § 33,185,946
99.10% 103.38% 52.97% 65.99%

4 Encumbrances are no longer included in fund balance in accordance with GASE 34 heginning fiscal year 2010-11.

Page 130



Fable 3

2008-2009 2009-2010 2610-201 1 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$ 27680 % 16790 $ 26091 $ 26487 $ 28,182 § 31,027
6,940 4,510 320 2,470 2,985 4,290
2,349,670 2,730,688 3,189,241 3,384,316 3,971,058 3,414,788
- - . . 293,853 61,249
5,733,866 4,188,338 - - - .
- . 750,940 - - .
- 852,150 1,847,967 270,292 286,323 998,745
17,389,011 17,401,057 18,218,742 19,403,631 21,017,856 20,315,639
95,607,076 24,993,503 23,883,301 23,087,206 25,600,055 24,825,738
1,070,032 2,479,753 . - - .
363,022 561,960 79,991 2,181,258 1,153,086 2,867,981
1,048,880 4,099,157 955,625 1,094,683 1,202,723 1,820,564
- - 1,342,079 6,470,058 - .
4,203,388 2,666,400 13,661,420 - 5,144,063 3,659,885
- - - (85,676) . -
7,586,269 9,807,270 16,068,115 10,361,223 7,498,872 8,348,430
$ 33,003,345  $ 34,800,773 $ 40,052,416 § 33,648,420 § 33,009,927 $ 33,174,168
63.26% 67.97% 67.54% 76.15% | 82.47% 73.40%
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Table §

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNIMENTAL FUNDS (UNAYDITED)
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Eevenues {by source}:
Ad valorem taxes
Sales Tax
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures (by function):
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation

Capital ouilay
Debt service:
Principat
Interest on long-term debt

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Transier from component unit
Proceeds from long-term delbt

Total other financing sources (uses)

Wet change in fund balance

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
expenditures

2004-2005 2008-2008  2006-2007 2007-2008
$ 6,541,219 $9,229,195 & 9,534,403 § 10,962,849
8,500,018 5,846,223 6,310,405 6,416,272
1,323,287 1,204,561 1,151,318 1,128,730
1,819,575 1,814,360 1,986,661 2,096,957
5,221,262 3,125,282 5,165,415 1,780,407
745,322 750,002 670,787 622,716
537,692 840,747 1,066,972 1,007,280
645,044 943,604 1,682,542 1,489,005
540,580 167,876 127,491 114,052
25,874,009 23,921,850 27,696,084 25,619,168
3,423,610 3,465,145 4,783,022 4,428,289
7,844,550 8,385,206 8,825,199 9,401,987
1,486,356 1,694,167 1,673,689 1,011,510
294,644 408,044 1,038,429 687,942
1,672,009 1,769,566 1,793,815 1,918,679
1,892,447 1,878,769 2,116,144 2,680,000
8,074,210 5,897,977 2,108,107 7,063,833
89,504 388,000 355,000 355,000

- 112,950 100,710 88,679
24,777,330 23,966,914 22,785,115 27,622,919
1,096,679 (45,064) 4,900,939 (2,003,751)
2,216,600 2,645,936 11,172,268 1,245,064
(2,179,962)  (2,523,603) (10,887,208) (945,581)
3,300,000 - - -
3,336,728 122,336 188,058 209,483
$ 4,433,407 $ 77,272 % 5,085,804 § (1,704,268)
0.84% 2.58% 2.20% 2.16%
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Table 4

2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$11,487,668 $ 11,515,195 $11,603,732 $ 11,310,155 $ 12,139,952 $ 12,403,940
5,628,740 5,113,327 5,452,410 5,105,479 5,269,457 5,491,152
1,072,667 1,208,289 1,271,879 1,321,032 1,631,962 1,626,638
2,147,614 2,023,140 2,139,049 2,116,304 2,608,519 2,316,788
1,555,184 9,396,440 3,724,998 2,078,787 2,951,620 1,539,487
544,248 526,627 542,334 554,325 439,269 447,208
1,347,115 1,393,927 1,502,159 1,457,941 1,788,988 1,679,939
1,090,462 466,568 235,024 253,517 (121,635) 347,082
101,971 134,024 468,319 206,288 449,217 138,603
24,975,669 31,777,837 26,939,904 24,403,828 27,157,349 25,990,837
3,113,999 3,057,326 3,114,368 3,025,762 3,537,203 3,134,239
9,860,172 10,514,864 10,863,716 11,309,003 11,990,414 11,576,160
2,158,865 1,751,549 1,786,894 1,781,557 2,007,509 1,739,707
900,468 797,915 806,305 1,021,655 2,212,781 947,827
1,946,932 1,934,002 1,960,189 1,979,079 1,918,623 1,593,054
5,795,858 2,974,884 2,965,898 2,974,985 3,264,938 2,921,604
1,194,515 11,037,173 8,199,597 6,597,977 1,489,469 3,936,559
355,000 355,000 549,700 1,249,700 1,249,700 1,224,700
76,230 63,990 272,184 360,490 288,867 268,684
25,402,039 32,486,703 30,518,851 30,300,208 27,959,504 27,342,534
(426,370) (709,166)  (3,578,947)  (5,896,380) (802,185)  (1,351,697)
3,446,361 4,950,672 6,849,267 2,266,764 4,532,958 5,458,684
(3,036,462) (4,480,521)  (5,018,677)  (2,774,371)  (4,279,308)  (4,032,746)
- 1,947,000 7,000,000 - - -

409,899 2,417,151 8,830,590 (507,607) 253,653 1,425,938

$ (16,471) $ 1,707,985 $ 5,251,643 $ (6,403,987) $ (548,502) $ 74,241
1.78% 1.95% 3.68% 6.79% 5.81% 6.38%
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Table §
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS @
{accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Privilege

Ended Property Bales License Occupancy

june 30 Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2008 $ 59,450,204 & 5,790,147 § 373,482 $ 640,818 $ 16,283,661
2006 9,287,047 5,846,223 311,283 518,589 16,139,142
2007 8,603,330 6,310,408 381,277 879,213 16,974,228
2008 10,872,577 5,418,272 367,888 129,640 18,386,347
2008 11,574,508 5,628,740 393,722 627,122 18,224,092
2010 11,602,821 8,113,327 367,589 648,388 17,732,148
2011 11,760,600 5,482,410 348,992 577,747 iB,239,74%
2012 11,316,717 6,269,487 341,000 733,086 17,660,260
2013 12,144,774 5,268,457 587,341 803,820 18,808,401
2014 12,329,641 8,491,182 865,357 818,518 19,304,662
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Table §
... CITYOF SYATESVILLE, NORTH CARCQLINA . . . ..
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS
{medified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Privilege

Ended Property Sales License Occupancy

June 30 Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2008 $ 8,892,582 $ 5,126,617 $ 388,532 3 657,586 § 15,036,327
2006 9,641,218 5,800,018 313,492 633,048 16,047,778
2007 8,229,188 5,848,223 377,283 618,588 16,840,680
2008 9,534,403 6,310,408 381,277 679,213 16,808,288
2008 10,962,849 6,418,272 367,858 728,640 18,476,618
2010 11,487,668 5,628,740 383,722 627,122 18,137,282
2011 11,803,132 5,452,410 348,992 677,747 18,082,881
2012 12,139,852 5,269,457 341,000 733,086 18,483,485
2013 12,139,882 5,260,457 687,341 803,828 18,800,879
2014 12,403,840 8,491,152 668,357 818,517 19,378,961
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NOGRTH CARCLINA
. ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXARLE PROPERTY {UNAUDITED)

Table ¥

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS ©
TMotor Vehicle
Fiscal Year and = Public Total Total
Ended Real Personal Service Assessed Direct
June 30 Tax Year Propesxty Property Companies Value Tax Rate
2008 2004 $ 1,509,480,141 § 779,516,827 § 38,749,366 § 2,427,716,434 0.3838
2006 2008 1,653,896,167 703,483,218 38,843,968 2,396,303,385 €.3837
2007 2008 1,734,8482,543 715,624,404 37,638,862 2,488,105,809 0.3835
2008 2007 2,032,483,274 167,214,046 38,508,312 2,838,215,632 0.3838
2008 2008 2,074,554,266 881,188,760 38,461,548 3,004,2058,5758 0.3833
2010 2009 2,080,286,384 867,458,305 41,940,666 3,008,688,445 0.3833
2011 2010 2,135,719,487 865,858,608 43,397,510 3,044,875,606 0.3833
2012 2011 2,046,476,967 881,682,471 45,081,888 2,943,241,326 0.3835
2013 2012 2,035,371,098 844,746,172 46,805,288 2,926,922,555 0.4135
2014 2013 2,036,899,857 898,217,364 46,108,962 2,981,223,183 0.4135

' Assessed valuations are established by the Board of County Commissioners at 100 percent of estimated
market value. A revaluation of real property is required by the North Carolina General Statutes at least
every eight years. The last revaluation was completed in tax year 2011, levied for fiscal year ending June 30,
2012. Next revaluation will be effective for January 1, 2015,

/

$3,500,000,000

$3,000,000,000

$2,500,000,000

$2,000,0006,000

$E£,500,000,000

$£1.009,000,000

$500,000,000

Ten year history of Assessed Values as of June 30

$- -

2006

20017

2614

v
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TEX RATES
. DIRECT AND OVERLEPPING GOVERNMENTS . . .

(Per 3100 of Assessed Value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 8

City of
Statesville
Birect
City of City of Tax Rate
Fiscal Year  Siatesville Statesville Iredell Pilus
Ended City ~wide Downtown Direct County County
fune 30 Tax Rate Tax Rate Brax Rate Tax Rate Tax Rate
2005 £.380 0.100 0.384 0.435 0.819
2008 0.380 0.100 0.384 0.435 0.818
2007 £.380 0.100 0.384 0.468 0.84%
2008 §.380 0.100 $.383 0.445 (.828
2008 0.380 0.100 0.383 0.445 0.828
2010 ¢ £.380 0.100 0.383 0.445 0.828
2011 0.380 0.100 0.384 (0.485 0.869
2012 0.380 0.100 (.384 0.485 0.868
2013 0.410 0.100 0.414 0.485 0.899
2014 0.410 0.100 0.414 0.485 0.869
' Direct tax rate is the prorata rate of the city-wide and special district rates.
r _\
Tax Rate per $100 of Assessed Value
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
% emyieee Iradell County mogeere St atesville
0.80C ‘:
0.500 - k
- 56
PRI BV L y =
0.400 — - _ - - . e
0300 - e -
i
0.200 ;
0.100
0.000 i
2008 2008 2007 2008 2008 2016 2011 2012 2013
AN y
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L OTEY OF sSTATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED AND APPRAISED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPER‘E‘Y

GENERAL FUND - DOWNTOWN STATESVILLE SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT

Table §

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Total

$105,000,000

$160,000,000

395,000,000

$50,000,000

$85,000,000

$80,000,000

$75,600,000

Fiscal Year Assessed

Ended Assessed Eppraised Value to Total

June 38 Value Value Appraised Value
2005 $ 86,876,298 $ 86,876,298 100%
2006 89,420,820 89,420,820 100%
2007 87,813,703 87,813,703 100%
2008 98,842,000 98,842,000 100%
2009 100,043,730 100,043,730 100%
2010 100,360,897 100,360,987 100%
2011 101,690,327 103,654,000 100%
2012 103,785,047 103,788,047 100%
2013 102,586,150 102,896,180 100%
2014 103,286,921 103,256,921 100%

Downtows Special District Assessed and Appraised Value
$116,000,000 e

2005

2006 2007

2009 2010

2012

2013

2014
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
. GENERAL FUND - CITY-WIDE

Fable IO

Last Ten Years
Ratio of Ratio of
Fiscal Total Tax Percent of Tofal Tax Delinquent
Year Levy for Current Delinquent Collections Taxes
Ended Curent Current Tax  Taxes Tax Total Tax to Total Delinguent  to Total
June 30 TaxYear Fiscal Year Collections Collected Collections Collections Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2008 2004 $8,388,731 $46,127,207 97.11%  $268,018 $9,385,222 989.86% § 734,111 1.81%
2006 2008 8,127,298 8,836,465 86.81% 251,848 9,088,310 98.51% 758,783 8.29%
2007 2006 9,487,143 6,153,218 96.48% 241,287 9,394,506 98.02% 833,226 8.68%
2008 2001 10,788,271 13,484,055  87.30% 291,216 10,806,082 100.19%% 776,842 7.20%
2008 2008 11,463,138 11,096,523  96.80% 264,061 11,360,584 98.11% 879,287 1.87%
2010 2008 11,614,546 11,103,358  86.43% 332,789 11,438,188 98.32% 957,658 8.32%
2013 2010 11,808,744 11,145,620 96.01% 323,674 11,459,884 9B.80% 1,087,107 8.45%
2012 zZo11 11,320,837 10,880,248  96.20% 369,223 11,280,471 98.48% 1,108,411 9.79%
2013 aclz 12,022,138 11,568,448  86.23% 388,300 11,987,748 99.48% 1,134,351 9.44%
2014 2013 12,244,494 11,870,885  96.953% 356,284 12,227,173 98.86% 1,088,152 8.87%

Note: Ratio of Total Tax Collections to Total Tax Levy inchudes only the current levy.

87.50%

87.00%

96.50%

96.00%

85.50%

85.00%

Fiscal Year Current Levy Percentage of Collections - City Wide

2003

2006

002

20068

2008

201¢

2011

2012

2013

2014

Page 139



. CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
GENERAL FUND - DOWNTOWN STATESVILLE SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT
Last Ten Years

Table 1}

Ratio of Ratio of
Piscal Total Tax Percent of Total Tax Delinquent
Year Levyfor Cumrent Cwrrent Delinguent Collections Outstanding  Taxes
Ended Tax Curent Tax Taxes Tax Total Tax  toTotal Delinguent to Total
June 30 Year Fiscal Year Collections Collected CollectionsCollections Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2005 2004 § 86,808 $84,181 97.21% & 3,078 §$87.270 100.77% § 71,164 8.27%
2008 2005 89,421 87,812 971.87% 1,908 89,421 10G.00% 7,164 8.01%
2007 2006 87,8985 87,014 98.88% 985 87,888  100.00% 8,285 7.11%
2008 2007 98,840 87,707 98.75% 1,233 88,032  100.10% 5,888 5.82%
2008 2008 100,287 97,078 96.80% 1,388 98,468 88.18% 1,677 7.66%
2010 200¢ 101,220 88,800 87.31% 3,044 101,844  100.32% 7,383 7.26%
2011 2010 101,871 98,897 87.08% 2,069 101,066 99.11% 8,258 8.10%
2012 2011 104,806 86,015 04.86% 2,721 101,736 87.26% 10,870 10.39%
2013 2012 102,586 98,202 96.68% 3,968 108,170  100.56% §,880 2.68%
2014 2013 103,426 98,847 98.84% 2,617 102,564 88.17% 10,368 10.02%

Note: Ratio of Total Tax Collections to Total Tax Levy includes only the current levy.

160.00%

98.00%

98.00%

91.00%

96.00%

85.00%

84.30%

§3.08%

B82.00%

Fiscal Year Current Levy Percentage of Collection - Downtown Special
Tax District

2405 2008 2002 2008 2009 2010 2811 2012 2013 20i4
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Table 12
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPEYERS - CITY WIDE (UNAUDITED)
' June 30, 2614 and june 30, 2005

In accordance with GASE No. 44, the following tables present information for the City's principal property
taxpavers as of June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2005 for City wide only. ' '

June 30, 2614 Percentage oif
Total Assessed Assessed
Taxpavyer Type of Business Valuation Valuation Tax Levy

Lowe's Home Improvement Retailer 4.72% $ 140,831,181 $%  B77.408
Providencia USA, Inc. Non-Woven Plastic Materials Mig. 4. 18% 124,473,896 510,343
Asmo NC, Inc. Electric Motor Mig. 1.80% 53,786,038 220,564
(38 Statesville Green Land  Real Estate 0.88% 27,320,310 112,013
Statesville HMA, Inc. Health Care Facility 0.70% 20,733,700 85,008
Newell Rubbermaid Home & Office Products, Tool Mfg. 0.61% 18,180,175 74,538
Centro NP Holdings Real Estate 0.55% 17,630,860 12,287
Pratt (Jett Corr) Inc Corrngated Container Mig. 0.48% 14,271,943 88,515
Venture Properties [ LLC Commerical Development 0.48% 14,202,960 68,232
Statesville Shoppes Corp.  Real Estate 0.43% 12,781,410 B2,281

Ten largest taxpayers 14.90% 444,192,487 1,821,190

All other taxpavers 85.10% 2,837,030,696 10,423,304

Totak 160.00% $ 2,981,223,183 §$ 12,244,404

June 30, 20605 Percentage of
Total Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation Tax Levy

Asmo NC, Inc. Electric Motor Mfg. 1.82% $ 46,643,514 3 177,245
Dana Corporation Off-Highway Equipment 1.30% 31,654,618 120,288
Commscope, inc. Cable Manufacturer 1.23% 29,813,109 113,290
Statesville HMA, Inc. Health Care Facility 1.08% 26,306,628 89,965
Excel Realty Trust of NC Shopping Center 0.97% 23,637,680 89,823
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. Tire Manvfacturing 0.77% 18,837,849 70,824
Hexcel Reinforcement Corp. Fiberglass Manufacturing 0.74% 18,034,063 68,528
C & ] Associates Real Estate 0.68% 16,018,263 60,869
Kewaunee Scientific Scientifice Equipment (.68% 15,664,023 84,222
Bell South Telecommunications 0.63% 15,236,487 62,470

Ten largest taxpayers 8.95% 241,848,338 827,526

Al other taxpayers 80.05% 2,186,070,095 7,479,190

Total: 100.00% $ 2,427,718434 § 8,408,718
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Fable 12

CITY OF STETESVILLE, NORTH CEROLINAE =
PRINCIPAL ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS

" Jume 38, 2014 and Yane 30, 2008
' Dellar Emount Percentage
of Annual of Total
Electric Electric Charges
Electric Cusiomer Type of Business Charges for Services

June 30, 2614
Providencia USA Non-Woven Plastic Materials 2,809,045 8.7%
City of Statesville Municipal Corporation 1,622,230 3.5%
Commscope Cable Manufacturey 1,369,603 3.0%
Eewaunee Scientific Scientific Equipment 1,112,114 2.4%
Iredell Memorial Hospital Health Care Facility 1,012,856 2.2%
International Paper Wood/Veneers 801,168 1.8%
Accuma Corporation Plastics/Batteries 852,373 1.5%
Statesgville Housing Authority Housing Authority 641,086 1.4%
Hunt-Bienfang Manufacturing Art Supply 627,860 1.4%
] C Steele & Sons Manufacture 561,680 1.2%

Ten largest electric users 11,300,018 24.6%

All other electric users 34,619,142 75.4%

Total electric charges $ 45,919,158 100.0%
June 30, 2605
Cormunscope Cable Manufacturer $ 1,588,622 4.8%
Eewaunee Scientific Scientific Equipment 661,113 2.0%
Beccuma Corporation Plastics/Batieries 597,968 1.8%
Mocaro Industries/Finishing Knit Fibers 576,878 1.8%
Hunt Manufacturing Art Supply 527,364 1.6%
Armstrong Hardweod Flooring 308,389 1.2%
Iredell Memorial Hospital Health Care Facility 381,485 1.2%
Statesville Housing Authority Public Housing 337,224 1.0%
City of Statesville Municipal Corporation 333,601 1.0%
ABC Colamco Autormnebile Parts 332,338 1.0%

Ten largest electric users 5,704,698 17.7%

All other electric users 28,562,721 82.3%

Total eleciric charges $ 32,287,420 100.0%

Source: City of Statesville'’s utility billing records.
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Table 14

CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA . .

PRINCIPAL WATER CUSTOMERS
' June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2005

Parcenfage
Bollar Emount of Total
of Annual Water Charges
Water Customer Type of Business Water Charges _ for Services
June 30, 2014
Stategville Housing Authority Housing Authority 3 84,600 2.3%
West Iredell Water Corp. Utility 81,453 2.2%
Mocaro Industries/Finishing  Knit Fabrics 16,043 1.8%
City of Statesville Municipal Corporation 62,874 1.7%
Iredell Memorial Hospital Health Care Facility 85,401 1.8%
Iredell Water Corporation Utility 50,663 1.4%
Mariner Post Acute Health Care Facility 45,356 1.3%
Clark-Schwebel Fiber Textile Manufacturer 36,083 1.0%
Kewaunee Scientific Scientific Equipment 29,421 0.8%
Rental Uniform Sve. Inc. Apparel Rental 27,534 0.8%
Ten largest water users 543,438 15.0%
Al other water users 3,082,826 85.0%
Total water charges 3 3,626,264 100.0%
Fune 30, 2005
Mocaro Industries/Finishing  Knit Pabrics $ 151,388 4.7%
Stategville Housing Authority  Housing Authority 80,325 2.5%
Town of Troutman Municipal Corporation 69,728 2.2%
West Iredell Water Corp. Utility 49,860 1.6%
Iredell Memorial Hospital Health Care Facility 40,346 1.3%
Iredell Water Corporation Uility 38,851 1.2%
Rental Uniform Sve. Inc. Apparel Rental 21,469 0.7%
City of Statesville Municipal Corporation 19,057 0.6%
Clark-Schwebel Fiber Fiberglass 16,383 0.5%
Kewaunee Scientific Scientific Equipment 15,482 0.4%
Ten largest water users 502,659 15.7%
All other water users 2,768,750 84.3%
Total water charges ¢ 3,211,406 100.0%

Source: City of Statesville's ufility billing records.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTHCAROLINA .

PRINCIPAL SEWER CUSTOMERS

Fable 15

Sewer Cusiomer

Type of Business

Bollar Ermount
of Ennual
Sewer Charges

Percentage
of Total
Jewer Charges
for Services

fune 30, 2014

Mocaro Industries/Finishing
Town of Troutman

Statesville Housing Authority
Iredeli Memaorial Hospital
Mariner Post Acute
Iredeli-Statesvilie School Adm
Rental Uniform

Kewaunee Scientific
Clark-Schwebel Fiber
Muetliers CIR Holdings, LLC

Juane 20, 2005

Mocare Industries/Finishing
Town of Troutman

Statesville Housing Authority
Iredell Memorial Hospital
Rental Uniform

City of Statesville

Davis Hospital
Clark-Schwebel Fibar
Kewaunee Scientific

Artcraft Foxcreoft

Enit Fabrics

Utility

Housing Authority
Health Care Facility
Health Care Facility
School System
Apparel Rental
Scientific Equipment
Fiberglass

Ten largest sewer users
Al other sewer users

Total sewer charges

Enit Fabrics

Municipal Corporation
Housing Authority
Health Care Facility
Apparel Rental
Municipal Corporation
Health Care Facility
Fiberglass

Scientific Equipment
Apartment Complex

Ten largest sewer users

All other sewer users

Total sewer charges

Scurce: City of Statesville's utility billing records.

$ 351,304 8.2%
290,415 51%
136,880 2.4%

88,402 1.6%
50,854 0.8%
48,730 0.6%
44,884 0.8%
43,228 $.8%
42,837 0.8%
35,070 0.6%
1,132,705 18.8%
4,577,793 80.2%

$ 5,710,488 100.0%

$ 386,288 8.3%
184,050 4.0%
130,383 2.8%

66,030 1.4%

34,885 0.8%

31,138 0.7%

30,863 0.7%

26,813 0.6%

28,384 0.5%

27,279 0.6%

942,883 20.4%
3,885,843 79.6%
$ 4,628,126 100.0%
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
.. RATIOS OF QUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Table 16

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year CGeneral General Total Percent of
Ended  Obligation Notes Obligation Notes Primary Personal * per
June 30, Bonds Payable Bonds Payable Covernment Income Capita
2008 $ 173,000 $3,300,000 $2,790,000 $ 18,501,538 $ 24,765,538 0.12% $ 994.20
2006 150,000 2,970,000 2,045,000 16,623,037 24,788,937 0.11% 876.06
2007 128,000 2,640,000 1,325,000 17,518,352 21,608,352 0.12% 828.10
2008 100,000 2,310,000 1,025,000 17,011,175 20,446,175 0.13% 765.66
2009 78,000 1,980,000 725,000 16,055,796 18,835,796 0.14% @ 696.62
2010 50,000 3,597,000 425,000 15,084,266 19,126,266 0.14% @ 700.03
2011 25,000 10,072,300 120,000 14,082,736 24,350,036 0.10% W 988.51
2012 25,000 8,847,600 120,000 13,051,207 24,350,036 8.10% W 988.51
2013 - 7,622,900 80,000 12,049,877 19,752,577 8.12% W 796.14
2014 - 6,398,200 - 20,189,905 26,588,105 8.10% O 1,083.13
Notes:

' Imformation on the City of Statesville alone is not available. The data presented are for Iredell County and
were obtained from the North Carolian Department of Commerce. Information for fiscal year 2013 for Iredell
County was $26,081.

% Prom the North Carolina Office of Management and Budget. For the report fiscal year are projections from
For fiscal year 2013 the population projections are from the North Carolina Office of Management and
Budget as of July 1, 2013. Estimate population for fiscal year 2013:

24,981
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. CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA
_ RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING (UNDAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDFTED)

Tabie I7

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Less: Amounts Total
Fiscal Year General General Available in Genearal U} percent of
Ended Obligation Obligation Debt Service Obligation Bssessed Per
Tune 30, Bonds Bonds Fund Bonds Value Capita
2005 $ 178,000 & 2,790,000 % - § 2,868,000 0.12% $ 119.02
2006 150,000 2,045,000 - 2,185,000 0.08% 86.43
2007 125,000 1,325,000 - 1,450,000 0.06% 55.87
2008 100,000 1,025,000 - 1,125,000 0.04% 42.13
2009 75,000 725,000 - 800,000 0.03% 29.58
2010 50,000 425,000 - 475,000 0.02% 17.39
2011 25,000 200,000 - 225,000 0.01% 9.13
2012 - 80,000 - 80,000 0.00% 3.25
2013 - - - - 0.060% -
2014 - - - - 0.00% -
Notes:

Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

! See schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Table 7.

“ The City is not obigated for any general obligation bonds or debt as of June 30, 2013.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
------ - coee - Legal Bebt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(ameounts expressed in thousands)

Tabie I8

Fiscal Years 2010 to 2014:

Debt Limit

Total net debt
applicable to lirnit

Legsal debt margin

Total net debi applicable to the lmit

as a percntage of debt limit

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for the current Fiscal Year:

Fiscal Years 2005 to 2008

Debt Limit

Total net debt
applicable to imit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt lHmit

2008-10 2010-11 201112 2012-13 2013-14

$ 240,608 § 243,874 $ 235,458 § 235488 § 230,888
478 25 - - -

§ 240,220 § 243,845 $235450 ¢ 238459 § 330,888
0.20% 0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total assessed value % 2,891,411
Less current year abatements 7,188
Assessed value of taxable property 2,888,600
Debt limif - eight percent (8%) of assessed value 239,888
Amount of debt applicable fo debt limit:

Total bonded debt -
Legal debt margin $ 239,888
2004-08 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-05
$ 184,217 $ 185,000 § 200,010 & 227,087 $§ 240,336

2,840 2,188 1,480 1,125 800
$ 191,277 $192,808 ¢$ 198,860 § 225,832 $ 239,536
1.51% 1.13% 0.72% 0.50% 0.33%
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Tabie 13
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA .
CGMPU TATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBRT (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2014
Alocated
Jurisdiction Principal Armount Total
Direct debi:
City of Statesville R 6,398,200 100% $ 6,398,200
Overlapping debt:
Iredell County ® 197,876,187 18% 30,508,744
$ 204,274,387 $ 36,800,944

w Long-term incindes general obligation bonds, commercial loans, lease purchase, and
certificates of participation. Compensated absences, other post employee benefits, monofill, and
obligations of the business-like funds are not included.
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Yable 20
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
DEMIOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS -+

FOR THE LAST TEN YEERS
Fiscal Year Population Per Capita Unemployment Median School
Ended fune 30, Estimate ’  Personal Income @ Rate ¥ Age ™  Enrollment ®
2005 24,911 3 29,676 4.8% 37.00 18,281
2006 25,387 28,038 4.4% 3%7.20 20,201
2007 26,084 26,388 4.6% 37.26 20,792
2008 26,704 26,818 6.1% 38.00 21,238
2008 27,038 258,743 12.8% 38.00 Z1,168
2010 27,322 26,641 12.6% 358.00 21,146
2011 24,8532 25,018 11.6% 37.10 21,130
2012 24,833 24,859 10.1% 37.10 21,239
2013 24,710 24,833 9.2% 37.10 21,447
2014 24,881 26,031 8.5% 40.00 21,238

Sonrces:

! From the North Carolina Office of Management and Budget. For the report fiscal year are
projections from the North Carolina Office of Management and Budget. The population estimates are
determined as of July 1 of each year. Estimate 2013 of 24,710 was the basis for allocating sales tax for
fiscal year 2014.

% Information on the City of Statesville alone is not available, The data presented are for Iredell
County and were obtained from the North Carolian Department of Commerce. Information for fiscal
year 2013 for Iredeli County was $26,031.

% Prom the North Carolina Department of Commaerce.

* From the North Carolina Department of Comimerce,

5 Information on the City of Statesville alone is not available, The data presented are for Iredell
County and were obtained from the Iredell County Finance Department for years 1987 to 1098
based on enrcllment. Beginning with fiscal vear 1999 student enroliment data is from the North
Caroclina Department of Public Instruction's Average Daily Maintenance (ADM).
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2005

Tabie 21

6/3G/2014 6/30/2003
Percent of Percent of
Total County Total County

Company or Organization & Emplovees Rank Employment Emplovees Rank Employment
Iredell Statesville Schools 2,780 1 3.58% 2,600 1 4.76%
Iredell Memorial Hospital . 1,626 2 2.18% 1,800 2 2.83%
Iredell County Government 1,134 3 1.80% 803 4 1.47%
Lowe's Regional Distribution 823 4 1.08% 998 3 1.83%
Piedmont Healthcare 720 B 0.88% 450 10 0.82%
JC Penney Distribution 620 6 0.82% 600 6 1.10%
Davis Regional Medical Center 492 1 0.65% 8350 B i.19%
Rewaunee Scientific 480 8 0.63% 480 9 0.80%
Boosan Infracore 474 9 0.63%
Manheim Statesville 443 10 0.58%
ASMO of NC, Inc. B30 7 0.97%
Dana-Spicer 500 g 0.81%
All other 66,172 87.41% 45,441 23.13%

Total Employed 758,704 100.00% 84,862 100.00%
Sources:

{1} Greater Statesville Development Corporation.

@ Total Iredell County employed from the North Carolina Department of Commerce as of June 2014.

® June 30, 2005 are estimates based on previous data.
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Table 22
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

-~ OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM (UNAUDITED) -+

- FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARs @

2004-2008 -2005-2006 2006-2007 - 2007-2008

Function/Program
General Government Activities:
General government:
Personnel
Number of new hires-full time 88 ' 48 40 .50
Number of new hires-parttime 85 74 86 80
Tumoverrate " 1320% 10 L 10.00% " 9.00%

Public Safety:
Police

Veh;clec as gaied o

Number of incoming calls 106,545 110,013 109,569

116,349

Fire

1 4%
- } 84,9 593
Number of ; e_ IHSPQ‘?tmnS____ 850

15

Investigations 4 8 28 18§

Transporiation:
Street Department

Ml 300 300 300

9,700

Costpertoncollected $

Cemeteries
230

Recrea&lea“ .- A A AR AR AR 1AL e e = R R LS8 | L Lom Phurs 84 et ehs 2P e e e ek e o it 1 8 St T we
Fitness Center Avg. Daily Attendance (2) N/A  N/A  N/A  ~ N/A_
Leisure Pool Avg. Daily Attendan O N/A - N/A

W Source: Various City departments.
Fitness Center and Leisure Pool opened FYZ2009 with software purchased during FY2011 to

(2 .
calculate average daily attendance.

@ Leisure Pool season of operation Memorial Day through Labor Day.
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Yable 22

2008-2009  2009-2010 2010-20611 2011-2012  20i12-2013 2013-2014

110
800% _  B20%  9.60%  T.80%

.. 93880 83,860 89,679

$1,132,213 $0942,350 $488,735 $ 1,373,470 $1,462,225 §$ 713,190
102 _8le 863 L L L.

T % s 8

9,900 9,546
60.00 .

5 5200 § 5300 § 6300 § 6000 §

..280 %8 @0 280 20

NA  NA L NA 0 282 262 288
wa .. NA WA ... %88 4 A2
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Table 23
 CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
OPER!—E TIN’ & ZNDE Cﬁl TORS BY FUNCTI ON/PROGRAM (UNA UBI TEI}}
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2004-2008 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008

Function/Program
Business-type activities:

Eiec'trlc ...... - - — i e DA SR
®Kwhpurchased 485,608,857 501,150,266 498061811 495,320,967
Purchasedpowercost  $26551352 $29,802,373 $30,115,860 $31545,275_
@ Costperkwh 00888 00808 0. 9637,
(2} KWh SOId s s s 1 0 1 e 1 .51 11RO 0 AR A AR 481 136 OGOMM 480 332 435 472 258 240 = 476 017 SSO
Kwhbilled . $31524318 §3 $34,581,935 336, .
® Sold per kv ... 008B5 00680 .0 0770_
_ . 4AT3,8BT 20,836,831 ..18312 41?.
Lossasapercentofbiledkwh 0.93%  4.34%  546%
Average numbex_cf customers
Average days in bxlled/ unbxlled recemable S vds L ..
Avg duration Of mterruptzon minutes 12821 10888 6888 4790

Water: e
© Water MG average anmually treated  N/A
®Sold Water to CustomersMG WA NA W
) e A NA N
“lossasapercentofbilledwater N/A  N/A N
“ Average numbez of water customexs - 11 252 i, 315

Billed water custormers CTsaarizes 8611757 $5,899,180 ﬂ‘.
Average days in bxlled/unbzi}ed recezvable - . 44 11 ) _““48 35

@ 3rd Creek treat

® Average number of water customers 10,175 10,238 10238 jfffjf 10,202
Billed sewer customers e

BilledSewerumitsinMG WA

CivieCenter:
Pald Boomngs -

(1}
@
3
4

Source: City billings and annual Public Utility Commission report,
Kwh is kilowatts per houz.

MGD is millions of gallons per day.

MG is millions of galions.
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Table 23

20608-2008 2008-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013

2013-2014

" dslees247
$36 SGO

488,127,078 451,517,939 464,081,769

‘$32 503 039 $34 84? 545

$38,639,838

469,944,924

479,643,199
| $40,826,087

| $31,427,382  $32,503,085  $
0.0751

0.0792 0.0822

0 {}686“ _0.0720 )

431 589 080 444 968 375
mf$§8,?00 180 $.éf,§,‘§10 333 R
0. 0931

0897
19,928,849 19,083,394

447,066,312 ¢

$40,248,347
0.0960

(14,899,935

fﬁu$3s 710,861

e O 08 1 4 PICPRS .

0. 0969

4. 43%
13 O46

453,300,014
$43,927,172

0.0851
461,546,534
45,919,168

16,644,910 18,006,665
3-67%...“...,..,._.,..., -
12,824

45 92 W 4 4 45

8588 B3

1186 1169
Lhos8 988
133 o218

L4211t
32437267 93,378,505

180
11 308 11,366

$3,432,791  $3,863,166

8143

236 b
11, 323
$3,448,842 :‘f‘

. G 84 P S
10, 318
© $5,292,768

2 83 b e
110,333
$5,381,251

. 3 1 'Z e R 3 23 A e
10,482 10,364
$5,190,305  $5,162,382
” 4834 4897

$5 ?EO 498
50.41

e07 B

.

L8 L

1897%

10 3'}’6 I

sz

5588 5422

114l
.03
238
20.86%
11,397
$ 3,626,264

LoT
248
10,399
'$ 5,628,097
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Tahle 24
CITY OF STAYESVILLE, NORTE CAROLINA
CAPITAL ASSETS STETISTICS RY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2004-2005  2008-2006  2006-2007  2007-2008  2008-2000

Function/Program

General Government Botivities;

Gemeralgovernment:
Czty hall 1

EM'H{)—-‘CD—"E

[FORPR JVE NI

Public Safety:

Pohce

@ Number of pohce statxons

_ Numberoffiresttiors 8 8 3 3 3

Transportation:

Environmental protection:
Samtatlon pa.ckers
Cemetenes ‘ e i e e e 5508 i et
Number of cemetenes S - A a 2 —)
Cemeterzes TBCISAGE DB DB

2

Recreation: =~

Business-type activities:
Electric:

Mﬂes o w'stnbunon lmes e e A e e e o ZE‘ZWBIT - 236

Water e e et P R e T £ T8 1 e e e T L L 3T o e £ £ £ e LR S e e e S e
..200 .22 . ...=ee  ...A2%e .. .21e28

s pom cpaciraics

Sewer AL 4 g g BRI T R Y - N AR B P  fofdra et 2 e R A1 ety [
Milesof collectionlines 240 244 244 24d T 2n4
Sewer treatment pl e

® Srd Creek plant capacny-MGD

® 4th Creek plant capacity-

TN

Civic Centex:

Notes:

B Source: City of Statesville capital asset records.

@ pour Cemeteries are maintained, two are closed.

¥ MGD is Millions of gallons per day. Plant Capacity found on Table 23.
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Table 24

2009-2010  2010-2011  2011-2012 20122013 2013-2014

: S
: o
e | e Lt [ e ]
i [ 5

TR “ires iias
8904l 39
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Table 25
CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2004-05 2008-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-08 2008-10 2010-11 2011-18 2012-13 2013-i4

Function/Program

Governmenial Activities:
General Government:
CityManager
Pinance Administration
Collections A .. 5
Purchasing ] ' '

o
B
=]
5]
[=2]
O
2]
3]
oD
o
L2
L2
L=
2]
=2}
o
a1
(=]
a
=}

Subtotal general government

PublicBafety . e
Fire 58 58 71 88
Subtotal Public Safety 144 144 145 149 169 158 188 178 168 169
TranspOTtation e
SweetDepartment 2l 21 2l 21 2l 2l a1 2l '
ﬂAirpOIt — - e Pt . o
Subtotal Transportation 21 21 21 22 22 22 22

Environmental protection
Sanitation 28 28 28 28 31 31 31 31 28 28

Subtotal environmental protec 28 28 28 28 31 31 31 31 28 28
Recreation
R

‘o ieoioe
Tl

00 i) g

Subtotal Recreation 30 30 30 30
Total Governmental 285 286 287 284

Business-type activiti
Watexr Maintenance
Sewer Maintenance

Subtetal Business-type

Total primary government 377 378 380 381 419 408 408 428 396 396

. Source: City of Statesville's adopted operating budget.
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POTTER&UCOMPANY
CUUCERTIEIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and
the City Manager
Statesvilie, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregated remaining fund information of the
City of Statesville, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, which collectively comprises the
City of Statesville’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2014, Our
report includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issaed by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the
financial statements of the City of Statesville ABC Board, as described in our report on the City of Statesville’s
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting or comphliance and other matters that are reported separately by those auditors, The financial
statements of the City of Statesville ABC Board and Convention and Visitors Bureau were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Iniernal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Statesville’s mternal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Statesville’s interpal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned [function to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and correcied on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit aitention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not
identify any deficiencies in mternal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been 1dentified.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED N
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Statesville, North Carolina’s {inancial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliiance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Potter &I Company, PA.

October 27, 2014
Mooresville, North Carolina
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POTTER&RUOMPANY

TERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAIL
PROGRAM,; REPORT OIN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133; AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

independent Auditor’s Report
The Honorable Mayor, City Council and
the City Manager
Statesville, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Fach Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Statesville, North Carolina compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the City of Statesville’s major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2014, The City of Statesville’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs.

Auditor Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Statesville’s federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and, OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nown-Profit Organizations,
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
cffect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City
of Statesville’s compliance with those reguirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Statesville’s compliance.

Onpinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinien, the City of Statesville complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred 1o above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2014,
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133; AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

Report on Internal Control Qver Compliance

Management of the City of Statesville is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of Statesville’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over comphance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Potter &L Company, PA.

October 27, 2014
Mooresville, North Carolina
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RTIFIZD PURLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL CVER COMPLIANCE; IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133; AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and
the City Manager
Statesville, North Carolinag

Report on Compliance for Fach Major State Program

We have audited the City of Statesville, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described m the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Caroling, issued by the Local Government
Commission that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June
30, 2014, The City of Statesville’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants
applicable to its State programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Statesville’s major state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of
the United States; and applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, as described in the Audit Manual for
Governmenial Auditors in North Caroling, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards,
applicable sections of OMB A-133, and the and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Statesville’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Statesville’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the City of Statesville complied, in all material respects, with the types compliance requiremnents
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended
June 30, 2014,
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133; AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACY

- Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Statesville is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of Statesville’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state
program and to test and report on internal contrel over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of mternal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and
correct noncompliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a State program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or materiai weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weakniesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Potter &L Company, PA.

October 27, 2014
Mooresville, North Carolina
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROGLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Yeqr Ended Fune 36, 2014

Section 1. Summary of Auditors’ Resalts

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Ungualified

internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes _X _No
e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses. Yes _X _ None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted. Yes _X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

e  Material weakness{es) identified? yes X no
¢ Significant Deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses. yes _ X none reported
Noncompliance material to federal awards. yes _X__ no

Type of anditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs:  Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be reported in
accordance with Section 510{a) of Circular A~133. yes _X  no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Programs or Cluster
64,458 Clean Water Revolving Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs. $300.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X __ves o
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CITY OF STATESVIELE, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Schedule 33
(20f2)

 Section §. Summary of Auditors’ Results - {ionz'd)

State Awards
Internal control over maior State Programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses.

Noncompliance material to State awards.

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major State programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

Identification of major State programs:

Program MName

Powell Bill

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unqualified

Yes

No

No None reported

No

No

Section [1. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Iff. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Nong reported.

Section IV, State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA Schedule 34
SUMMARY SCHEDUILE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
For The Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2014

'There were no prior year findings.
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROGLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDFERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Grant/WBS Number

Schedule 35

Federal
{Direct and
Pass-Through)
Expenditures

State
Expenditures

Federal Granis:

1.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Cabarrus/redell/Rowan:

Home Investment Partnership Program

1.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through N.C. Depariment of Transportation:
Division of Aviation:
Alrport Improvement Program
Alrpost Improvement Program
Alrport Improvement Program

Governor's Highway Safety Program

U.8. Department of Justice
Bulietproof Vest Partnership Program
The COPS Hiring Program

Passed through N.C. Department of Public Safety:
Governor Crime Commission:
Domestic Violence Initiative

U.8. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through N.C. Department of Environment and
Natural Resources:
Clean Water Revolving Fund (CWSRF)(3rd Creek WWTP)
Clean Water Revolving Fund (CWERF)4th Creek WWTP)

State Granis:

N.C. Department of Transportation
Powell Bill

M. C. Department of Commerce
One North Carclina Fund

Total federal gramis

Total state grants

14.239

20,106
20.106
20.1G6

20.600

16.607

16710

16.588

£0.458
66.458

DOT-4

M-01->C370

36237.46.11.2
36237.46.113
36237.46.13.1
K4-10-04-12

BA-20008-5T01
2013-UMWX-0154

2013-WF-AX-0010

E-SRF-T-13-0326
E-SRF-T-13-03061

32,570

O0-2011-8211

$ 169,105

114,334
2,000
24,134
7.282

7,733
57.058

435,210

9,111,758

741,701

37,500

$  779.201
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CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 35
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Mote 1.

Note 2.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and Sate awards includes the federal and State
grant activity of the City of Statesville and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local govermments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements,

Loans Quistandinge
The City of Statesville had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2014. These loan
balances outstanding are also included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

Pass-through
C¥DA Grantor’s Amount
Prograin Title Number - Number Outstanding
Capitalization Grant for State Revolving Fund 66.458 E-SRT- $9,111,758
T-13-0326
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